STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2ND, 2014 9:15 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING AT 9:15 A.M. pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff's Office
Employees’ Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union).

2, CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for September 2, 2014
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for August 19, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. For possible approval Assessor’s recommended corrections for APN 003-002-12 to tax roll for
2014/2015 tax year.




10.

11.

12.

For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections for APN 003-045-21 to the
2014/2014 tax roll for partial property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through
361.4724

For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/15/14 for $339,856.38. Accounts Payable
date for 8/22/14 for $493,792.68 and $4,019.70.

For possible action approval of National Preparedness Month Proclamation

For possible action consideration of approval of Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Grant
Professional Engineering Service Agreement with Farr West Engineering

For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. AGGREGATE RESOURCE DRILLING, LLC - Contractor / 4080 Commercial Ave ~
Springfield, OR (rock driller)
b. BW CABINETS & DOORS, INC. - Contractor / 52 Miles Road ~ Carson City (cabinet
sales/installer)
c. PAUL BROOKS GENERAL CONTRACTOR - Contractor / 199 East Winnie Lane ~ Carson
City, NV (Contractor)
d. TFG CONSULTING, LLC - General / 1273 Lariat Court ~ Minden (Consultant)
e. WINDAK, INC. - Contractor / 1254 26th Street ~ Hickory, NC (servicing equipment in
County)
f. DAVE'SHANDYMAN SERVICES - General / 1647 Clover Leaf Drive ~ Sparks (Handyman)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION (No Action): Dave Szabo, VFW Commander to make presentation to SCSO and
SCFD

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

13.

14.

15.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-014. By Mark Stevens in the Virginia City
Highlands 1 Acre Estates located at 2010 Silverado Road, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-081-
38). A request for Variance for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet
rear-yard setback for the placement of a proposed single-family residence. Also, the Applicant
requests a Variance for the allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than 50% of
the depth of the lot from the front property line.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The applicant, Comstock Mining LLC, requests
amendments to existing Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3 to modify and expand applicable
land area and allowable uses. The amendments apply to mining, processing, mine definition,
exploration, and ancillary uses on the subject land in American Flat and Gold Hill. The location
of the land subject to this SUP request is located approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20
East, Sections 1 and 12; and Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6,7, 8 and 9
(MDB&M).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: In accordance with an approval of Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-4 by Comstock Mining LLC, county planning staff hereby recommends closure and

2




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

nullification of existing Special Use Permit No. 2011-016 (“Exploration SUP”). This SUP request
is subject to approval of preceding SUP No. 2000-222-A-4 by Comstock Mining, LLC. This SUP
amendment request shall not be subject to hearing or modification if said SUP is not approved.

RECESS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO CONVENE AS BOARD OF
FIRE COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners (Employer) and the Storey County
Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227 (Firefighters’ Association) pertaining to salaries, merit
steps, and employees anniversary/hire dates.

ADJOURN FIRE COMMISSIONERS TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees’ Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3) ambulance
re-chassis to Fire Trucks Unlimited in the amount of $200,505.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Purchase of three (3) Dodge Ram 4500 regular cab chassis
through Nevada State Purchasing or other vendor if less then state purchasing, in the amount not
to exceed $142,113.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and award of contract for three (3) Type I
Triple Combination Structural Fire Fighting Engines to Ferrara Fire Apparatus in the amount of
$1,640,828.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Reimbursement for fire alarm system at Gold Hill Train
Station, requested by Kim Fegert

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING CONTINUED

26.

27.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit Extension & Amendment 2012-014-A-
1-2014. By Robert MacLachlan on behalf of Vista Towers, for a property located at 21485
Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-101-66). The
applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition
of the “mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The applicant is also
requesting an extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Parcel Map 2014-012. By Vincent Griffith on behalf of
Western 102/ Western 102 LTD ¢/o Annette Mansfield, for a property located at 2633 Waltham

3




Way, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-092-76). A parcel map to create two separate
parcels of land from one existing parcel of land.

28. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. CHEWY.COM LLC - General / 700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr) TRI

b. PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. - Contractor / 400 Carroll Drive - Fernley
(contractor)

c. A & JPAVING - Contractor / 1490 Cherokee Trail ~ Reno (contractor)

d. dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER / General - 1145 Icehouse Avenue ~ Sparks (water
delivery)

e. MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP / Home Business - 92 West Taylor (real

estate)

ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI

W G YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI

A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) ~ TRI

ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI

RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS - General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

TSt

29, PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

30. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.




CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before August 26, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

phord

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/14 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session 9:15a-10:00a)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring
with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations between Storey
County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association/Operating
Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Union).

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 1 of the Bargaining Agreement between the
Employer and the Union, the existing 2011-014 Agreement is proposed by management to the
Board of Commissioners to be modified as tentatively agreed by the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Applicable materials to be presented during closed-session.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund;: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed,by:
-/ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/f——gﬂt”"mnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

,_”._‘
e

Agenda Item No, ‘



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for August 19, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer ‘ Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
~ ) ~County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[ Denied

Continued

—r—
e b

Agenda Item No.©



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 191, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER ' CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Marshall McBride, Vice-Chairman Lance Gilman, Commissioner Bill Sjovangen,
Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, County Manager Pat
Whitten, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Planner Dessie
Redmond, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Building Inspector Shannon Gardner, Public Works Director
Mike Nevin, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne and Deputy District Attorney
Robert Morris.

Absent: District Attorney Bill Maddox

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for August 19, 2014
Mr. Whitten requested item 12 and 16 follow the Consent Agenda.

Motion: Approve agenda for August 19, 2014 with changes requested by Mr. Whitten. Action:
Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for August 5, 2014

Motion: Approve minutes for August 5, 2014. Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

1




CONSENT AGENDA

. For possible approval the Treasurer Report for July 2014

. For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections to the 2014/2014 tax roll for
partial property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

. For possible action approval of general and liquor license first reading-
a. DELTA SALOON/SAWDUST CORNER/PARKING- General and liquor license/28 S C St.
b. BONANZA SALOON- General and liquor license/27 N C St.

. For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 08/01/14 for $427,414.46. Accounts Payable
date for 8/08/14 for $484,597.05 and $5,130.39.

. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

CHEWY.COM LLC - General /700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr)  TRI

PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. - Contractor/400 Carroll Drive, Fernley
A & J PAVING - Contractor/1490 Cherokee Trail, Reno

dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER/General - 1145 Icehouse Avenue, Sparks
MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP/Home Business-92 West Taylor VC

© a0 o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County resident: Stated that he would like to see the applicants name
regarding the liquor license first reading.

Motion: Approve consent agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for
the construction of the Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement Project. Bids will be opened on
August 14, 2014 and will be included in the Commission packet prior to the meeting. (Originally listed
as item 12.)

Shannon Gardner, Storey County Building Inspector:

e Received two bids last Thursday at 2pm. One was incomplete with paperwork and was not
qualifying. We did get a qualifying bid from Watershed Systems out of Carson City. We were
pleased with it. Base bid $69,020.

e Alternate bid #1 for Snow Retention $76,80.00

e Alternate bid #2 for Gutters and Downspouts $3,900.00

e Alternate bid #3 for Metal Access Stairs and Cat Walk $18,380.00

¢ Projected budget is a little under $100,000

e Staff recommends award of contract to Watershed Systems for the base bid of $69,020 and the
Alternate bid #3 for $18,380 for a total of $87,400.

e  Would like to hold off on gutters and snow retention to research an alternate system first.

¢ Presented samples of the roofing material




Mr. Whitten pointed out that the bidder, Mike Baxter, took the time to be here and explained why he
is very impressed with him.

Mr. Gardner also mentioned that they are looking at doing a powder coat finish on the catwalk and
stairs rather than the paint proposed. He is also looking at an increase to the warrantee.

Motion: Award bid to Watershed Systems in the amount of $87,400. Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=3)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2014-013: By Mickey Hazelwood (The
Nature Conservancy) at properties located on a portion of assessor parcel number (APN) 004-111-33
(approximately 4.08 acres) of Sections 10, 11 and 15 of Township 19 North, Range 21 East and on a
portion of APN 004-111-34 (approximately 1.28 acres) located at Section 11, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East, in Storey County, Nevada. The overall project also includes a portion of Township 19
North, Range 21 East, Section 11 in former Washoe County, Nevada (Washoe County APN 084-450-
02). This portion of the project is part of land that was recently added to Storey County from Washoe
County and to which a Storey County current known APN and zoning classification has not yet been
assigned. The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to restore and improve portions of the Truckee
River and surrounding riparian area near Mustang, Hafed, and McCarran Ranch, Storey County,
Nevada. The project will include lowering the existing (abandoned) floodplain, constructing riffles,
" and grading control structures in and adjacent to the active river channel, lowering an abandoned
diversion structure, and sequestering spoils along the floodplain margins in and around the Truckee
River. (Originally listed as item 16.)

Mickey Hazelwood, The Nature Conservancy: - presentation

e Showed a map and photos of project location

e Explained the terrain and that invasive species of plants have taken over native.

o Explained what they propose to do to correct the problem

o Will not be relocating the river channel - only flood plain excavation to promote native
vegetation and wildlife. Flood controls and re-vegetation.

e Working on opening public access

e Also working with Federal, State, and other Local agencies for permits and regulation

e Went over historical projects completed and showed aerial images of improvements

e Increase in numbers and reported species of birds, increase of public use

Mr. Whitten asked how many cubic yards of earth will be moved. Mr. Hazelwood replied just over
100,000. Mr. Whitten complimented The Nature Conservancy and commended their efforts. Mr.
Hazelwood described some of the funding sources that make it happen. This project will be just over
$1 million.

Mr. Gilman feels it is a win-win all the way around. Mr. Sjovangen asked the total acres of the
project. Mr. Hazelwood said the area of disturbance is limited to about 27-28 acres.

Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:
e This property has an irrigation canal on the north side which staff wants to be sure is protected
along with its easements. (condition #20)
3




Planner Dessie Redmond read the Findings:

6.1.1 The proposed SUP complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of
the county master plan, this Title 17, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

6.1.2 The proposed SUP will be compatible with existing adjacent land uses and will not cause
substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses or other properties in the vicinity.

6.1.3 The proposed use is in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden or any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the
county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

6.1.4 The proposed SUP will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties.

6.1.5 The Conditions of Approval of the SUP require compliance with the applicable codes.

6.1.6 The Conditions of Approval of the SUP do not conflict with the minimum requirements in
SCC Chapter 17.24 Agricultural or Chapter 17.03.150 Special Use Permits.

6.1.7 The proposed SUP will not causes uses that will negatively impact existing or planned
public serviced or facilities and will not adversely impact the public health, safety and
welfare. .

6.1.8 The proposed SUP will not create any non-conforming conditions, such as non-conforming
setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

6.1.9 The proposed SUP is in substantial compliance with and supports the goals, ob]ect1ves and
recommendations of the Master Plan.

6.1.10 The proposed SUP conforms to the purpose and intent, as well as the letter and spirit, of
the Storey County Zoning Ordinance (Title 17), and conforms with consistent past practices
of the Planning Commission and the Board with regard to requiring an SUP for river
restoration projects and other land use proposals the substantially alter the Truckee River
in Storey County.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning Commission and
Staff, the Findings under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed appropriate
by the Board, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners hereby approves Special Use Permit Number 2014-013, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=3)

0. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

¢ Bridge decking on the Painted Rock Bridge was installed in record time

e We are working through some contaminated soils issues at the new Wastewater Treatment
Plant. We met last Tuesday with the engineer and representatives of Q&D and NDEP and
have an approved plan of containment. Work has recommenced.

e The design plan is 90% complete for the two reservoir rehabilitation projects. We are ready to
go to bid. We hope to have the opening on September 18t with a recommendation to the
board in October.

e Working with Bob Morris on the new Marlette agreement.




e 5 mile was reservoir constructed around 1877. It held 5.5 million gallons of water and served
until about 2003 when funding was received to improve the water line to the reservoir. The
County tried to clean it and breached the west embankment and it never held water after that.
It's been 10-11 years. There is enough room to expand it by an additional 1 million gallons.

¢ The divide reservoir holds 2 million gallons used mainly for fire protection. It is our hope to
turn it into a park-like public use area. The volume there will remain the same, but it will be
improved so that it holds water.

Planner Dessie Redmond:
o Very busy - A couple SUPs for murals in VC, parcel map close to TRI, Vista Towers in the
Highlands, and a reduced rear yard setback in the Highlands.
o Attended a CDBG application workshop in Fallon with Cherie Nevin, and will be attending
the annual forum in Eureka in a couple weeks.
¢ Will be attending a workshop on environmental and historical preservation in Carson City
next week with Ms. Nevin as well.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: _

o Regarding the V&T Rail Commission meeting: We had an agreement dated January 1, 2010
when we reinstituted the Y4 cent option tax for the Railway Commission. There are several
things in that agreement that they have not complied on. Mr. Sjovangen came to my office
and made it clear that I was going to have to solve the problem. [ am going to contact the
Carson City Controller, Nick Providenti, the outside auditors for the V&T Rail Commission,
Muckel Anderson. We will address the amount of money they owe us back and the way they
intend to do that. In the meantime, any future payments from Storey County through the
options tax process from the State of Nevada will now be forwarded to the V&T Rail
Commission. So we are going to stop that and see if that puts a bur under their saddle.

e Introduced Tom Gransberry as a tax consultant for the County.

Mr. Sjovangen expanded on the situation with the V&T Rail Commission. It is something they will
have to continue to monitor. Mr. Whitten complimented Mr. Gransberry and mentioned some of his
accomplishments and projects he has worked on.

Community Services Cherie Nevin:

e Last Saturday, August 16t six new site stewards were trained for the Lagomarsino
Petroglyphs area. The training was sponsored by the State Historic Preservation Office. All
six stewards are members of the Sheriff’s Cert team.

¢ August 13t we hosted 70 Fulbright Scholars here in Virginia City. They were hosted by
Storey County, Community Chest, Forth Ward School, and the Northern Nevada
International Center. This is the US Government’s Flagship International Exchange Program
supported by the people of the United States and partner countries around the world.

e September 17t Carson City Health and Human Services will be offering flu shots in
Lockwood from 3-6pm. Location to be announced. (Community Center or Hillside
Elementary School)

e October 18th - Virginia City Health Fair, 10am-2pm

e Mid-September we will be providing you with an overview of the Community Development
Block Grant Program. Three parts - we will explain the program and what we have funded in

5




the past and seek input. The second meeting we will share input from the public. The third
meeting is where we will vote for what we want to see funded.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

¢ Chief Hames is reviewing bids on the structure engines.

e Fire equipment and staff in California, Oregon, Idaho, and Washington.

e Marilee Miller - There is newly donated art outside Lockwood Community Center.
o Dean Haymore - Working on an all-day inspection for Ardagh

Underutilized building in TRI that the county uses for some Fire and Community

Development is being worked on and leased to Intellisource, the employment agency for

Zulily in order to conduct job recruitment and job fairs.

e Moving the B Street houses ~ The yellow house went very smoothly. The white one is
scheduled to move tomorrow morning. Ms. Redmond is working diligently on the design
plans and amending the lease. CMI has a home for the green house in American Flats. The
last house will be moving to E Street.

e Murals in VC. - West and South walls of Bucket of Blood parking lot - true work of art.
Pictorial of Life on the Comstock.

¢ Passing of Homer Hayes

Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne:

¢ Storey County Administrative Policies will be up for approval by this board in the next few
months. *

e Vista Tower will be coming up to the Planning Commission for review. This is to provide an
extension for the applicant and to amend the SUP so that he does not have to have the carriers
contracted before building the tower.

e Collaborating with Attorney Robert Sader in TRI regarding the 600 acres that is now part of
Storey County. We will be developing Master Plan, zone text, and zone map amendments
regarding that property. Should take about three months.

e CMI is scheduled for August 215t Planning Commission meeting which will begin at 5pm, but
CMI will not be addressed until 6pm. Residents are coming in to work with Mr. Osborne
constructively and are welcome to continue to do that.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Mr. McBride followed up on comments made by Mr. Sjovangen regarding the V&T Rail
Commission. He agrees that the appropriate action is to cease funding until questions can be
answered. He added if we are going to move forward the current situation needs to be reevaluated.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the
construction of the Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement Project. Bids will be opened on August
14, 2014 and will be included in the Commission packet prior to the meeting. (Item was heard following the
Consent Agenda.)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Check 79513 for $4,500 to
the Bucket of Blood




Mr. Whitten explained that because Mr. Gilman was absent from the last meeting, and Mr.
McBride has to abstain from voting on this item, it was continued to this meeting.

Kay Dean, VC Highlands: Asked when the lease began. Original agreement was to pay for paving.
She would like to see if this merits $18,000 per year to the county as there are additional parking lots
that were not in existence when this began. She feels there is plenty of parking and would like to see
a cost/benefit analysis.

Mr. Whitten feels feasibility studies to justify an ongoing quarterly payment for a lease approved by a
previous board are not appropriate. There are no specific lots that are owned by the County other
than perhaps Public Works.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City resident: Discussed Mr. McBride’s disclosure statements and
ethics.

Jack McGuffey, VC Highlands: Since the justice court moved into this building, parking has been an
issue. He discussed other problems with parking in the vicinity.

Mr. Whitten mentioned that it is a moot point to discuss the ethics on the issue until they are finished
with the negotiations with the McBride Family Trust on the expansion of the courthouse parking.
One thing this town never has enough of is parking. We hear that from the merchants and the
visitors almost every day. ‘ ‘

Joyce Kveum, owner Comstock Corner Café: We do not have enough parking for visitors and locals.

Jennifer Barnes, Storey County Resident: Manages Mustang Ranch Steak House - there is not
enough parking.

Mr. McBride abstained from this item.

Motion: Approve check 79513 for $4,500 to the Bucket of Blood, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=2)

The Chair called a recess at 11:18am; reconvened at 11:30am

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: a.) Reaffirm Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures Number 010 dated 04-07-2009 “Vehicle and Equipment Assignment and Use.” b.)
Development of Policies and Procedures relating to the adoption of Volunteer participation
programs in certain County events and requirements for use of County owned vehicles.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:
This item is about liability. Since May of 2014 there have been two incidents in the Highlands
involving county owned emergency vehicles operated by non-employees. Storey County has
been very consistent in restricting non-employees from operating county-owned vehicles.




Storey County Administrative policies and procedures number 10 II (A) dated 4/7/09
“Use of County vehicles and equipment will be limited to County employees who, by
the nature of their duties, have a need to operate such equipment.”

These two incidents give Mr. Gallagher great pause as to a potential catastrophic liability
position we may be put in. He recommends that the procedure be reaffirmed.

With this, it may also be a good time to address the volunteer situation. There is a real need
for community emergency teams that are out there. They need to be documented from a risk-
management perspective to include training. He recommends a committee to include two
professionals, Gary Hames and Joe Curtis. Gary Hames’ Volunteer Fire Department is a
wonderful example of attention to the liability on that equipment and the volunteers that
operate it. Again, he recommends a committee to include the risk-management team, the Fire
Chief, Gary Hames, Emergency Management Director, Joe Curtis, Safety Committee President,
Shannon Gardner, the Sheriff and maybe one or two others. Once in place we will have more
information on whom these people are and their training and maybe at some point in the
future can talk about them operating county vehicles.

Mr. McBride asked how this changes things from the days when he was a volunteer fire
fighter operating emergency vehicles.

Mr. Gallagher responded that with Chief Hames” program they have to have a CDL license,
40-80 hours of instruction, and be tested on inspection and operation of the vehicles.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

This has been a controversial topic for some time. He believes it is a political attack to discredit
his office and his volunteer program. The Storey County policy also says that elected officials,
departments heads, supervisors shall be responsible for vehicles assigned for their use. He
compared the Fire Volunteer program policies to his own as far as training, use of vehicles.
One of the incidents was a Horse that ran into the side of a vehicle. He explained that it was
not the fault of the driver. Only two people are out doing patrols. He explained their purpose.
He read a review of his policies and procedures by Pool/Pact that says it is well-written and
consistent with generally accepted policies and procedures of law enforcement agencies
nation-wide and they had no recommendations regarding changes. I've also been working
with Austin Osborne to get all the forms HR wants filled out in addition to our own. This is no
different than other volunteer programs and we are doing everything possible to limit liability.
Mr. McBride said he know that when these incidents first came up, Human Resources and the
insurance companies had no idea who these people were, where with volunteer firemen, they
are all on record. The other incident involved a volunteer carrying a weapon in the car which
should probably not have happened unless he was deputized.

Sheriff Antinoro responded that there are many times when a volunteer might carry a weapon,
such as rangers. The vehicle is set up with a locked compartment for weapons. There are
times when they may need it to dispose of an animal that’s been injured when we can’t get out
there or something of that nature. Right now there are only two out there. They are together.




HR is fully aware of who they are, and we have most of the rest of the team all documented
with HR and should have that completed by tomorrow (day after tomorrow).

Mr. Gilman addressed the statement that this is politically motivated. He assured the Sheriff
that it was not on his behalf. He commends the volunteer programs. As far as he’s concerned
the bottom line is contingent liability. He spoke to his experience in the private sector and the
policies of the County and employees operating vehicles. If there is an issue here it should be
addressed.

Sheriff Antinoro said that there is no issue. The people in the program are being documented
on paper, the policies and safeguards are there. Mr. Gilman said they are being asked to
reaffirm the policies. He asked if the Sheriff has a problem with that language. Sheriff
Antinoro said he doesn’t have a problem with that language, but does have a problem with
cancelling the program based on violation of policies. Mr. Gilman asked if the policies are
Storey County’s or his own. Sheriff Antinoro said there is a little bit of an overlap and
autonomy in the Sheriff’s office which goes back to the separation of powers clause. The
policies work together.

Mr. Sjovangen considers it a breach of the public trust and is extremely serious. Mr. Gallagher
sent a letter to the Sheriff in Mid-May with an order cease and desist until this was ironed out
and we had all of the proper procedures and insurance and all those questions answered
Again, on May 215t another letter which he read:
Last week I sent you an email regarding the improper use of volunteers operating
company vehicles and the proper program approvals necessary per our insurance
carrier. As of this correspondence we have not received any documentation as to the
volunteers involved or the incident report regarding a sheriff vehicle (the incident
where they ran into a horse)...
The potential cost to Storey County can be significant should potential lawsuits be filed
as a result of injured persons or property.
At the time this was going on, none of us had any idea who these people were. We had no
names, worker’s compensation information, and the insurance pool, had we put in a claim,
would have told us we were on our own. The volunteers Mr. Sjovangen has seen out in the
public, as far as he’s concerned, have been imitating peace officer. They have “Sheriff” on
their hats, shirts, and cars in violation of NRS. They have had firearms in the vehicles and he
doesn’t know the legalities of that. He also mentioned background checks on these
individuals. These are not things to be taken lightly. It's been pointed out to the Sheriff in
writing a couple of times and we are here talking about it again. He believes the CERT
program should be shut down immediately even if we get some outside guidance to help out
to look at it.

Mr. Antinoro clarified that all of the volunteers have had background checks. There is no
violation of law having a shotgun in the car. He agreed that there was a request in May that
they suspend the program until they get a weigh-in from Pool/Pact which was done. It was
discontinued and no one went out until we got the thumbs-up from Pool/Pact, which Mr.
Gallagher was aware of because he was copied on the email. The only thing pending now are
a few items of paperwork that I have been working with Mr. Osborne on.




Mr. Osborne explained that all the volunteers and employees have completed the paperwork
and HR training required to be familiar with Storey County Policy and are being provided
with Workman’s Comp. It has taken a year for 15 of the 20 known Certs to go through the
process. He recently became aware through the Sheriff that there are approximately 50 of
them. Mr. Osborne doesn’t know what level they are or if they are driving or not driving, but
that is potentially 30 people that he doesn’t have on the books. All he asks is that they go
through the HR certification process, which includes a background investigation, before
moving forward to any other program or training.

Mr. Antinoro confirmed that there are 20 actives 5 of which they are working on. The others
are not as active, so they are working on them as they catch up with them. Only two of them
actually go out and drive. The ones who are not on paper are not active in the program at all.

Mr. Gilman would like to see policies and procedures developed specifically for volunteers.
Mr. Sjovangen would like the D.A.’s office to look at it and perhaps someone from outside.

Chris Miller, VC Highlands: She is a current member of Storey County School Board, Past
President of the Nevada Association of School Boards, and member of the Internationat
Science and Engineering Fair Review Committee, but is not speaking on behalf of any of those
groups. She would like to share the Engineering Fair and research perspective on safety. Risk
assessment is a vital part of safety. "There is no such thing as a risk-free environment. These
are volunteers who are not being kept safe. If they are in a marked police vehicle that does not
indicate, as they do in Reno and Carson, that it is a volunteer unit, they will be perceived by
the public to be officers.

Sheriff Antinoro responded that there are large magnetic signs that go on the sides that say
CERT Volunteer.

Mr. Sjovangen argued that he has seen them out many times without such signage.

Jim Miller retired Sheriff of Storey County: Agrees with the CERT program. He saw them
driving a black and white without the CERT signage and that puts them in a great amount of
danger. It's a good program with some housekeeping issues, but they should be in an all-
white vehicle so it is clear who they are.

Sheriff Antinoro agrees with Mr. Miller and prefers that they not be in the black and whites,
but it is just a matter of having the vehicles available for them. Sometimes the signs fall off,
but they do have them normally. He is working on getting the amber lights for the solid color

vehicles.

Kay Dean, VC Highlands: Questioned the policy and procedure document where it mentions
mileage numbers and wondered how they were determined.

Mr. Whitten explained that these policies come from the risk-management pool. They come in
template form, but we work to customize them. These are standardized rates that have
historically been used.

Ms. Dean went on to say that these mileage numbers are overstated by 40% according to IRS
allowed reimbursements.

10




Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: There is nothing in today’s agenda regarding
misconduct of a County officer. There is also nothing about suspending the CERT program.
NRS gives the Sheriff complete authority over search and rescue.

Mr. Whitten: Mr. Gallagher and Mr. Osborne work directly for me. Sheriff Antinoro is an
elected official. In my 15 years, 6 of which were in service as Sheriff, I was fortunate to never
have heard the words “autonomy and separation of powers” ever used by any elected official
in this county. Throughout this process I have mandated that Mr. Gallagher and Mr. Osborne,
that though they have needs and documentation requirements, that there be no political
motivation. I removed myself and allowed Mr. Gallagher to take the risk management side for
just those reasons. I wanted no political “stanching” as has been referenced today. Autonomy
is legal and is in statute, but when the County comes up with $350k in insurance premiums, it
is the County that is responsible for managing the risk associated with that regardless of
separation of powers. In looking at the Sheriffs that came before and since me and the
hundreds of other elected officials that have understood that yes, they have autonomy to do
the job they need to do under statute, but they’ve got to work as a team. He is concerned that
the program is over a year old and they are still doing housekeeping. The bottom line is that
our job is to mitigate the risks. It is not our intent to kill the CERT program, but you have to
have the structure and conformity before you go through with the program.

Mr. Antinoro and Mr. Whitten further discussed difference of perspective on how the incident
" was reported. Mr. Antinoro said it was reported within a couple days, and Mr. Whitten
disagreed and thought that the report had to finally be requested.

Motion: Reaffirm Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures and instruct staff
with legal assistance to develop policies and procedures relating to the adoption of volunteer
participation programs within the County that address liability, to include
oversight/overview and an analysis of the Sheriff’s programs along with all other programs in
the community. Action: Approved Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by
Commissioner Sjovangen Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-006: By Joyce Kveum at a property located

at 109 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 (APN 001-074-03) for a business commonly

known as Comstock Corner Café. The applicant requests a variance for the purpose of changing
the allowed width and length of a sien which will be attached to the norch of the buginess

or
LILT CLLIV VYDA VVIWLIL Gl dcdigiil vi a olgil ALl VY LIL VT LALLIITU LU LT PULLEL UL LT VUOLLICOS.

Planner Dessie Redmond:

Details are listed in the staff report. Page 5 of the staff report outlines section 3.1 SCC 17-84.90 and
that the applicant is not in compliance and it is recommended by staff that the sign in the back of the
building not in compliance stay in place.

Joyce Kvuam, owner of Comstock Corner Café: Explained that they don’t want a cookie cutter sign,
but rather something with character. She explained the details of the differences from ordinance and
reasons for those differences. She described the location and reasons for the sign in the rear. She also
explained which signs will be removed when the permanent one goes up.

11




Mr. McBride had a concern about the artist’s rendering and location of the sign shown on pages 17
and 19. He likes the artist rendering, but the silhouette shows it offset to the one side. He would like
to see the adjacent property owner continue the same silhouette to make it cohesive.

Ms. Redmond mentioned that she didn’t think they could condition another property owner.

She read the amended condition into the record:

8. All other non-conforming signs, except for legally non-conforming signs, and the existing sign on
the rear of the building, on the premises must be brought into compliance with the Storey County
Code before the proposed sign allowed by this Variance is installed.

Mr. Whitten asked about requesting the rest of the building be addressed when and if that signage
goes up.

Mr. Osborne spoke to the lengthy process to develop the ordinance, and yet small things still come
up that need to be adjusted such as the 15” height requirement that should probably be adjusted.
They probably will revamp the ordinance. They can’t condition the neighbors. They could address
the issue should another variance be requested for additional signage on the remainder of the
building.

Ms. Kveum suggested removing the circles at either end of the sign. Mr. McBride did not find that
necessary.

Mr. Gilman spoke to the importance of good signage and is comfortable with this plan.

Mr. Sjovangen agreed it would be better centered, but likes it. Mr. Osborne discussed the removal of
content on signs once a business is no longer there and continuity of the backboard should the rest of
the building be addressed.

Findings:

6.1.1 There are special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including the
configuration of the building and the location of the restaurant therein. Therefore, the
strict application of the zoning ordinance deprives the subject property of privileges
enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classifications; and

6.1.2 That the granting of the application is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant (property owner); and

That the granting of the application will not, under the circumstances of the particular

case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or
working in the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially
detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property or improvements
in the neighborhood of the subject property and;

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County regulations; and

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.84 Signs and
Billboards.

6.1.6 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

@)
Y
W

12




Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the
Findings under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed appropriate by the
Board, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners approves Variance Number 2014-006 Comstock Corner Café Sign Variance, Action:
Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

16.

17.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2014-013: By Mickey Hazelwood (The
Nature Conservancy) at properties located on a portion of assessor parcel number (APN) 004-111-33
(approximately 4.08 acres) of Sections 10, 11 and 15 of Township 19 North, Range 21 East and on a
portion of APN 004-111-34 (approximately 1.28 acres) located at Section 11, Township 19 North, Range
21 East, in Storey County, Nevada. The overall project also includes a portion of Township 19 North,
Range 21 East, Section 11 in former Washoe County, Nevada (Washoe County APN 084-450-02). This
portion of the project is part of land that was recently added to Storey County from Washoe County and to
which a Storey County current known APN and zoning classification has not yet been assigned. The
applicant requests a Special Use Permit to restore and improve portions of the Truckee River and
surrounding riparian area near Mustang, Hafed, and McCarran Ranch, Storey County, Nevada. The
project will include lowering the existing (abandoned) floodplain, constructing riffles, and grading control
structures in and adjacent to the active river channel, lowering an abandoned diversion structure, and
sequestering spoils along the floodplain margins in and around the Truckee River. (Item was heard
following the Consent Agenda.)

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A. EAGLES CREST, INC. - Contractor / 4865 Joule Street #C6 ~ Reno (contractor)

B. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI

C. W G YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI

D. SILEGACY FLOOR FINISHING, LLC - Contractor / 750 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

E. JAMES PAT COLONNA - Home Business / 21217 Highland Road ~ VC Highlands (CPA)

F. CARSON CITY VENDING, LLC - General / 4083 Montez Drive ~ Carson City (vending
service)

G. DIRECT FORCE MAINTENANCE, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 5611 ~ Fallon (mining
support)

H. HILL & HILL CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 8965 Mohawk Street ~ Las Vegas
(contractor)

I. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI

J. STEEL KING INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 2700 Chamber St ~ Stevens Point, WI
(contractor)

K. HIGH DESERT PLUMBING - Contractor / 131 Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks (contractor)

L. CH2MHILL ENGINEERS, INC. - Contractor / 50 West Liberty ~ Reno (contractor)

M. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI

N. SUPERIOR INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 1230 Crowley Cir ~ Carrollton,
TX (cont)

O. CASEY INDUSTRIAL, INC. - Contractor / 1400 W 122nd Ave ~ Westminster, CO (contractor)

P. RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS - General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

Q. DATA SALES CO., INC. - General / 3450 West Burnsville Pkwy ~ Burnsville, MN (equip
lease)

R. VEGA ASPHALT PAVING, INC. - Contractor / 385 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

13




S. AS.A.P.PUMP & WELL SERVICE, LLC - Contractor / 10230 Laurent Drive ~ Reno

Motion: Continue items B, C, I, M, and P Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve items A, D, E, F, G, H, ], K, L, N, O, Q, R, and S Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

The Chair called a recess at 12:53pm; reconvened at 1:02pm
18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Kay Dean, VC Highlands: Jeep Posse still shows as being a county organization on the website.
They should be removed or included in the HR process.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: We were forced to take ownership of the fire alarm
system in the building and feel this expense would be better borne by the County and would like it
added to the next meeting as an agenda item for discussion. Mr. Whitten explained that there is a
process to add an agenda item through the Clerk.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City: Crystal Bar building agreement to sell without any paid off
mortgage on record. Mr. Whitten was on the VCCTA board when the building was acquired. He
believes it was purchased with cash so there would not have been a mortgage.

Regular meeting was closed at 1:07pm

19. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations between
Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff's Office Employees’
Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Sheriff's Office Employees’ Association),
and possible Memorandum of Understanding to clarify salary benefits as applicable to the 2014-
2017 Bargaining Agreement between the Employer and the Storey County Firefighter's
Association IAFF Local 4227 (Firefighters” Association). (Closed session was called at 1:10pm.)

20. ADJOURNMENT

The Chair adjourned the meeting at 2:18pm

Respectfully Submitted,

o VMO ph s

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer

14




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Sepr Z., 2014 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Tax Roll

2. Recommended mgtion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Parcel 003-022-12 did not receive the proper adjustment for the percentage of
completed construction on their 2014/15 property tax bill.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_____District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: T

X Department He Department Name: Assessor’s Office

) County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. )



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
m 26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR GginiaiSisyatih BRA0

(775) 8470961 Phone
{775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@SstoreyCounty.org

August 12,2014
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 003-022-12, Shane and Jenna Dixon

The above referenced parcel was billed without the proper adjustment for the percentage of
construction completed for the 2014/15 tax year. The new assessed value should be:

APN: 003-022-12
Residence/Garage Under Construction Assessed Value: 83,718
Adjust for 55% completed construction: -37,673
Additional Improvements Assessed Value: +3,246
Adjust for Economic Obsolescence @ 12%: 25,915
Adjusted Improvements Assessed Value: 43,376
Land Assessed Value: +5,250
Adjusted Net Assessed Value: 48,626

Please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and issue a new tax
bill or a refund as necessary.

Thank Yous—_—

@Seddo

Storey County Assessor

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2014-15 Tax
Roll for Partial Property Tax Abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4, Staff summary: Nevada Revised Statutes 361.4722 through 361.4724 provide a partial
property tax abatement (implemented as a “cap”) for certain existing owner-occupied and
qualifying residential rental properties. Status verification cards and affidavits are typically
due back to our office on or before June 15" of the preceding fiscal year, but circumstances
beyond a taxpayer’s control may cause a delay and, as a result, the proper “cap” does not
get applied to the tax bill. If the Assessor’s Office determines that the proper “cap” has not
been applied, the tax bill may be amended by the Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the
Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter, which lists affected propertics.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
___ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: gk
X  Department Héad

@»MHW Manager

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Department Name: Assessor’s Office

Other agency review:

Agenda Item No. 7



Sana Seddon

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

August 22, 2014
Memo to: STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Re: Corrections for Partial Property Tax Abatements

STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

The following have been approved by the Storey County Assessor’s Office to receive the 3%

Property Tax Abatement (“Cap”) for the 201 4-15 fiscal year:

APN OWNER(S)

PROPERTY LOCATION

1 003-045-21 | Schwanke, James & Christina

21875 Adobe Rd
Virginia City Highlands

Please advise the Treasurer to:

1) Adjust the tax bills listed above by applying the corrected cap percentage, and

2) Issue a new tax bill or refund, as necessary.

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2,2014 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 08/15/14 for $339,856.38.
Accounts Payable date for 8/22/14 for $493,792.68 and $4,019.70.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted as part of the Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

__ Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
¥ : /Coum Manager Other agency review:
A W y g gency
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda [tem No. 8



FTANSYIEL

YITTOLLAWOD

TINOISSTIWWOD

YINOISSTWOD

NV TIYHO

¥1/0T/80

AIUNINITHEIG

S

abeg

tSISUOTISSTUWO) Jo paeog Ajuno) Asxolzs syl LAq psasoxddy

8€°9G68/6¢€€ 1pasInNgsTa
6% 08E€‘L :xo3ompad O3 I9FSUBRII ASS
0S°TZL'9 :9TTd dsg AT uo pxsd3X Spag safordug
60°S2T‘LST :31sodsq 3o0axTq osfordug
CESTL'T 1s3oay) dakoTdmg
6€°9€9°'9 1 €)08y) Io3jzonpad
85 ¥LZ'09 $8dLdd I07F I8FSuell IA9E8N
Junowy sadeq # pad
/% duwg

8 L 9 s ¥ € z 1 :sdnoap yroakedq

:93ed pu=-poTIag $I/ST/80 :@3ed HO3UdD Teinbay :adAl T10xleq

as3s169y osud
WILSAS TICYAYd AINNOD ATAOLS

Te3ol

Te30L
Te3lol
Te30L
Te30L
Te3oL

Te3orn

# aa
/3o9ud

Iv:95:60 ¥I/€T/80 :uny
¥0TS0¥d :3dsy



T

00°668

00°s¢3
00°00T

00 €TT

¥S°Z00'T

0S°T99

98"
00°sL
00°00T
00°090‘€

0L"90T

SE'PeT

9T 0¢t

00'0%T’'T

TYLOL
JDEHD

obeg

EETSL

00 %91
00"SEL

007529
007001

00°S0T
00°8

85°'T&
2979
¥Z'9¢
6Z°0€
80" %S
¥grec
0066

00°€9
057865

98"
00°SL
00°00T
00°090°¢

0s 8%
0c'8s

oL 9¢
v0°0%
¥6° ¢
2570t
LL'8

8e el

09°50T
95 ¢z

00°0%S"T
007008

LNOOWY

SET0L

9LTOL
9LTOL

LLzOL
Z9TOL

SLTOL
SLIOL

TT20L
TT20L
TTC0L
TTZO0L
T120L
TTC0L
TTCO0L
TT20L
TTZ0L
TT20L
TTZO0L
TTZO0L
TTC20L
TT20L
TT20L
TTZ0L

TLTIOL
PLTOL

L6TOL
TLzoL
€£LT0L
€2CoL

€v2oL
6£C0L

TETOL
FETOL
TETOL
LgozoL
LOZOL
L020L

8020L
8020L

9210L
SZTZ0L

HSNVAL

¥1/T2/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

v1T/22/8
v1/22/8

v¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
y1/22/8
¥1/22/8
%1/22/8
»1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
»1/22/8
v1/22/8
»1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8

¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8

v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/2zT/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

y1/22/8
o0o/zz/8

2LYa

¥1/12/8

g10g -906zEdd

$702 ‘1€ 1SODAY-TE€ X100
TIYM OL ad¥ IHINGYO
NOILVA¥ESHY ¥T1/€T/8

$I0Z ‘€1 1ISNDAY - TE X100

TaNd NYWIILYM
IVHA TIAVIL NYWIELYM
TaNd NYWIELYM
T3Nd NYWIELYM
TaNd NYWIHILYM
TINI NYWILLEM
TENA XITINOD NOLTIYD
TYHN XHTAWOOD NOLTAYD
TaNd XITIHOD NOLTIVO
TINd XHTWOD NOLTIYD
TYEN XITJNOD NOLTIVO
TALOW XATAWOD NOLTIYD
TLLOW XITAWOD NOLTIYD
THNA XATIWOD NOLTEYD
TaNd XHATIWOD NOLTIVD
TaNd XdTdWHOO HWOLTIYWD

¥10Z ‘€1 1SNOHNY-T€ X100
SEDIAYHAS HINHYHANODHATIL

LI I5¥IAN
YLSIDIY YHINYWYS % YNYCL

ONINIVAL ANITINO

STAMEL
q3I0a

HD
dOHS
dOHS

AYANAOYT ¥L LS
X4aNOVYT 2L LS
A¥ANOYT TL LS

SdITddNS SKWA
SdITI4NS SWE

Ld0ddns
ST/%T INIVH IN ANNOJONd

NOILIT¥DSHA HOIOANI

JALSIDIY ADHHD
ALNOOD ATIOLS

ONI H¥Id S.NOILdN"

SIMET IIODS ‘TTaydndg
4430 ‘JEIW0Od

¥NINYD ‘dDVIg

HYJOdad ‘¥IANELD

YOLZH YOIYEWY 40 JNVL

NS ADNYN ‘JANvE

IAYES HONAYEIANODATAL I3LY
OTT IT ALITIEOW L3IV

AIN A0 DOSSY §,d0S5ISSY

dWOD NOILISINODVY IHSY

SSENTTIM ANV HLIVEH O¥Y

ONI 008TY

ONI NON SUYDYIV

ONI SWHLSAS ¥YIV¥d QIDNVAAY
JOaNIA

v1/12/80
STETEd

£EZ66L

2C66L
TZ66L

0Z66L

6T66L

8T66L

LT66L
9T66L
ST66L
7166l

£ET66L

Zle6L

TT66L

0T66L

6066L

YIENON

MOEHD
: 23eQ UNY
:oN 23x0day



00°zgst LLTOL v1/22/8 $102 ‘€1 1ISNOAVY-T1¢ X100

DTT TIIW dTOD ADOLSWOD 8EGGL

9 vLE [ AR 4] 0STOL vi/ze/8 NOILIQE 8 D0Y¥ ¥IDIAJ0

057202 0STOL v1/ze/® SNOILIAd 8/8 ® T/8

00°'80T LLZOL y1/ce/8 S¥HAYd XYl Ol HADILON
(DA) FTDINOYUHD ADOLSHOD LEGEL

L6°0T9'8 L6°00L'T 86TOL v1/cz/® 0SIa DESD $I0Z ATl

00°016°9 86T0L v1/22/8 DESD ¥I0Z ATINL
ONI ISEHD ALINOWKWOD 9€66L

SZ°90%'T SZ°90%°T LTTOL ¥1/22/8 SNOILVILODIN NOINA
d SETYVHD ‘TIINHID0D SEE6L

00°000°S 00°000°S LLZOL ¥1/22/8 ¥IAOTO NY'IV LIV
JEANSYHIL NOSIYD J0 ALID vE66L

T0 09T TO 09T §520L ¥1/22/8 SOVYH AANYD
WIDNYEAIA [ JIHD £EE6L

Lz 122 Lz 122 £EZOL ¥1/22/8 JDIW SNIWITD WWS 00S
SNOIIYIINANNOD YHLIVHD ZE66L

LB 06 980§ 6920L ¥1/22/8 ptciNicices

T0°0% 8STOL ¥1/22/8 HONH LSLZTZOELEHANI
dIHSYANLIYE ODTTID TE66L

2y LZe zhrLee £520L v1/22/8 HSUNESIA INFWHSINJIYD
NOHAETEL AINACD TTIHDANHD 0€66L

00°ZLT'T 00°98¢S S%TOL v1/22/8 ¥1/12/6 - ¥1/S2/8

00°98S 9%TOL v1/22/8 ¥1/%2/8 - #1/8Z/L
ONI J00arlno sgd 6Z66L

00°z202Z 007202 9€TOL v1/zz/8 1¥0ddns 1435
ONI HETTIASYD 8CE6L

92°265°'T 9z°26S'T 9€2Z0L v1/22/8 TASHIA 3 TINA-MA
DNI 0D 'TIO AETIVA NOSMVYD LZTEG6L

€0°88T 09 Lz SSTOL ¥1/22/8 ASY EENL-L9625¥d

8€° 68T SSTOL »1/22/8 IO0Q ‘ESOH-L96254d

-56°8¢ SSTOL v1/zz/8 AMAH- 78T SUI
ONI q¥0d IYLIYD 9Z66L

S0°8%6 BE'ET ¥STOL v1/22/8 JEAAYIILS 84ZTHSUA

L8 €S $STOL $1/22/8 SYALTIL-ADOLS

96 L ¥STOL ¥1/z2/8 ONILLIA-L962S¥d

L8 69 $STOL ¥1/22/8 I1T4 ¥IV -L96Z25¥d

8T €T ¥STOL ¥1/22/8 1TId TIO-AD0LS

6E°6 YSTOL v1/22/8 aQInTd ¥AXH -AD0LS

SSTPT $STOL ¥1/22/8 €108 868SSMd

80 €6T $STOL ¥1/22/8 S¥ALTIA~AD0LS

86 1€ $STOL ¥1/22/8 gIngd TIVL -L0Z6TEdd

66°'8 $STOL v¥1/22/8 JOSNES -L96T58d

0% %% $STOL ¥1/22/8 1D FATEE -dOHS

9€ LTI PSTOL ¥1/22/8 \QINTd NYIL-L06Z€dd

LT 8ZT $STOL y1/22/8 SYALTIA-LOEZEYD

62 9€T $STOL ¥1/22/8 LTId ¥9IV -L06ZE¥d

$9°82 $STO0L ?1/22/8 gINg-NOO¥E ad

66°TT ¥STOL y1/22/8 ¥ALIIA TI0 -AD0LS

8E"LY YSTO0L v1/22/8 dIn1d A¥g -AD0LS

659 ¥STOL »T/22/8 YHALTIIA TIO MDOLS

86701 ¥STOL ¥1/22/8 JOSSEOOVY ‘ION N L96ZTSAUA
SI¥Yd OLAY ALID TIYLI4YD SZE6L

$9°8 $9°'8 Z6T0L ¥1/22/8 NEQIVD WHOD aMDT -¥ILYM
NIWIAOIAWI TYIENTD NOANYD PZE6L

1686 85 €2 SETOL ¥1/22/8 SNAT a3y -906Z€dd

TYLIOL LNOOHWY #SNTAL q1¥A # 0/a NOILdI¥ISEd ADIOANI JOANILA YIIWAN
HADEHD ADIHD
$1/12/8 ¥AILSTIOHAY NDTHD ¥1/T2/80 : ®3ed uny

[4 sbed AINAOD XEIOLS STeTEd :oN 3xodsy



€

YE'V6S
CT tES
00°02s
00°S9
00°008°T
€L79TE’T
6S°L0€E
29°8LY
60°%%9'9
6L TIST '€
00°265°2
99°166'9T
Z8°69¢£'69
00°S69'T
8T TLL'T
007 0S4
00° %08
08°80T
0L 6TT
00°9T¢E
e 66T
00" €LT
TYLOL
JDHEHD
obea

veTv6S
¢TI EES
00°0¢s
00°59
00°008°T
8Z°L8C
68 VEE
95" %6

65726
00°STC

29 8LY
60°%¥9°9
697266
S6°0¢8
ST 8€€’'T

00°00%‘¢
00°26T

vy €99

S99 ¥¥T VT
LS €80'cC
00"00%'C
¥L.'929°8C
80" €¥L ' 8E

00°0s2
00°9%¥%°'T

ST TLL'T
00°0SL
00°708

s8°C8
§6°5¢

oL"6TT
00°9T¢
vET66T
00'TZ

INOOWY

9%20L
89T0L
£920L
09T0L
8LZOL
T9T0L
T9T0L

T9TOL

69T0L
6STOL

ZSZ0L
CTLTOL
LSTOL
LSTOL
LSTOL

6£T0L
6€T0L

vETOL
vETOL
vecoLl
85TOL
8STOL
TETOL

LLzoL
LLzoL

9S5T0L
T¥TOL
£E6TOL

s¥zoLl
LzgeoL

6%T0L
8LIOL
LETOL
LLTIOL

H#SNVIL

v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8

¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
vy1/22/8
v1/22/8

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

v1/cz/8
y1/22/8

$1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
vy1/22/8

v1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8

dILvd

y1/12/8

SHITI4NS SWA

1S INEDOVEE JOTHD HIdI
XAINNOD @¥nd AVdL aNOd
AYIS ATIALIVAO-IIND IS M1
AM HOYA S¥H 0C

HIZZON 'MFSOTD JOOd-HD
SHITAdNS ONINVATD

SEACTD

SHATYA TIVE-$4S527dd
S1Id‘ISOH-AINIL JLLYM

HSENISId LNIWHSINIVO
dNa FONVTIYd MOIDSH
THSHIA ¥ DHY MT

TIO ¥¥HD ‘WANNIHI Md
TESHIA 3 HDII M1

YOSNAASNOD OV HO
HD-DO¥ dDAVHD

STYIYEIYN JILVM

LXH dANIT d3I¥M LS d
ONILLIL 'SHMOX ¥ALIW JTIYM
ddd NN¥ XILAOdYW

ONINIT SE¥ dTIW S
NOILOHEASNI ‘ONINEZINIONS

dls T ON S¥T 20 897%80#
dLs T ON S¥T Z0 89780#

UDHD O"HdNL-LS625¥A
W3 JETIVIL SID ATIEOW
YOINISMT HONVII¥Hd 008

FITO0D JELVM
TYLNIY ¥ELIIL dELYM

YTIIYVdYSIVS SASYO 9
$T0Z ‘€T ISNOHAY-TE ATI0L

SNOISSHEDNOD 1004

NOILJI¥OSEd FDIOANI

JALSIDAT ADEHD
ALNOOD AZEOLS

ONIDYWIOYDINW I1dISHA HOIH
NIEHDS A¥NHH

LT LNIVW TIOVd X1dd0S dH
0T SINAWLSHANI 41D

Sdd 3 HLIWGHL NISVL LYEYD

NOL ‘XJFISNTID

FIONIVED

OTT TYIYLSNANT XHD
QLT N¥3X ¥ JTAVD

III HONH ‘JHHOVTIIYD

017 ADYEANT SHHATA

YOONI ¥IV 3 ONILYAH IddTd

ONI SHSIYdIELNT NOSNDIHL

ONIYAENIONE ISIM TI¥L

AIYW  ‘ NOSANOWAZE
DNI ‘TASETIA DIWYNAQ
d¥ODINN ¥ AILNAOD S¥IHNOA

NOILVIOdd0D S€d HSIA

ONI ¥SN SHOIYd
ONI SEDWIHAHT NMOJD
¥ OIAVIDO ‘VYISHID

SNOILATOS sNg DESH 0ODLSO0D

YOANIA

¥1/12/80
sTETEd

0%66L
6966L
B8S66L
LS66L
9566L

SS66L

vS66L

£S66L
ca66L

Ts66L

0Se6L

6V66L

8¥66L

LYve6L

9%66L
Sve6L
vve6L

EV66L

Zve6L
Tve6L
ovesLl
6€66L
FIHEHON
ADEHD

s3eg uny
ON 3xodsy



OLNEWVADVYS J40 FIIL NEDIOW vL66L

60°0€EL S8°L0T ¥LZOL vT/fze/8 SLI 1SOd 'SWIANIE
LT 6L 8ZTOL v1/22/8 SYAATOI NOILYOIJISSYID
PT €T 8ZTOL v1/22/8 SLENOYE D08 d0od
6L°8BE 69TOL vI/ce/8 STIEYT
8% ¥S LyZOL vr/ze/8 Yddv¥d Xd0D HSYD
€T %81 62Z0L v1/ze/8 SH17ddNS HDIAI0
56°8€ L¥ZOL v1/22/8 SNEd ‘Sa¥d Tv¥DdAT
28 ZTeoL v1/ze/8 SHITAdNS @DIAJ0
$9'69 ZTZOL v1/zZ/8 SHITddNS HITAJLO
85 LT L¥TOL v1/zz/8 SNHd INIO4TIvd
ZB"0E L¥ZOL v1/22/8 $dND WY0d
0Z"LL 8ZTOL v1/22/8 SIAATOL WIINYIW
NI SNOILNTOS FDIJJ0 OYLIN EL66L
00°00T 00°00T €9TO0L ¥1/22/8 AYESEY QETTIONYD $T/ZT/8
IHEIVOIYH ‘ YHHIMOT ZLE6L
00°000'€T 00°000‘€ET £€STOL v¥1/22/8 MNVE INIAT OVE TAWYD
OTT SINIAT INTd AINDIT TLEGL
05°08%'T 05°0% 08TOL $1/22/8
00°0%% ‘T 08TOL $1/22/8 $T0C ‘€1 ISNDAY-TE X1INL
¥ NYILSI¥HD ‘¥HTHOIIN 0LE6L
0€°'2%S 8S EVT ¥SZOL ¥1/22/8 HYOD ‘HOHSNTII-LO6ZTEAL
L' 86E ?SZOL ¥1/22/8 ONI¥YEL 'TYIS -L06CE dd
o1 ddr 6966L
0L %6Z'6 LS O0LE 0920L ¥1/22/8 MEN €102 EDIJJI0 AEA WOD
69°6T18°T 0920L ¥1/22/8 AVYIY D-Q0T88 SNDTHL
0L S0L'€E 0920L ¥1/22/8 0TX Q4 FITIINA £T0ZT FDIZIO
€% ¥E6 09z0L $1/22/8 HSNOHIYNOD SSATI™IM 0ISID
09°25¢'T 09204 $1/22/8 0TX SHEAINA dIVY HADVIOLS
TLTTIT'T 09z0L %1/22/8 €102 EDIAA0 AEQ WOD
217 HO¥N0S TII 8966L
6 8%S 9T°092 €ETOL ¥1/22/8 NOTIVYD S9 dI¥HS HLISNO
9L° 882 TEZ0L v¥1/22/8 $T0Z ISNDAY IOVIOLS WIId
NI IOW O4NI NIVINAOW NO¥I L966L
00" 9% 00°9% SLZOL %¥1/22/8 SQAYD €'AVINMOTO
SNOISSHIAWI HAILYAONNI 9966L
99°9 $9°9 L9TOL ¥1/22/8 FOLDENNOD - L9625
AYES TYIYLSAANI DITOVIAAH S966L
00°6¢L 00°6L T92Z0L ¥1/22/8 LINYHINI ZLIS
ONI ANVEAYOdd 10dS IOH 7966L
18082 6% 8T 0LzZOL y1/2e/8 LSYTII¥d IHOIT
T6'99 99T0L ¥1/22/8 5dI7ddNS
86°LT 997T0L v¥1/22/8 SHITddns
LT %S 99T0L ¥1/22/8 TIYM HAIAIA-NdAd SOLT
99°LT 99TOL ¥1/22/8 SYATINIALS-MI¥d M1
§6°19 99T0L ¥1/22/8 SHITIANS WIHIVE-MNId MT
S9°cE 99T0L ¥1/22/8 TTYM HATAIQ-O¥FId SOLT
HOIA¥ES LICEND IO4Ed FWOH €966L
00°00T 007001 S9T0L v1/22/8 NOILYAYISHE $T/91/8
TII€ ‘X¥MOTIOH z966L
00°85¢ 00°L82 6LTOL v1/22/8
00" %9 6LTOL »1/22/8
00" L 6LTOL ¥1/22/8 $T0Z ‘€T ISNONVY-TE AIAL
OHDS Q¥VYM HIN¥NOJ DIVOLSIH T966L
0% G6S'T 0% Sg¢€ ZTEZOL ¥1/22/8 -99202T QE¥N/ATd WTIJ-DWI
00°092°T zEZOL ¥1/22/8 68-6L SVME SIDYWI
TYLOL INOOWY #SNYIL aiva # 0/a NOILAT¥DSTA ADIOANI JOANIA AIENON
MDFHD MOIHD
$1/T2/8 HWALSIDIY MDFHD ¥T/T2/80 : 23°Q UNY
4 abedq AINNOD AHTIOLS STE€1E8d :ON 3jxoday



00°98T 9T12Z0L v1/22/8 SOIHAYED S5I¥VTIOd

00°89T 91Z0L vT/22/8 INIVA NOIS ¥VIE XIAOWS
00 9L 9TZO0L v1/2c/8 SUILLIAT NOILVZITHYANY.LS
IS ¥ SDOIHAWYD HAIS FHI NO 8866L
§5°0LE S§5°0LE 62T0L ¥1/22/8 FOI4I0 AIITID
DT ‘10dEA ¥IVA FLISIIO L86E6L
Z6' LS LT 95Z0L ¥1/22/8 avd FSOOW TID QYYOFATA
12971 LSZOL vt/zz/8 STHEYT SSHIAAY
ONI 10d4Zd d0Iddo 98B66L
00°59T 00°§9T S1Z0L $1/22/8 ATHSYEIWAN TYANNY XTHIVTIE
YdIN S866L
9T 6SE'V 9T 65¢’'% Y610L v1/22/8 29aD $T0Z INALD
dASY ALNNOD IVdANY YAYAIN ¥866L
$5°82C1 582 0€EZOL v1/22/8 SHITddNS HOIJAJAO HNILIVIA
000§ 0€EZOL ¥1/22/8 HHd TYI90d XTHINOKW
000§ $TZ0L ¥1/22/8 INIVH TYLIOL
(ONY) dl1 ENTd YAYAEN €866L
6L %SE’9 00" %18 €%T0L »T/22/8 YT/0T/S-%1/€/S
8Z E¥T‘T £FTOL v1/22/8 ¥1/€/S - v1/62/¢
8ET6SL'T EYTOL v1/22/8 PT/0T/S-%1/S/%
00762 EFTOL ¥1/22/8 %102/S0/%0
00°562°T E¥TOL ¥1/22/8 ¥1/92/%-%1/50/%
08°552 £¥TOL ¥1/22/8 LAY OMIEY €T0Z/L0/%0
£€789 EFTOL ¥1/22/8 $T/2T/%-%102/5/%
ALIENDES ININAOTIWI AEN T866L
¥6°29 v6°29 1ST0L ¥1/22/8 WSTYNOL XIID VINIDATA
NOIIYXYL L4ddd AIN T866L
05" L6L 05 LEL 8€Z0L ¥1/22/8 SANNOYDADYE
ALZAYS DITENd I4EA AIN 0866L
TP LP1’8 Ty LYT’8 BETOL ¥1/22/8 ISYHOINd WILYM ¥ AIAD
SANNO¥D 3 DATE NINAY AN 6L66L
LE"LBE 6L°CT TLTOL ¥1/22/8 aNog 0-852%5dd
0Z"6T TLTO0L y1/22/8 A¥ELIVI-dOHS
§5790¢€ TLIOL ¥1/22/8 IAYHS ¥EALS $36T9dd
88°21¥ TLT0L ¥1/22/8 A¥ALIVE-L06ZE ¥4
-00°06 TLIO0L ¥1/22/8 SYAIITYO-PBE6 TN
T9°S¢ TLT0L ¥1/22/8 SSYID¥EIA 85ZHSAL
-99°60¢ TLIOL ¥1/22/8 SETYALIVE SL-IM
SLI¥d OLOY DN 8L66L
00°0LS'9 00°0L5'9 66T0L ¥1/22/8 SIYYTIOA LINAQINS-INYIDSMO
ONI HDAINW LLEBL
55°999 €€ PRI $ZZ0L ¥1/22/8 ONIZOOY 1OdEA HD
8%°0T 0%2Z0L ¥1/22/8 NZSOQ/S¥IVATL
9% LE $ZZOL ¥1/22/8 ATOYD dOLS HEIL-0S
52 1¢ $ZTOL ¥1/22/8 TYOIEIDITI- " J40 SALATD
69°80T %Z20L ¥1/22/8 JIVAEY AYET 1004
§5°09T £T2Z0L y1/22/8 SEITAdNS ONILYIHAO
6L E9T £€TZOL ¥1/22/8 SEITAANS DNILVHEHIO
HAYMAEYH ASNOHANAOKW 9L66L
00°'526°2 00°526'C 9LZOL v1/22/8
I LY390d ‘SITIOW SL66L
T6°66L°T TS L09 oLTOL »1/22/8 SHIIL-TI8TSUI
00709 OLTOL ¥1/22/8 SHYIL -SZEBF-OS
007522 0LTOL ¥1/22/8 DNVIVE 3 INAOW -¥%L-3 EAId
25°L09 o0LTOL y1/z2/8 SHIIL -852%S¥d
L866T 0LTOL »1/22/8 HNOD YIONITYHI-dOHS
TYLOL LNOOWY H#SNYIL FIYAd # 0/a NOILAI¥OSEA IDIOANI Jqoandaa JEEWON
JADHHD MDEHD
$T/T2/8 HHISIDHY ADEHD ¥1/12/80 @3ed uny

s obeq AINNOD AHYOLS STETEd :oN 3x0dsy



9

L8 SLE'T
00" 0ET'S6T
6€£°092
I8°5%9°2
€2°9€T

¥9°890°'T

L6706T'T
Es f2gn

00'8LT

00708
08 %67

TYLOL
MDEHD

abed

L8°SL8’'T
00 0€T ‘56T
6€£°09C
T8°S¥9‘T
€T 9ET

L6 88t
65°C¥T

80" LES
LE'06T'T
(AR XAN

0079LT
00°2

0008
05°S39

LNOOKWY

CSTOL
0%T0L
S020L
0ETOL
0820l
T0C0L
1020L
T02OL
LLeoL

6%20L

TI8BTOL
I810L

%20l
v¥eoL

HSNVIL

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
vr/2e/8

%¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

v1/22/8
$1/22/8

qLYa

y1/12/8

ISY'IEE SMAN/VIQHW 'TYIDO0S
PI-0€-L NYHL NOILVOITITA4AY
dJYIL -TLi-4 ¥4

I ‘¥OI¥aY

A5¥NGSIA INIWHSINIYD
SENH-WO0dd d440M¥¥ Md

HOHS TAVYE-WOONE J40MA Md
a¥d LIAFYLS -JOHIDVH

ININWAYd dSVET

HSYNISId INIWHSINIVD

$I0Z ‘€1 ISNONV-TE A1TNL
ANOWWYH /0SI¥Ea
YHINNVE SSENHIYMY JOINIS

NOILAI¥DSHA FOIOANI

YALSIDEY ADHHD
ALNNOD ATJOLS

+x JIOA =*=x

*x TIOA x»=x

x% JIOA »+

*+ QIOA »»

*¥ TIOA x»

*% QIOA »»

*3 TIOA =+

% JIOA »+

+¥ AIOA ++

++ QIOA =x+

*x JIOA =*+»

*¥ QIOA +»

++ QIOA «*+

»x AQIOA =x=#

¥ QIOA =«

*¥ JQIOA =x=%

ONI SHIDILVILS dvd

ONI NOIIOQYLSNOD az0

0D ¥HEHNY ¥ HY¥IL TTIDING
S INGWHIILEY ATdWI DITTdNd

I 0D HONUYNIJ TYNOISSHIOEd

NYIddEM0d
(¥dT) TYH0TD SEMOE XENLIA

ONI SHEDIAYAS JTOVYNNIL

d OTIONY ‘INIVLIIEJ

ONI NOILVNTVAT TANNOSYHEL

JOANHA

¥1/12/80
STeTdd

¥1008

£€T008

21008

11008

01008

60008

80008

L0008

90008

s0008

voo008

€0008

2ooo0s

T0008

00008

6666L

BE66L

L666L

9666L

S666L

ve66L

£666L

Z666L

T666L

0666L

6866L

YHENON
MDHIHD

ajeqg uny
OoN 3xoday



L

TYLOL

ADHHD

abeg

LNOQOWY HSNVAL HLVA # 0/d

Y1/12/8 ¥WALSIDIY ADIHD
ALNOOD AHYOLS

£es

*x

* ¥

*x

LX)

¥

*y

¥

+¥

¥

LS

xS

*¥

*¥

¥

¥

¥

¥

* ¥

¥ ¥

*¥

* ¥

£

¥

¥

NOILAI¥DSHEd HDIOANI

daIoA

aIon

aIoA

dIoA

aIon

dIoA

aIon

daIoA

aqIon

aIoA

qIion

aIon

aIion

aioa

aIoa

aIron

aioa

aIoa

aroa

aIon

dIon

aron

aIoa

aIon

aIoAa

aroa

dIOA

aioa

¥

*¥

¥

¥

*x

'

¥

+ ¥

x4

¥

%

¥

*x

*¥

¥

¥

*a

¥ ¥

*x

*a

¥

¥

oy

VOANTA

¥1/12/80
STeTEd

Zv008
%008
07008
6€£008
8E008
Leoo8
9€008
SE008
7€008
££008
Ze008
TE008
0E008
62008
82008
L2008
9zZoos8
szoos
v2o08
€2008
22008
12008
02008
67008
81008
LT008
21008
ST008
AFTENON
JOFHD

a3ed uny
ON 3xodsyg



8

00°S¥6
S¥° 291
00" TS
67" ¥8
8Z TET’'9
88°¢€T
00°9T
ST e0¢C
80°8LZ
LO'6%8°T
687599 ‘€
00 €LE
967525 ST
0E°069
6T°6S0'C
ST E€0T
TYLOL
JADHFHO
abed

00" 16
00°'57%6
S%°2ZST
00°'1T§
6% %8

6% 19
L6919

£0°T

8L"9

TS®T

097 €%
¥STE

v L

vt e

¥ T

o€’ L

9T T

L¥'S

08" %

Lo ¢

65°%C
€9°¢

VLTI
192

88°T

8T"

00°ST

ST e02
80"8LT
LOT6%8'T

9€°5€S°¢
£S°0€T

00"eLe
$96°5ZS'ST
0€°069

£8°ST6°T
TEERT

SL 6
05" €6

LINOQOWY

¥8TI0L
CETOL
9020L
€8T0L
€LTOL

SeZoL
S€20L

6520L
6520L
6SC0L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6S20L
6520L
6520L
6520L
6SC0L
6520L

SBI0L
8TC0L
LTZ20L
LETOL

v0coL
vocoL

€0202L
00Z0L
¥YIO0L

S920L
S920L

Z8TOL
Z8TOL

H#SNVIL

vi/ze/8
y1/22/8
v1/22/8
y1/22/8
v1/z2/8

vi/ze/8
v1/22/8

¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/Te/8
y1/2e/8
¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8
vr/ze/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
y1/22/8
Y1/22/8

v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8
v1/22/8

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

¥1/22/8
v1/z2/8

y1/22/8
v1/22/8

ZILYA

vi/12/8

$10Z ‘€T 1SNOHN¥Y-TE¢ XINLD
SYIHSINONILXE ddId SL
IISOdEA 'THONd

Y102 ‘€1 ISNDAVY-TE€ X100
WSTI¥NOL DA

dor 2960-L¥8
SNOILYDINAOWWOD-2T¥9-2ST

ONINNYTII

1I

(DA) FIIA
AEANOISSTHHOD

¥a

HOIVdSIA TYEINID
JOSSISSY
ININAOTIATI AIINONWWOD
(oA) HYIA
QOOMNIIOT/HETA
NINAY/¥ETTOHIdN0D
AdTIHHS

ar

AJT¥IHS

sydoM DITand

(DA) HIIA
perclars(otolcess

AJITO

AT WOD

$I0Z ‘€1 1ISNOAV-TE X100
S5dITddNS SWA

SYIVdHEY ¥LTE

z/1 dIVddyd dug 3dyg

YIAIWNAT-Dad9 M09 dINd
SEITANS-DAdE ¥OY dINd

O¥Fd SO0LT "INIWVKW
SI¥YIOd ST0Z -LINTIDSMN
SHIIILHEA

LEEILS O3 WWOD-JHId0D
T0-9L9CND ¥HLLOTA SID

$T0T ‘€1 ISNON¥Y-1£ X1IArL

NOILdI¥DSAd FDIOANI

FHALSIDAY MDEHD
ALNNOD AFYOLS

Ydd TYNOILYN HLVYLS ¥HATIS
TT NOILOHLOYd JAId YIdHEIS
ANYIWOD TYDIWIHD VIUHAIS
NATIVY NYI¥E ‘JYOHS

ONI SEDIA¥ES TVdOTdD DdS

ONI SEDIA¥ES TVHOTID DdS

a7 NI SIDIA¥AS TIVHOTID DHES
ONI ¥ELNIDIYY SXYYW INIVS
ONI 0ODddnd

ONI 0D INEWAINOA SSo¥

SHOIAYES ALEAYS HOHL YO

UIENNT ONHA
NI ONIAYOSANY'T NIHID ONHI
qYFD ® SHTIDAD ONHY

NI HAIT QUVANYLIS HONVITIA

(¥D) ONI 0D NVDHOW AV

W YIANYS 'aq304avyd
FOaNIA

yT/12/80
STETdd

65008

85008

LS008

95008

S5008

¥S008

€5S008

25008

15008

0s008

€%008

8%008

Lv008

97008

s¥008

77008

£%008

FIEWAN
ADHEHD

93ed Uuny
oN 3xodayg



6

00°Sce

00°2Z6'€

00°S¥%

00°L8S'L

00°0%C
vo9 81T
T0°TL9°€E
00°89T

00" LTIE

CE'T0E

00°S61°2

S2°899

00°209°T

00°2LY

00'9¢

18°919°2
S9°0PT’T
68" €LT
00°68¢2
00" 16
TYLOL
JDHEHD

sbedg

00°s22
00°9%T
00°8%L T
00°008'T
00" %0T
00°00T
00°%2
00°S%

00 8EQ'S
00618
00°029'T
00766
00°TT
00°0%¢Z
$3°8TT
TO'TL9'E
00°89T
00°86T
00°6TT
€9°LST
69°€%T
00°0LL'T
00°S0%
00°02
52" 899
00"SEF'T
0072971
00°S

00" 2Ly
00°2

00" %€
18°919°¢Z
S9°0FT'T
68 ELT
00" SET
00" %ST
LNNOWY

cTToL
S6TO0L
S6T0L
S6TO0L
S6T0L
S6T0L
S6TO0L
ZvI0L
T6TOL
T6T0L
T6T0L
T6T0L
T6T0L
L¥TOL
T820L
2920L
TZ20L

68T0L
68T0L

0TZ0L
0TZ0L

88TOL
88TOL
88TOL
06TOL
L8TOL
LBTOL
L8TOL
8%TOL

98T0L
98TO0L

6020L
6TZ0L
T¥ToL
SYTI0L

ozzoL

HSNVIL

v¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
$¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
vT/2C/8
y1/z2/8
¥1/22/8
%¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
%¥1/22/8

»1/22/8
v1/22/8

¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8

v1/ze/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
y1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8

v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
$1/22/8

2LYa

¥1/12/8

SWJOJAINN HAJISHY/WIHINI

¥10Z ‘0T 1IsSNoN¥-81 A1I0r

AV¥a 2/1T
$10Z ‘€T 1ISNON¥-TE X100

LIndnog

$T10Z ‘€1 1LSNON¥-T¢ ATNL
MDOLSHWOD 3 DA 5.0Ad #T
HSYNESIC INIAWHSINGYD
66%2%8-LOOY dSYAT dFIJO0OD

LNIYW WHLSAS JALYM 2L IS

ddI~- N¥dd SOLT
S/M- N¥Ed SO0LT

$10Z ‘€1 IsSNONY-1£ ATAL

*INTVW QL1 ST/9/S-%T/L/S

¥102 ‘€1 1SNONY-TE ATAL

¥102/01/8 - %10Z/1/T

$T0Z ‘€1 ISNONY-T¢ X1IAL
1304d0s gNar

SdITddNS ONINVATO
YI¥O.1 0

SAYYD SSHENISNG 54 ¥ ad

SAYYD SSANISNY

NOILAI¥OSHd ADIOANT

YILSIDEA ADIHO
ALNNOD AdJ0LS

SHIVIDOSSY »® JINTYM

dAA SANVTIHOIH YINIOIIA

ONI S¥A0L ALID VINIDAIA

ISHA TYY0Td ALID VINIDIIA

0D ¥¥ FIAONEL ¥ VINIDIIA

ALIDOTEA OHAIA
ONI IOW SHDIAYHS HSYD ¥SN
UNIJ INZWAINOA dYOONVE SO

SAS ¥ILYM SMOAVIW TAMDNAL

ONI SHININIA-IAL

INIWINAOIAWT TVIEANID IdL

SZ0GMOD INOLSHEWOL FHL

ONI SWHLSAS HDEL NXS

SHSTYJYILNA A¥Ad NNS

28504 JEIL ALNNOD AHIOLS

AOI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D IS
ONI SEDIAYIAS ALITIIN €4S
III r DINIWOQ ‘ENOOTIVAS

YEINED DN¥d ® d004 SHLIKWS

Y€ DTT SEIYLSNANI ADITS
YOANIA

¥1/12/80
STeTdd

6L008

8L008

LLoO8

aLooe

SLOO8
¥L008
€L008
2L008

TLOOS8

oLo08

69008

89008

L9008

99008

S9008

79008
€9008
29008

19008

09008

TTFHNON

ADHEHD
t 93ed uny
ioN 3xodsy



89°C6L E6Y TYLOL SADIHD

00°00T 00°00T ¥9T0L v1/22/8 NOILVA¥ESTY ¥T1/6/8
NOONWJH ‘ONIQTIM 98008

00°668 00°668 vozZoL v1/22/8 HEdTd LAINJEINI OTXOT
OTT YAVAEIN LINISEM 58008

00°8L 00°8L LLZOL v1/2T2/8 AYYION
ANVIWOD ALHNNS NIFLSEM 78008

€6°S¥L’'S €L°988'F% 8220L y1/22/8 S0XKW

0T 658 8220L v1/22/8 DV¥Id ALTJVS ‘TYES LANNOH
0D ATddNS VAVAIN NJYALSEM £8008

€¥ TISE ¥6°TO€E 92ZcoL ¥1/22/8 AYDIUIOETE NJIEI SOLT

S0°9T 922Z0L v¥1/22/8 LOETE N¥Ed SOLT

¥voee 9220L vT/22/8 IOETE Nddd SOLT
ONI 0DaIM 28008

z9°080°'2C z9°080°¢2 96T0L ¥1/22/8 PIATOL SYOINISAMADT STVHAW
AJES VOINFS ALNNOD FOHSYM 18008

0099902 00°999°0Z 8%20L ¥1/22/8 LIOVELINOD DISNF¥0d ST/%10Z
H0IJd0 SAITYTHS 0D HOHSYM 08008

00°999'T 00°999°'T SCT0L ¥1/22/8 SHDIAYES LSIXFE0T

TYLOL LNOOWY #SNVIL 4I¥a # 0/d NOILITYDSHA HOIOANI FOANHIA HHHWNAN
MDEHD ADHEHD
Y1/IZ/8 ¥WILSIOEA MDEHD ¥T/1T/80 * @3eQ@ uny

0T ©obeq AINNOD ATIOLS STETEd ON axodsy



YANOISSIWWOD

v1/22/8 HEIY¥d XDIHD B9 Z6LEED TYLOL SMDHUHD

NOILVZI¥OHINY ANV MHIAGY A0 INIWIDATTIMONNDY



T

0L 6T0'%

0L 6T0'¥

TYLOL
aavo

abeg

ive
824
ve
¥ve
ove
6€C
LET

8EPT
8EVT

6€C
(324

62¢
6cc
8E¥T
vve
vve
vve
vy
vve
Tve
SEPT
8e¥T
0eZ
ve
Lez
LET
e

#ENVIL

YANOISSTHHNOD

¥1/22/8 4 AMIAODEY SUYTAVSHAINA
$1/22/8 I AYEA0DEY SYIAVSANINA
¥1/22/8 ONIddIHS VKWI SHYT VKW
$1/22/8 LINOW ANZ ISISSY NIWAY

¥1/2Z/8  EONEMEANOD ALVIS VAV
¥1/22/8 dO INTd dIM-ANSTIINGL
¥1/22/8 ONTSEW/ ONIHOIVW ¥dvd
v1/22/8 MITEEAYN
v1/22/8 YSITHN/¥IdOT

%1/22/8 MOVY AVI4SIA dOHS LAID
¥1/22/8 %1-01-6 ONIANALLY ¥ad
¥1/22/8 ¥M’MENDS-DQ¥d XD¥ ALNd
¥1/22/8 TYM DNIQIAIQ-0¥Ed SOLT

v1/22/8 $102/0T/80 SYD
v1/z2/8 T0Z/%T/80 SY¥D
v1/2e/8 $T0Z/%0/80 S¥D
v1/22/8 NESOa
v1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
¥1/22/8
v¥1/22/8 TIOL ¥VD TYINII

¥1/22/8 ENIHOVYW DO ¥OJ ¥OLAYAY
¥1/22/8 SHIVTd QIATIONI
$1/22/8 ¥1IS D 'S TLE -IANYAINI
¥1/22/8 HEMAIS JSIA SID ITOEWNH

vr/ze/8 $1/01/8 NNIQ DNIL
¥1/22/8 OSWI DOS TVDIYOLSIH AN
v1/cz/8 91-0T/8 ST¥EN DNAL

ZLYa NOILAT¥OSHA

YILSIDIY YYD ASYHDAUN

ALNNOD AEYOLS

*TB30L PIeD#

ANYEA-69%006
INYII-697006
ANYIA~869S
INYII-6L2920

¥IV ISEMHINOS

L/8 DY¥S N5D-XEMES
ONIVAL JA¥OTY

$1/8/8 TENA JAQADTA
FOYLSOd

WOD " 0DZSXY'IISIA DA
IHDIN T/JNODSOIAAN
9/8LSNANI NIZLTM-MO
§/8 A1ddOS ANOd-MOD
&0Ls AIND NYWIID
ATIIAYH NYWIID

HIYD NIATOD NYWIID
1I0¥d

ONN ¥ZLSOd-HAH

DON ONINIYA-HAT
AYYION ¥OISSAL-HAH
ONN ¥0d TASVA-HIE
OON DNINIYd -HAZ
INEHSINEWNITS HLOISIA
ANg 1SEE MO

OYAOYN 3 YOID

LIV -NIAEN'D

HONOT S.0g

¥AYOHII/ 006950# HIOT
JaADFA/ 8¥90%0# HINY
¥Q¥OoHY/ 8TSTE0# HIAY

INSWAYd QIYD TYIDYIWNOD HNO STTaM

# EDIOANI Id3d-aNnJd

doaANIN

v1/T2/80
1S087S€d

92

AFFUON
2d

s3eq uny
toN 3xodsy



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consen(j,qf Regular agenda [28 Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: National Preparedness Month Proclamation

2. Recommended motion: I hereby move to_Proclaim September 2014 as National Preparedness
Month in Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin & Joe Curtis
Department: Community Services & Emergency Management Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: ’

Every year the President issues a proclamation declaring September as National Preparedness Month.
Several state governments have also followed suit and provided proclamations raising awareness for
emergency preparedness in their respective states. We are encouraging Storey County to take concrete
action toward preparing for emergencies and disasters by declaring September National Preparedness
Month in Storey County. NPM was originally created by the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s
(FEMA) Ready Campaign in response to the tragic events of 9/11 in order to educate the public on how to
prepare for emergencies. This year’s NPM campaign focuses on the theme: “Be Disaster Aware, Take
Action to Prepare.”

5. Supporting materials: Proclamation attached

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Revjewed by:
epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
p N ounty Manager Other agency review:
;

9, Bo_ard action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
—_—

Agenda Item No. q



CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

FEMA and the Ready Campaign urge communities around the country to take the pledge in order to be
better prepared for disasters. Emergency preparedness is the responsibility of every citizen of Storey
County, It takes a team effort to ensure that we are ready for any disaster. Please help us encourage
individuals, families, organizations, and businesses within our community to make an emergency plan, put
together an emergency supply kit, and join in local efforts to become a community preparedness partner.

The Ready Campaign encourages everyone to participate in preparedness activities and to get their families,
businesses, neighborhoods, and communities prepared. Only by working together as a team, can we be
truly ready for emergencies and disasters. For free information on how to get prepared, individuals can visit
the Ready websites at Ready.gov and Listo.gov. These activities, along with a vigilant public, contribute to
an overall level of preparedness that is critical to the safety of Storey County and the entire country.



PROCLAMATION

National Preparedness Month, September 2014

WHEREAS, “National Preparedness Month” creates an important opportunity for every
resident of STOREY COUNTY to prepare their homes, businesses, and communities for any
type of emergency including natural disasters and potential terrorist attacks; and

WHEREAS, investing in the preparedness of ourselves, our families, businesses, and
communities can reduce fatalities and economic devastation in our communities and in our
nation; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Ready Campaign, Citizen
Corps and other federal, state, local, tribal, territorial, private, and volunteer agencies are
working to increase public activities in preparing for emergencies and to educate individuals on
how to take action; and

WHEREAS, emergency preparedness is the responsibility of every citizen of STOREY
COUNTY and all citizens are urged to make preparedness a priority and work together, as a
team, to ensure that individuals, families, and communities are prepared for disasters and
emergencies of any type; and

WHEREAS, all citizens of STOREY COUNTY are encouraged to participate in citizen
preparedness activities and asked to review the Ready campaign’s websites at Ready.gov or
Listo.gov (in Spanish) and become more prepared.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS hereby proclaims September 2014 as National Preparedness Month, and
encourages all citizens and businesses to develop their own emergency preparedness plan, and
work together toward creating a more prepared society.

DATED this 2™ Day of September 2014 by the STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Marshall McBride, Chairman



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5-10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of approval of Six Mile Canyon
Drainage Improvement Grant Professional Engineering Services Agreement with Farr
West Engineering.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve the Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Grant
Project Professional Engineering Services Agreement between Storey County and Farr
West Engineering.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: In 2009, Storey County submitted a Grant Application through the Nevada
Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Pre Disaster Mitigation funding for the Six Mile
Canyon Drainage Improvement Project. The goals and objectives of this project are to reduce the
community impacts due to roadway closures resulting from the flooding of Six Mile Canyon
Road/State Road 79. Six Mile Canyon Road/State Road 79 is a major thoroughfare and is heavily
traveled by commuters. CONTINUED ON PAGE 2

5. Supporting materials: 1. Farr West Engineering Proposal
2. Division of Emergency Management Six Mile Canyon Drainage
Improvement Project Grant Award odQo-o30 $%7%0

6. Fiscal impact: Ronp TmpPrewEmenT « SIA A
Funds Available: YES Fund: /Z Z Comptroller
7. Legal review required Lo
% District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
s Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

il
(:7 Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9.'7Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |0



Staff Summary Continued from Page 1:

The Road suffered significant damage during previous storm events and is in of need of an
improved storm drainage system to lessen the impact of flooding to Storey County's population.
The road was closed for 6 months in 2005 due to extensive roadway damage resulting from
flooding, and while repairs were made to make the road passable, additional storm drainage
systems are needed to ensure damage of this magnitude does not occur again. The proposed
activity is upgrade of the storm drainage system and upgrade of all culverts to meet flood capacity.

As part of the grant award, we have been granted funds to be used for Project Management, Bid
Solicitation Services, Engineering Design, Permitting Services and Construction Phase services.
We are coming to you to seek approval to enter into contract with Farr West Engineering (our
Engineer of record for the county) to provide these services. Per NAC 333.150- Requirements for
contract for services of independent contractor; competitive selection; request for proposals;
effective date. (NRS 333.130, 333.135) Such a contract which by its nature is not adapted to be
awarded by competitive selection, including, without limitation, a contract for: Professional
services, including, without limitation, a contract for the services of: A professional engineer.
According to a 1977 Attorney General Opinion, if a construction manager is used solely for
consulting or coordinating purposes, public bidding is not necessary to contract for such services.




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

August 20, 2014

Cherie Nevin
Community Services Officer
Storey County

RE: List of Tasks for 6 Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project
Dear Cherie,

Per your request, the following are the tasks we anticipate for the 6 Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement
Project:

Task 1 — Project Management
A. Coordination with the client
B. Status reports for grant funding agency
C. Quality assurance and quality control
D. Project administration
E. County in-kind coordination
Task 2 — Support of Lands and Permitting
A. Determine land and permitting requirements (if any).
B. Provide engineering support to County (easement documentation, permit applications).
Task 3 — Detailed Design
A. Site surveying
Geotechnical investigation
Preliminary design
Final design
. Specifications and bidding documents

MY QW

Task 4 — Procurement Assistance

>

Adpvertise project

Provide copies of bid documents to bidders
Pre-bid meeting

Respond to questions

Prepare addendum if needed

Attend bid opening

Prepare bid tab

Prepare recommendation for award of contract

TOmMEU QW

5442 Longley Lane, Suite A ¢ Reno, Nevada 89511 ¢ (775) 851-4788
421 Court Street » Elko, Nevada 89801  (775) 738-2121
www.farrwestengineering.com



Task 5 — Construction Management and Inspection Services
Pre-construction conference

Obtain and review contractor’s contract, insurance and bonds
Review submittals

Respond to requests for information (RFI’s).
Review change orders and work change directives
Provide routine inspection

Provide inspection reports

Review applications for payment

Prepare punch list

Final inspection

Prepare as-built record drawings

ANCrEmammUOW R

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Bt e

Brent Farr, P.E.
President

PAGE 2



SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of , 2014 (“Effective Date”) between Storey
County ("Owner") and Farr West Engineering (“Engineer”). Owner's Project, of which Engineer's services
under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as follows: Six Mile Canyon Drainage

Improvement Project, funded in part by a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant.

Engineer’s Services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows: Provide engineering design

and specifications for bidding of the Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project in accordance with
the FEMA Grant Application and the Storey County Comprehensive Flood Control Plan prepared by Farr

West Engineering (December, 2011). Engineer will also provide bidding, construction management and

full-time construction inspection services.

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:

1.01

A.

2.01

3.01

Basic Agreement

Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth in this Agreement. If
authorized by Owner, or if required because of changes in the Project, Engineer shall furnish
services in addition to those set forth above. Owner shall pay Engineer for its services as set forth in
Paragraphs 7.01.

Payment Procedures

Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and
submit the invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of
receipt. If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 30 days
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of
1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day.
In addition, Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under
this Agreement until Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and
other related charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension.
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.

Termination
The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated:

1. For cause,

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 1




4.01

a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the
other party to perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the
terminating party. Failure to pay Engineer for its services is a substantial failure to
perform and a basis for termination.

b. By Engineer:

1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform
services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or

2) upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services for the Project are delayed
for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s control.

Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination by Engineer under
Paragraph 3.01.A.1.b.

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a
substantial failure under Paragraph 3.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins,
within seven days of receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform
and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of
notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be
reasonably cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to
cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period
provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of
receipt of the notice.

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon Engineer's receipt of written notice from Owner.

The terminating party under Paragraph 3.01.A may set the effective date of termination at a time up
to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow Engineer to complete tasks whose value would
otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to
assemble Project materials in orderly files.

In the event of any termination under Paragraph 3.01, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner
and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with this
Agreement and all reimbursable expenses incurred through the effective date of termination.

Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 4.01.B the assigns
of Owner and Engincer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the
successors, executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other
party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement.

Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including,
but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement without the

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 2




5.01

written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is
mandated or restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility
under this Agreement.

Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create,
impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any contractor, subcontractor,
supplier, other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of
Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.

General Considerations

The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by
Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.
Engineer makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in
connection with Engineer’s services. Subject to the foregoing standard of care, Engineer and its
consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily
furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers,
and the publishers of technical standards.

Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any contractor's
work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety
precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any
failure of a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor's
furnishing and performing of its work.

This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is
located.

Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for any
contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the contract between Owner
and such contractor. Engineer is not responsible for variations between actual construction bids or
costs and Engineer's opinions or estimates regarding construction costs.

Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or
supplier, or of any of their agents or employees or of any other persons (except Engineer’s own
employees) at the Project site or otherwise furnishing or performing any construction work; or for
any decision made regarding the construction contract requirements, or any application,
interpretation, or clarification of the construction contract other than those made by Engineer.

All documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are instruments of service, and Engineer retains
an ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such
documents, whether or not the Project is completed. Owner shall have a limited license to use the
documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 3




6.01

receipt by Engineer of full payment for all services relating to preparation of the documents and
subject to the following limitations: (1) Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended
or represented to be suitable for use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse
by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any other use or
purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such use or reuse, or any
modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer,
as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or
legal exposure to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and
consultants; (3) Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors,
members, partners, agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification
of the documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and (4) such
limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other, and the
other’s employees, officers, directors, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims
for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting
from, or in any way related to the Project, and (2) agree that Engineer’s total liability to Owner
under this Agreement shall be limited to $50,000 or the total amount of compensation received by
Engineer, whichever is greater.

The parties acknowledge that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any services related to a
Hazardous Environmental Condition (the presence of asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous
substances or waste as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq., or radioactive materials). If Engineer or any other party
encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition, Engineer may, at its option and without liability
for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the
Project affected thereby until Owner: (1) retains appropriate specialist consultants or contractors to
identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental Condition;
and (2) warrants that the Site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations.

Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days
after notice of dispute. If negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, then the dispute
shall be mediated. If mediation is unsuccessful, then the parties may exercise their rights at law.

Total Agreement

This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.
This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed

written instrument.

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 4




7.01  Basis of Payment—Lump Sum
A. Using the procedures set forth in Paragraph 2.01, Owner shall pay Engineer as follows:
1. A Lump Sum amount of $280.000.

B. The portion of the compensation amount billed monthly for Engineer's services will be based upon
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during the billing
period.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of
which is indicated on page 1.

OWNER: ENGINEER:

By: By:

Title: Title: President

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Address for giving notices: Address for giving notices:
Farr West Engineering
5442 Longley Lane, Suite A
Reno, Nevada 89511

EJCDC E-520 Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Engincer for Professional Services.
Copyright ©2009 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 5







James M. Wright
Director

Brian Sandoval
Governoe

Christopher B. Smith
Chief

Division of Emergency Management
Homeland Security
2478 girview Drive
Carson City, Nevada 89701
‘Telephone (775) 6870300 @ Fax (775) 687-0322 @ hytp: / /dem stmte.mvas/

June 16, 2014

Mr. Pat Whitten

Storey County Manager

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440-0176

Dear Mr. Whitten:
RE: PDM 2010 - Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project

| 'am pleased to inform you that FEMA approved the 2010 Pre Disaster Mitigation funding for
Storey County’s Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project.

The federal funding awarded equals $1,115,037.05; the 25 percent cost share, which is the
responsibility of the local jurisdiction, is $371 679.02; total amount of eligible costs is
$1,486,716.07. For your reference, the approved budget is enclosed with this letter. The project
period begins May 8, 2014 and ends May 7, 2017.

A performance and financial report is required on a quarterly basis, as shown in the timetable
below. A sample of the report form is attached, and a template in Excel format will be provided
for your convenience. For reimbursement, submit the completed reports and backup
documentation for ali expenditures to the attention of Karen Johnson, Nevada Division of
Emergency Management (NDEM).

Jan-Mar — Due Second Thursday of Apr Jul-Sep — Due Second Thursday of Oct
Apr-Jun - Due Second Thursday of Jui Oct-Dec — Due Second Thursday of Jan

An award package is enclosed for signature. Keep the “confirmation copy” for your records and
return the “original” as soon as possibie to the address listed above, attention: Rick Martin.

Capitol l’uhu .. rlmuml]uam_c f\wistamc g Dn hmn of 111(‘1“‘(‘]!(“ Mmmauuuu* hmelw.nm I{L\]}Ull‘sﬂ (Jomm:st.lon y




Pat Whitten
Page 2
June 16, 2014

The NDEM appreciates Storey County’s understanding that reimbursement of expenditures is
contingent upon the legislative Interim Finance Committee (IFC) consideration of the budgetary
acceptance of this federal award at their anticipated meeting in August. Please note that grant
management must adhere to the Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations and generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, financial records for this award must be kept three years beyond the
end of the state's performance period. The NDEM will provide written notice of the end of the
state’s performance period. As a reminder, project awards more than $25,000 may be audited
by FEMA.

Thank you for your cooperation and assisting the NDEM in documenting our compliance with
the federal grant management regulations. If you have any questions concerning this award,
please call Karen Johnson, kijohnson@dps state.nv.us, at (775) 687-0373, or Rick Martin,
rmartin@dos. state.nv.us , at (775) 687-0314.

) ;
Bés}rggardsr 'Sl
radr {
f'; [4 >4, [/
, | /AT
/ 1/ i'-?‘ '11 [\ )

| Christopher B. Smith
CBS/kjlcm

Attachments: Scope of Work/Budget
Assurances and Cetrtifications
Grant Award
Sample Quarterly Fiscal/Program Report

- Capitol Police o' Criminal Justice Assistance ® Division of Emergency Management 8 Emergency Response Commission

State Fire Marshal @ Inyvestigations 13, PatrolDivision @ Office of Traffic 3
Parole and Probation & Records & Technology Division # State Board of Parole Commivsioners ® Traini ng Division




STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Virginia City, NV 89440-0007

PROJECT TITLE:  Six Mile Canyon Drainage Improvement Project

Grant Award
SUBGRANTEE: Storey County |PROJECT NO: z :9:(.__?1 -3000
ADDRESS: PO Box 7 Gar 23 =

PROJECT NUMBER: PDMC-PJ-09-NV-2010-002 FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS: $1,115,037.05
MATCHING FUNDS: $371,679.02
GRANT PERIOD: 51812014 . to. 572017 ~|TOTAL: $1,486,716.07

APPROVED BUDGET FOR PROJECT

CATEGORY TOTAL PROJECT COSTS

Personnel

$33,819.32

Consuitants/Contracts

$1,452,896.75

Travel

Supplies/Operating

Equipment

Training

|Planning

Management & Administration

Total Project Cost

$1,486,716.07

Division of Emergency Management, Nevada Depariment of Public Safety. This award is subject to availability of
federal funding.
Special Conditions: This award is conditional upon its approval by the Interim Finance Committee at the anticipated

Augusi 2014 meeting. (If Applicable) This project is approved subject to such conditions or limitations
as set forth on the attached page(s).

This award is subject to the requirements (federal, program and financial assurances) eslablished by the federal government and

AGENCY APPROVAL SUBGRANTEE ACCEPTANCE
\ Ghristopher B. Smith, Chief Pat Whitten, County Manager
.-Name-and Tille/of Appointing Official Name and Title of Appointing Official
SOV [
X.’r. J "I-:- [ ! L O W ae N T R
3 H f | £ -..;_' | 5,“.‘ :}‘-‘*h})x.‘ ‘J‘;LE%,'S
Signature of Approving Official Date:

Form: OEM-001




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 9-2-\H Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 8§47-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

x__ Department Department Name: Community Development
"'?‘Mnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
—_t

Agenda Item No. \ \



Storey County Community Bevelopment
Business (o) Lirensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 ¢ buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office August 25, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the September 2, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. AGGREGATE RESOURCE DRILLING, LLC — Contractor / 4080 Commercial Ave ~ Springfield, OR
(rock driller)

B. BW CABINETS & DOORS, INC. — Contractor / 52 Miles Road ~ Carson City (cabinet sales/installer)

C. PAUL BROOKS GENERAL CONTRACTOR - Contractor / 199 East Winnie Lane ~ Carson City, NV

(Contractor)

TFG CONSULTING, LLC - General / 1273 Lariat Court ~ Minden (Consultant)

WINDAK, INC. — Contractor / 1254 26™ Street ~ Hickory, NC (servicing equipment in County)

DAVE’S HANDYMAN SERVICES — General / 1647 Clover Leaf Drive ~ Sparks (Handyman)

AT

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/2014 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Dave Szabo, VFW Commander to make presentation to SCSO and SCFD

2. Recommended motion No action

3. Prepared by: Sheriff Antinoro
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: This is a presentation only wherein the VFW would like to recognize a
member of SCSO and SCFD for their service.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

p—— B
L
] — .

( ~ M) _€ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. \ 2,



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 2, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2014-014. By Mark Stevens in the Virginia City Highlands 1
Acre Estates located at 2010 Silverado Road, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-081-38). A request for
Variance for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet rear-yard setback for the
placement of a proposed single-family residence. Also, the Applicant requests a Variance for the
allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than 50% of the depth of the lot from the front

property line.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning
-Commission and Staff, the Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report, and other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] move to
approve with conditions Variance Number 2014- 014 for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the
required 40 feet rear-yard setback for the placement of a proposed single-family residence and also, for
approval of a Variance for the allowance of a detached accessory building to be located 40 feet from the
front property line from the required 60 feet.

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The Applicant requests a Variance for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required
40 feet rear-yard setback for the placement of a proposed single-family residence. Also, the Applicant
requests a Variance for the allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than 50% of the depth of
the lot from the front property line.

5. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
./ _Department Head Department Name:
(.--’?] B County Manager Other agency review: -

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No. |5

R —



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

[u,
To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: - September 2, 2014 at 10am

Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:
File: |
Applicant:
Property Owner:
Property Location:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada §9440 |
Dessie Redmond, Planner

2014;014

Mark Stevens

Mark Stevens

2010 Silverado Road, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-081-38)

Figure 1-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figures 3 through 6-Site Photos;
Figures 7-Site Plan Submitted by Applicant; Figure 8-Abutting Land Uses

Appendix 1-Justification of Project Submitted by Applicant

Storey County Code-Sections 17.03.140 Variances; 17.12.048 Accessory Buildings;
17.40 Estate Zone and the Storey County Master Plan

Request: A Variance for a reduced rear yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet rear
yard setback for the placement of a proposed single-family residence. Also, a request
for a Variance for the allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than
50% of the depth of the lot from the front property line.

o— 0
Introduction

Staff Report - 2014-014



Bt gl RS 2 1. BACKGROUND &

ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at 2010
Silverado Road in the Virginia City
Highland one acres, Storey County,
Nevada (Assessor Parcel Number
(APN) 003-091-38). The property is
approximately 1 acre and is owned
by the Applicant. Virginia City is
approximately eight miles to the south,
and south Reno is approximately 12
miles to the northwest (Figure 1 -
Vicinity Map).The subject property is
1o ' zoned Virginia City Highland 1 Acre
' ' Estates (E1 VCH) (Figure 2 - Zoning
' Map). The subject property is currently
vacant. There are some improvements
i | on the property including a well and a
15 septic tank (Figures 3 through 6: Site
| Photos).

Figure 1 - Vicinity Map

Subject Property

' K The subject property is accessed off
Y ' | Geiger Grade Road onto Cartwright
o6l 22 ‘ ' : Road and onto Sazarac Road and off
: “it Silverado Road. The lot is a corner lot
e with Silverado Road along the south
RN property line and Alpine Road along the
i1 8 _ . south property line.

1.2 Proposed Use

The Applicant proposes to construct

ot a single-family residence with a total

e livable space of 1536 square feet along
NI with a detached garage (accessory

501 1 iz i) building) of 900 square feet (Appendix

1 - Justification of Project Submitted by

Applicant).

Figure 2 - Zoning Map

Oo— 0
Staff Report - 2014-014 Background & Analysis



1.3 Application for a Variance

The Applicant proposes to locate a residence generally in the center of the lot. The proposed residence
meets both the front yard and side yard setback requirements. However, because the lot is narrow in
width, the rear yard setback requirement can not be met. Therefore, the Applicant requests a Variance
for a reduced rear yard setback. The proposed rear yard setback is 20 feet from the 40 feet required year
yard setback (Figure 7 - Site Plan Submitted by Applicant) (SCC 17.40 Estate Zone, page 10 of this
Staff Report).

Further, because the lot is narrow in width the detached garage is proposed to be closer than 50% of the
depth of the lot from the front property line. Therefore, the Applicant also requests a Variance for the
allowance of a detached accessory building to be closer than 50% of the depth of the lot from the front
property line (SCC 17.12.48 Accessory Buildings, Page 8 of this Staff Report).

1.4 Variances

The SCC 17.03.140 Variances states: A Variance to the provisions of this title may be granted by
the Board with action by the Planning Commission where by reason of exceptional narrowness,
shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or
by reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional situation or

condition of the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted under this title would result

in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue hardships upon the owner
of property.

Within this section of the SCC it also states: The Board’s approval, approval with conditions, or
denial of a Variance must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed use is appropriate in the
location for which it is approved. The findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited

in an approval; the body may include additional findings in their decision. The Board and Planning

Commission must cite findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial. At

a minimum, the approval must be based on findings that the proposal:

1. That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,

topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would deprive

the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification;

2. That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the applicant; and

3. That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

Staft believes the shape of this specific piece of property creates an exceptional condition of the parcel,
and therefore, the Applicant faces a hardship specific to this subject parcel.

a8

=,

Staff Report - 2014-014 Background & Analysis



Figure 3 - Site Photo standing on Silverado Road looking west across width of property.

TN L 5

o y y

Figure 4 - Site Photo standing centrally within the roperty looking east onto Silverado Road.

[ u]
Staff Report - 2014-014 Background & Analysis




;e S =

septic improvements.

-

Figure 5 - Site Photo showing

m, 0
Staff Report - 2014-014 Background & Analysis




weolddy Aq pepiugns ueld aus-,omdiy o

_
wi Wy . oy 1 | _
18137 88) v ' b8! 1o “ aht _
\ 1809-00k Lo\, Y oowdIIANC _
SN C
/] —O o 1 (D J i
~ .oJ Jr =+ Q012 Azry “n||0m —
hl ¥ r 0 r £« ﬁ ﬁ ‘ pl O.T R =91
i N ﬂ S )
- 96 __ .:TM nt ¥
e m
a«,«mnmﬂnnn@ mr|1u~ z
_
Reoy4 sts \ ONi 1 M
i3S § o .M\\. Jam” N
Ib _
¥ ]
LT
WAL | |
' L |
2
Al \m&m e - - == = __
!
WOV oMM h2PMZ MuSiag m.rN.oM |
%MJOIT P_C_ﬂ_JG.HvD. \WATJWQEJ i _
Saynivig Ol PAWYR Ao DIsSYn 5 !
Joven 130 C0b+HIVA T 033 Zyesqeg) Isno| )
Lo0zg r=3 NESOW TA MLILS 224 NB1L _ 7
Zg »36 JO MUY VY QC-1Q0-£ # G| xvL !
VA oovwImig oloz | |
YOYAIN AnNnoD ANOLS “ |
o qu o AxD VINIDYIA _
: =]

Background & Analysis

Staff Report - 2014-014



igure 8 - Abutting Lan Uses

1.5 Adjacent Properties Existing Land Uses
All of the abutting properties are vacant (Figure 8 - Abutting Land Uses).

1.6 Abutting Properties Zoning
All of the abutting properties are zoned E1 VCH (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

1.7 Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association

The subject property is located within the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association
(VCHPOA) one acres; and therefore, the final structure elevations and drawings must be approved
by the VCHPOA and comply with the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC & R’s) of the

VCHPOA.

intentionally left blank

5]
Background & Analysis

o
Staff Report - 2014-014



2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY’S
GUIDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Table 1: Land Use Compatibility

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan) designations and zoning
for the land surrounding the proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal
and SCC Title 17 Zoning or the Master Plan. The proposed use is also consistent with the surrounding
single-family residential uses and vacant parcels.

Table 1: Land Use Compatibility
Land Land Use Master Plan Zoning |
Applicant's Land Proposed single-family residence with reduced rear setback | Single-family residential E1 VCH
Land to south Vacant Single-family residentiat E1 VCH
Land to west Vacant Single-family residential E1 VCH
Land to north Vacant Single-family residential E1 VCH
Land to east Vacant Single-family residential El1 VCH

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 Storey County Code 17.12.048 Accessory Buildings
The following provisions apply to the location and placement of accessory buildings unless otherwise
provided in this title:

A. A detached accessory building less than 400 square feet in area may not exceed 20 feet in height.
Detached accessory buildings in the E, F, and R zones may not exceed two stories or 35 feet in height.

The Applicant’s property does conform to this standard as the garage is proposed not to exceed 35
feet in height.

B. A detached accessory building in the E zone may not be closer than 50 % of the depth of the lot from
the front property line, or 60 feet, whichever is less;

The Applicant’s property proposes to locate a garage 40 feet from the front property line. The depth
of the subject lot is 120 feet. Therefore, the Applicant requests a Variance from this standard.

C. A detached accessory structure exceeding 200 square feet in area but not more than 400 square feet in
area may not be located closer than 5 feet from the property line. Unless otherwise stated in this title, all
accessory structures exceeding 400 square feet in area must meet standard setback requirements.

The Applicant’s property does conform to this standard. The proposed garage meets the front, side
and rear yard setbacks.

(=,

—0
Staff Report - 2014-014 General Compliance with SC's Guiding Documents & Compliance with the SCC

8



D. On a corner lot facing two streets, a detached accessory may not be located at a distance less than the
required front yard or street side yard setback area.

The Applicant’s property does conform to this standard.

E. Accessory buildings in the E, R, and SPR zones, if two stories in height, may not be located closer than
five feet to any interior property line.

The Applicant’s is not proposing a two story garage and therefore the Applicant’s proposal conforms
to this standard.

F. It is unlawful to construct, erect, or locate in any E, R, or SPR zone private garages or other accessory
buildings without a principal building, except: a temporary building may be constructed and occupied

as a legal use pending the construction of a permanent use providing that a permit will not be issued for
the temporary structure unless a permit is also issued at the same time for the permanent building. If it is
proposed to convert the temporary structure to a permissive accessory use upon completion of the main
structure, the conversion must occur upon completion of the final structure or be removed at that time or
within a period of 1 year form the date of issuance of the original permit. A principal residential building
is not be required for accessory buildings and uses incidental to permitted agricultural uses in the A zone.

The Applicant’s property does have an existing accessory building (shed) without a principal building
on the subject property (Figure 9 - Existing Accessory Building) and therefore, the subject property
appears to be non-conforming with this standard.

Figure 9 - Existing Accessory Building

2

o—

Staff Report - 2014-014

u]

Compliance with the SCC



G. If an accessory building is connected to the main building by a breezeway, below grade tunnel, or
other structure that is not habitable space as defined by the building code, each structure must meet
front, rear, and side yard setback requirements for that zone and is considered an accessory building and
a main structure for calculation of square footage of accessory structures.

The Applicant does not propose a breezeway and therefore, conforms to this standard.

H. A detached structure may not be located closer to any other building on the same or adjoining lot than
allowed by the Building Code and Fire Code.

The Applicant’s proposal meets this standard and the Conditions of Approval also addresses this
requirement.

L. The limitations of allowable cumulative square footage for accessory structures and accessory uses in
a E1 VCH Zone are: first floor not to exceed 2,500 square feet, total area not to exceed 4,000 square feet.
The Applicant’s proposes a 900 square foot garage and therefore the proposal complies with this

standard.
3.2 Storey County Code 17.40 Estate Zone
3.2.1 Minimum lot size requirements. The minimum acreage in an E1 VCH zone is 1 acre.
The Applicant’s property does conform with this standard.
3.2.2 Lot dimensions requirements. The average dimension of a lot in one direction (front to rear or-
side to side) may not exceed four times the average dimension in the other direction.
The Applicant’s property does conform with this standard.
3.2.3 Height of buildings and structures. A structure may not exceed a height of three stories or 35
feet, whichever is higher.
The Applicant’s proposal does not exceed a height of three stories or 35 feet and therefore, conforms
with this standard.
3.2.4 Setback requirements. The E1 VCH zoning has a minimum front set back of 30 feet, a minimum
rear yard setback of 40 feet and a minimum side yard setback of 15 feet.

The Applicant’s proposal conforms to the front yard and side yard setbacks requirements. However,
the Applicant requests a Variance for a rear yard setback. The proposed rear yard setback is 20 feet.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY MASTER
PLAN

On page 24 in Chapter 4: Housing:, of the Master Plan it states:

“The ability of Storey County to accommodate future growth is dependent upon available land suited
for residential development. The primary developing regions are: Virginia City/Gold Hill, Mark Twain,
Virginia Highlands and the River District.”

o i
Staff Report - 2014-014 Compliance with the SCC & Compliance with the SC MP

10



The proposed residence is within one of the primary developing regions: the Virginia City Highlands.

As the Master Plan states future growth should be on land suited for residential development and the
Virginia City Highlands is a suitable area for residences. Therefore, the proposed project supports the
goals, objectives and recommendations of the Master Plan.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Staff has not received any public comment for this file as of posting date.

6. FINDINGS

6.1 Motion for Approval

The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested Variance when the recommended
conditions of approval in Section 7 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied.

The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of a Variance must be based on findings that indicate
that the proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The findings listed in this
subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the body may include additional findings in their
decision. The Board and Planning Commission must cite Findings in the motion for approval, approval

with conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the approval must be based on the following Findings:

6.1.1 That there are special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including the
configuration of the subject property. Therefore, the strict application of the zoning ordinance
deprives the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification; and

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial

property rights of the property owner; and

6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the

neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; and

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations; and

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances,
17.12.48 Accessory Buildings and 17.40 Estates when all Conditions of Approval are met; and

3 wxrith o d cr1imnn ot tha 1 Taiants nAd
1L aliu DUIJ}JUI oL 1 L u

L1 £ Tha tasenianon

AN nwinimnn 1q 113 conmmlinaaa
U.1.U 1HU pIupuscu vdilalivo 1> i1 vullipliaiiec

recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

6.2 Motion for Denial

Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the following Findings with explanation of why

should be included in that motion.

6.2.1 That there are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape,
size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance that

{1

Oo—

Staff Report - 2014-014 Public Comment & Findings

11



would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification; or

6.2.2 That the granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the property owner; or

6.2.3 That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; or

6.2.4 The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations; or

6.2.5 The proposed Variance is not in substantial compliance with and does not support the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan; or

6.2.6 The conditions of approval under the Variance do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses; or

6.2.7 No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Variance would be sufficient to
reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on adjacent and surrounding residences
and land uses.

7. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department.

1.

Compliance. The Variance must comply with County Codes, and submitted plans and reports, as
approved. The Applicant must provide the Planning and Building Departments site plans drawn to
scale prior to obtaining a Building Permit.

Null and Void. If the Variance is not exercised within 12 months of the date of approval, unless
additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission, based upon
consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without further action, the Variance
will be null and void and no non-conforming development activity may be made on the property
except on the granting of a new Variance.

Hold Harmless. The Variance Holder agrees to hold Storey County, its Officers, and Representatives
harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other

claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this Variance.
Permits and Expiration. The Applicant shall apply for all Building and Fire permits for the
structure within 24 months from the date of board approval for this Variance, and continuously
maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will become null and void.

Taxes Paid. Before obtaining a Building Permit, the Applicant must show the Planning Department
evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

yu

=,

Staff Report - 2014-014

12

Findings & Recommended Conditions of Approval



6. Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association. The final structure elevation drawings
must be stamped with the approval the VCHPOA prior to any Building Permit issued.

7. Distances. The reduced rear yard setback for the proposed residence is for a distance of 20 feet.
The distance between the proposed detached accessory building (the proposed garage) and the front
property line is for a distance of 40 feet. All other setbacks for structures must be in compliance with
the SCC. The distance between accessory buildings and the principal building must be a minimum of
10 feet and in accordance with SCC.

8. Fire Protection. All structures must comply with County Building and Fire Codes. Roof overhangs
may encroach further into the required yard setback areas, but must also be fire protected.

9. Stormwater Management. The Applicant must grade the property such as to mitigate any increase
in stormwater caused by the development. Increased stormwater must be detained on-site or directed
towards Silverado Road or Alpine Road and not allowed to enter abutting private properties.
Stormwater drainage must be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director or the VCHPOA, as
applicable.

10. Plot Map. The Applicant must submit to the Planning Department a valid and accurate plot map,
which shows all parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways (ROW), and setback distances of
all existing and proposed structures. No building may be constructed over an easement or ROW, or
within a building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

11. Easement. The granting of this Variance does not affect any existing easements on the subject
property.

8. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The
decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the Variance is advisory only to the Board
of County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and recommendation and
must make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

9. AUGUST 21, 2014: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

On August 21, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under 6.1 of this
Staff Report and in compliance with all conditions of approval (1-11), the Storey County Planning
Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval for Variance 2014-014 (yes = 7, nay = 0, absent
=0).

During the meeting there was some discussion regarding if the Applicant should change the subject
property’s address to an Alpine address. This could possibly allow setbacks to be met if the layout of the
residence and garage changed. The Applicant addressed this suggestion and explained a change to the
layout would require an existing grove of trees be removed. The Applicant wishes to preserve this grove
of trees. Therefore, the Applicant requests the Variance as originally submitted.

o u
Staff Report - 2014-014 Recommended Conditions of Approval & Power of the Board & Planning Commission

13



10. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval with the Conditions of
Approval is recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff and in accordance with the Findings
under section 6.1 of this Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion

to deny the proposed Variance may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the Findings
shown in section 6.2. Other Findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either
motion.

10.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings under
Section 6.1 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board, and in
compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] move to approve Variance Number
2014-014 for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet rear-yard setback for
the placement of a proposed single-family residence, and also, for approval of a Variance for the
allowance of a detached accessory building to be located 40 feet from the front property line from the

required 60 feet.

10.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the Findings under Section 6.2 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, I [Commissioner] move to deny Variance Number 2014-014 for a Variance
for a reduced rear-yard setback of 20 feet from the required 40 feet rear-yard setback for the placement
of a proposed single-family residence and also, denies a Variance for the allowance of a detached
accessory building to be located 40 feet from the front property line from the required 60 feet.

Prepared by: Dessie Redmond
Storey County Planner

n, 0
Staff Report - 2014-014 Proposed Motions
14



APPENDIX 1: JUSTIFICATION OF PROJECT SUBMITTED
BY APPLICANT

(m, 0
Appendixes - 2014-014 Appendix 1: Justification of Project Submitted by Applicant

15




Storey Counly Development Application

Detail Description/Justification of Project

Attached additional pages as necessary

Doe +o 4he Lot B?-;mb ow A CcolNe é
Due dv Fhe LT Belwm mWmReow L Reaves{
A VaRiance  bn dhe Renz hopely Line
el Bade A Zo” ‘

Jof 8

= 8]
Appendixes - 2014-014 Appendix 1: Justification of Project Submitted by Applicant

16



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/02/14 Estimate of time required: 1.5 hours

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: The applicant requests amendments to existing Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3 to
modify and expand applicable land area and allowable uses. The amendments apply to
mining, processing, mine definition, exploration, and ancillary uses on the subject land in
American Flat and Gold Hill. The location of the land subject to this SUP request is
located approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20 East, Sections 1 and 12; and
Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 (MDB&M).

2. Recommended motion: Based on Findings of Fact shown in Subsection 8.1 and conditions of
approval shown in Section 9 of this report, compliance with federal, state, and county
regulations, and the recommendation for approval by the Planning Commission and staff,
I [Commissioner] motion to approve SUP Application No. 2000-222-A-4, amending SUP
No. 2000-222-A-3 to expand the subject land area and amend uses as provided in the
Planning Commission and staff recommendation for mining, processing, mine definition
and exploration, and ancillary uses.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Senior Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Amendment of Special Use Permit No, 2000-222-A-3 as explained in enclosed
Staff Report No. 2000-222-A-4.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No, 2000-222-A-4 and exhibits enclosed herewith.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
(7 _Department Head Department Name:

¥
3 ,-_Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

{ R

Agenda Item No. \4



Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Special Use Permit Case No. 2000-222-A-4

To:
From:
Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:
Applicants:
Property Owners:

Staff Contact:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Request:

Board of Storey County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
September 2, 2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, LLC
Comstock Mining, LLC

Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

SCC 17.92 including: findings of approval or denial (17.92.030);
classification of scale of the operation (17.92.070 and 17.92.140),
application, planning, and operation requirements (17.92.080);
SUP minimum conditions of approval (17.92.160); compliance
review (17.92.170); protections for abutting uses and the Virginia
City National Historic Landmark (17.92 inclusive); regulatory
zoning requirements of SCC 17.32.020(M-N) and 17.44.030(A-B),
respectively, for mining and processing in the F and SPR Zones;
administrative provisions in SCC 17.03 for minimum conditions in
and SUP, compliance review, and process for show-cause; SCC
8.02 and 8.04 for outdoor lighting and noise, respectively; and
elements contained in the Storey County Master Plan.

The general location of the land subject to this SUP is located
approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20 East, Sections 1
and 12; and Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7,
8, and 9 (MDB&M) as illustrated in Exhibit A Project Area Map

enclosed herewith.

The applicant requests amendment to Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-3 to modify and expand applicable land area and
allowable uses. The amendment applies to mining, processing,
exploration, and ancillary uses on the subject land in American
Flat and Gold Hill as illustrated in Exhibit A Project Area Map.

1 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

1.

KEY TERMS & DEFINITIONS

The following terms and definitions are provided for the purposes of this report and may be
applied to the approved permit. These terms and definitions may defer from industry standard
language applicable to the uses in this report.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Bench. Flat ledge in an open-pit mine that forms a single level of operation above which
minerals or waste materials are excavated from a contiguous back or bench face. The
mineral or waste is removed in successive layers, each of which is a bench, several of
which may be in operation simultaneously in different parts of, and at different elevations
of, an open-pit mine.

Bench face. Vertical surface of rock exposed by blasting or excavating; the lateral
portion of a bench.

Dor’e. A semi-pure alloy of gold and silver usually created at the site of the mine. It is
then transported to a refinery for future purification.

Exploration. A focused assessment of mineral deposits and other geological conditions,
including their location, extent, depth, and grade, for the purposes of broad-based
assessment of targeted areas throughout the land subject to the SUP.

Large-operations mining. This classification includes surface and underground mining
that meet or exceed the duration, excavation, or surface disturbance area threshold
classifications specified in SCC 17.92 (mining ordinance) requiring a special use permit.

Mine definition. A focused assessment of mineral deposits and other geological
conditions, including their location, extent, depth, and grade, for the purposes of
determining subsequent phasing of the active mine.

Mineral rights. Ownership of a mineral estate; the right of the owner to exploit, mine,
and produce any or all of the minerals lying below the ground surface.

Patented claim: A mining claim for which the federal government has passed its title to
a claimant, making it private land. A person may mine and remove minerals from a
mining claim without a mineral patent; however, a mineral patent gives the owner
exclusive title to the locatable minerals. In most cases, it also gives the owner title certain
rights to the surface and other resources.

Processing. The method by which metal or valuable elements are extracted from an ore
or concentrate, This use would normally be described as an extraction plant or chemical

treatment plant. By comparison, processing and beneficiation (or refining) is the
purification of crude metallic products which produces nearly pure gold and silver.

Reclamation. Actions performed during or after surface disturbances to shape, stabilize,
re-vegetate, and otherwise treat the land in order to return it to a safe, stable condition
consistent with the establishment of a productive post-mining use of the land and the
abandonment of a facility in a manner which ensures the public safety, as well as the
encouragement of techniques that minimize adverse visual and environmental impacts
(NRS 519A.100)

20f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

1.11  Surface rights. Ownership of the surface estate. It is the “surface” of the estate which
has been separated from the mineral estate, known as a “split-estate” arrangement.
Exploitation, mining, and/or production of minerals from the mineral estate shall not
negatively impact the surface, i.c., cause subsidence or destabilization of the surface.

1.12  Unpatented claim: A mining claim located on land owned by the federal government for
which an individual has asserted a right of mineral possession. The right is restricted to
the extraction and development of a mineral deposit.

2. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

2.1 Site location and characteristics

Special Use Permit (SUP) Application No. 2000-222-A-4 (amended SUP) proposes to modify
existing SUP No. 2000-222-A-3 (existing SUP) by increasing the amount of land subject thereto
and amending entitlements that will apply on the existing land and the area of expansion (subject
property). The existing SUP includes approximately 160 acres of land in American Flat and
southern Gold Hill. The amended SUP proposes lateral expansion that will increase the subject
property to approximately 1,300 acres. The existing SUP boundaries and the proposed area of
expansion are illustrated in Figures 2.1 and 2.2 below and Exhibits A and B enclosed herewith.

- e s Fumisy e Rewir M1 32 and Sam Pl R
Note: TRE Iformation ' sDPrOTIMEIA 8nd 3 f0r yiewing AUpsIE WD BuLsRy it | mem [ o
A13UnEd on TN ACTIAIEY O DUIB Deinasted thareOn The DU4 TS wAt Temled
&y sDAcem Comstock Miremg ine (2034]

Arce B AR ooy
Arta € - ARrwnd abltys wbnheg mi = jeats
Arco D+ ARl Fmd md gl S an et

Figure 2.1: Vicinity and allowed uses. This image, including a magnification of “Area C” and “Area D", is
included in Exhibits A and B.

30f135



Staff Report ~ 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

20%1 Moo Aroa o |

e L= " Duencas Name Ma™he 261¢ Mios — CiPABoundsy M 2018 Rcave Mres

.
) P
(RS e Coeatcd My 1M = Couvy Ume 2014 fstam WA

e TN
Due BAILZOIA [ .Du;w-ﬂ LUP Tunenl Opan Pis
e « o 4230 o m Cirrenl Sss'n Rook {lumps

mm———

K1) G

Figure 2.2: Estimated existing and future mining areas (see SUP application in Exhibit L)

4 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

2.2 Summary of proposal

The applicant currently conducts mining, processing, exploration, and ancillary uses in American
Flat and Gold Hill under its existing SUP. The applicant requests that the uses, entitlements, and
regulations contained in the existing SUP are modified to meet its current and projected mining
and processing needs. The amended SUP will differ substantially from the existing SUP in that
the subject land will be significantly enlarged; mining and processing will be segregated into two
distinct areas within the subject property; certain entitlement and regulations for mineral
exploration that are now contained in a separate SUP (Exhibit K; SUP No. 2011-016) now held
by the applicant will be modified as needed and incorporated into the amended SUP; and phased
mining and concurrent post-operation reclamation exceeding applicable federal and state
standards will be required for certain uses.

2.3 Description of existing and proposed uses

The following paragraphs describe conditions applicable to mining, processing, exploration, and
ancillary uses under the existing SUP. It also describes use amendments that are proposed by the
applicant and regulatory proposals by county staff.

2.3.1 Mining — existing conditions

The applicant currently mines on several patented claims located immediately west of State
Route 342 in southern Gold Hill. Known collectively as the lLucerne Resources Area,
principal mining areas on the subject property include, but are not limited to, the Billy the
Kid, Lucerne, Hartford, Justice, and Keystone pits, each located within their respective mining
claims (Exhibit K). Approximately 95 acres is currently being mined at the Lucerne Resource
Area, and the applicant is entitled to future lateral expansion there under the existing SUP.
Surface (open-pit) mining is the only type of mining currently taking place in association with
the SUP; however, underground mining is allowed under the existing SUP and by federal,
state, and county regulations.

With an average pit depth of approximately 110” and 170°, the slopes of pits and heights of
production benches vary depending upon mining requirements and geotechnical properties.
The final dimensions of the pits are varied depending on ore grade, operating and capital
costs, gold and silver prices, geotechnical stability, and other engineering considerations.

The subject use is occurring almost exclusively on private-owned lands. Therefore, the
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) is the principal regulatory agency
administering oversight of environmental controls, post-operation reclamation, and
reclamation surety bonding. The applicant has also obtained required federal permits to
conduct less than five acres of exploration on federal-owned lands. Bureau of Land
Management (BLM) under most circumstances serves as the primary agency administering
regulations on public lands. However, as part of an agreement between the NDEP and the
BLM explained further in Section 3.3, principal oversight of less than five acres of activity on
federal land will be administered by the NDEP.

Explained further in this report, the entitlements allowed by the SUP, however, are not
effective on either until the applicant secures necessary permits from the respective regulatory
agencies. The amended SUP will then require the applicant to conform to the respective
regulations and agency oversight for operations, reclamation, and reclamation surety bonding.

50f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

This report finds that mitigation of certain mining related impacts, including as related to post-
operation reclamation and associated surety bonding, under the federal and state regulations
do not meet the minimum standards set forth by Storey County Code (SCC) 17.92 (mining
regulations promulgated in the zoning ordinance). Therefore, it is necessary for the amended
SUP to contain provisions to regulate certain mining operations, reclamation, and reclamation
surety bonding that exceeds the minimum federal and state standards.

2.3.2 Mining — proposed amendments

The amended SUP will adjust the geographical boundaries of the existing SUP, allowing for
substantial lateral expansion of mining to the east of State Route 342 and processing to the
south and west of the existing facility in American Flat (Figures 2.1 and 2.2; Exhibits A, B,
and L).

While broadening the land area and scope of uses, the amended SUP will contain regulations
on mining, mine definition, and exploration that are more stringent than those in the existing
SUP and the federal and state regulations. The amended SUP will exceed those regulations by
requiring mine phasing; limiting maximum allowable area of disturbance; and by increasing
required reclamation surety bonding to be commensurate with all allowed disturbances. The
amended SUP will also expire 10 years from the date of approval, and will provide for show-
cause hearing if willful or substantial environmental or safety violations are verified. The
limitations imposed by the SUP on mine phasing and concurrent reclamation are explained in
the following paragraphs.

e Active mining (120 acres). Cumulative surface disturbances associated with all mining,
including surface and underground workings, will be limited to 120 acres. Roads and
ancillary uses (Section 2.3.6), however, will not be counted against the total allowable
area. Tunnels, adits, shafts, vents, drifts, and other underground activity must only
comply with the minimum requirements of SCC 17.92 and applicable federal and state
regulations. Waste storage and tailings, except for that which are processed in accordance
with the provisions of the SUP, will count against the total allowable disturbance area.

e Mine definition (20 acres). Drilling and other activities related to mine definition may
occur within 300’ of the active surface mine. The cumulative allowed surface disturbance
caused by mine definition will not exceed 20 acres. Drill holes, drill pads, trenches, test
pits, fluid detention areas, and other surface disturbances, but not access roads to drill
sites, will be subject to the total allowed surface disturbance. The reclamation schedule
and surety bonding for mine definition shall be combined with and treated similarly to
that for active mining (Section 3.3). Access roads will be treated as ancillary uses.

o Exploration (20 acres). Exploration may occur anywhere within the subject property. The
cumulative allowed surface disturbance for all exploration will not exceed 20 acres. Drill
holes, drill pads, fluid detention basins, but not access roads to drill sites, will be subject
to the total allowed surface disturbance. Trenching and test pit methods of exploration
will be prohibited except for within the active mine. Accelerated reclamation of
exploration sites outside of the active mine will be required as described in Section 3.3.
Access roads will be treated as ancillary uses.

6 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

e Active Reclamation (50 acres). Active surface mining will be limited to 120 acres.
However, as part of allowed mine phasing, the active mine may proceed on up to 50
additional acres when a commensurate amount land previously mined on the subject
property and in association with the SUP is reclaimed. Up to the 50 acre threshold, land
disturbed by mining must be re-graded, contoured, and backfilled to a point reasonably
consistent with surrounding undisturbed or fully reclaimed topography and surface
conditions, but must not yet be treated with soil amendments, or be re-vegetated or re-
seeded (Section 3.1). Surface treatment must provide for effective natural drainage
systems, erosion prevention, and noxious weed abatement.

e Fully reclaimed. Fully reclaimed land includes land that has been re-graded, contoured,
and backfilled to a point reasonably consistent with surrounding undisturbed or fully
reclaimed topography and surface conditions; to which the surface has been treated with
soil amendments and growth media (topsoil); and to which seeding and successful re-
vegetation has occurred in conformance with the seeding and re-vegetation standards set
forth by the NDEP or BLM (even if such reclamation is not required by either agency).
Reclamation requirements are explained in more detail in Section 3.1.

2.3.3 Processing — existing conditions

Raw ore mined from the Lucerne Resource Area is transported by haul truck approximately
two miles west of the mining area to an approximate 60 acre heap-leach processing plant in
American Flat.

Processing at the site involves a three-stage ore crushing and screening system. The existing
crushing plant includes a primary jaw crusher, secondary and tertiary cone crusher, a vibrating
screen, and associated conveyors. The process facility is a typical crushed-ore heap leach
operation with a gold adsorption/desorption refining process plant, Dilute sodium-cyanide
(approx. 2 percent sodium cyanide) solution is applied to the crushed ore at a rate of
approximately 0.005 gallons per minute per square-foot. Solution percolates through the
crushed ore to perforated pipes placed above a synthetic liner. The drain-down solution flows
through the perforated pipes to solid-wall collector lines along each cell divider berm and then
to lined ponds containing sodium-cyanide and pregnant solution. Pregnant solution is then
pumped from the ponds to the Merrill-Crowe facility, at which targeted metals are melted and
poured into dor’e (NDEP Water Pollution Contro! Permit #NEV2000109, 2014, p.8).

Ancillary uses to the principal processing plant including stormwater run-on, run-off, and
detention systems; pond overflow detention; fire suppression water containment; chemical
and water storage and distribution systems; stockpiles of ore and post-operation reclamation
topsoil; the Merrill-Crowe facility; and other support buildings and infrastructure.

The applicant is currently authorized under its 2012 NDEP Reclamation Plan and Lucerne
Project Reclamation Permit No. 1096 (NDEP Reclamation Permit) to process up to 4,000,000
ton of ore per year. The existing heap leach pads at build-out will accommodate
approximately 3.6 million tons of ore. An estimated one million ton of capacity will be added
to that amount when the NDEP approvals the applicant’s requested Water Pollution Control

7 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Permit modification. The applicant estimates the pads and all available space within the
existing site to reach capacity within the next year.

2.3.4 Processing — proposed amendments

The amended SUP will adjust the geographical boundaries of the existing SUP, allowing for
the processing facility to expand from its existing 60 acre site to an additional area of
approximately 280 acres (340 acres combined (Exhibit L). The applicant has not presented to
staff plans to use the entire area at once; rather, the applicant suggests that lateral expansion
will provide flexibility in short-term and long-term planning and design alternatives.

The amended SUP will maintain that most regulatory oversight of the processing facility is
administered by the NDEP or BLM, as applicable. The amended SUP, however, will contain
several regulations described in the following paragraphs that exceed the standards currently
administered by the NDEP:

e Subject area. Processing may only occur in “Area B” illustrated in Figure 2.1 above and
Exhibit A enclosed herewith;

e Hours and days. Processing may occur over 24-hours per day and 365 days per week,
unless the NDEP or BLM imposes more stringent limitations;

¢ Subject processing. The processing facility will be limited to receiving and processing
ore originating from the subject property; other mine holdings of the applicant located in
Lyon County; and from any mine located in Storey County that is owned by the applicant
or another person or firm;

e Distances. No storage, processing, or use involving cyanide may occur within 1,000” of
an occupied dwelling unit existing at the time of this SUP approval. Dwellings that are
owned by the applicant and occupied at the time of approval of the amended SUP will be
exempt from his provision once the dwelling becomes vacated. Once vacated, the use
may not become occupied by a permanent resident until said 1,000’ separation is re-
established;

o Concurrent reclamation. The applicant will be encouraged, but will not be required to by
the amended SUP, employ concurrent reclamation of heap-leach pad cells and other
elements of the processing facility.

2.3.5 Exploration and mine definition — existing and proposed conditions

Mine planning begins with surveying, assessing, and mapping geological conditions on and
below the surface environment. Mineral deposits and other geological conditions, including
their presence, location, extent, depth, and grade are assessed by target area exploration and
mine definition. Exploration involves broad-based assessment of targeted areas throughout the
subject property, while mine definition includes focused analyses of areas in and directly
adjacent to the active mine. Reverse circulation core drilling is the primary method used for
exploration and mine definition, and will be the principal method use by the applicant. Other
conventional methods include shallow soil auger drilling, trenching, and test-pitting,

8 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

The existing SUP allows unlimited exploration to occur within the active mine, and up to one
acre of exploration disturbance at any given time outside of the active mine. There is no
classification for mine definition in the existing SUP; rather, all geological assessment
activities are considered under that SUP as exploration. The amended SUP will differentiate
mine definition and exploration, and will align use allowances with mine phasing and
concurrent reclamation.

In addition to the uses allowed under the existing SUP, the applicant in 2011 was granted SUP
No. 2011-016 (exploration SUP) that allows it to conduct exploration beyond the boundaries
of the existing SUP. Since securing the exploration SUP, the applicant has applied core
drilling applications within key target areas, particularly on the east side of State Route 342,
that have enabled it to define areas for potential mine expansion that apply to the request for
the amended SUP. The amended SUP will streamline and increase consistency in local
permitting and project oversight by incorporating therein many of the conditions and
entitlements of the exploration SUP,

In summary, the amended SUP will allow exploration to occur anywhere within the subject
property. It will, however, better define mine definition and limit its use to 300° of the active
mine. Subsequent to approval of the amended SUP, the allowances under the exploration SUP
will be incorporated therein, and the exploration SUP will be proposed at public hearing for
permanent closure.

2.3.6 Ancillary uses — existing and proposed conditions

The amended SUP will continue to provide for ancillary uses including indoor and outdoor
equipment storage; principal and accessory buildings and structures; roads and access;
staging, parking, fueling, and equipment maintenance areas; and other uses accessory to the
principal uses on the premises. Most regulatory oversight of uses ancillary to mining and
processing during operation and post-operation phases, including for required reclamation and
surety bonding, will be as administered by the NDEP or BLM, as applicable. Ancillary uses
will not count against the maximum allowed surface disturbances under the amended SUP.
The following paragraphs describe ancillary uses that may occur on the subject property, and
the regulatory provisions beyond the NDEP or BLM requirements that will be applied by the
amended SUP.

e Roads and access. Existing roads and right-of-ways, as well as new roads developed by
the applicant throughout the subject property, will be utilized to access various uses
throughout the subject property. The existing and proposed access plans are discussed
below.

o Principal roads. State Route 342 and American Flat Road (Figure 4.1) are the principal
arterial routes accessing the subject property, including the mining and processing site.
Both routes are designated public right-of-ways.

o Haul roads and secondary access. Circulation, egress, and transportation within the mine,
and between it and the processing site, are achieved primarily on haul roads and secondary

9 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

access developed by the applicant in and around the subject property. Haul roads are
principal arterial routes on which off-highway haul trucks transport ore and other material
throughout the premises. Haul roads oftentimes exceed 100” width and are designed to
accommodate heavy traffic flows and extremely large mining equipment. Secondary
access roads are typically developed to reach remote sites within the subject property
where mine definition, exploration, or certain accessory uses are located. Secondary roads
typically facilitate short-term access to use sites and they may be abandoned and
reclaimed soon after they are developed.

o Segment of shared use. An approximately 200’ segment of the primary haul road
connecting the mining area with the processing site overlaps American Flat Road. Haul
trucks and other extremely large mining equipment share this portion of the road with
civilian vehicular and other non-mining traffic. This segment of road also appears to be
located on federally-owned land. The amended SUP provides for this segment of roadway
to be widened or re-aligned for the purpose of separating public access from the primary
haul truck route. The road improvement is pending approval by the BLM pursuant to
findings of its Environmental Assessment (EA) administered under the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).

o BLM right-ofway (Lot 51). In 2012, the BLM noticed the applicant that clouded title
conditions exist for property (BLM Lot 51) on which the principal haul road between the
mine area and processing site is located. To the disagreement of the applicant, the BLM
currently claims its ownership to Lot 51, and in 2012 issued the applicant trespass notice
prohibiting haul truck entry thereon.

The applicant since that time has prepared documentation pursuant to its Class I Color of
Title Claim for Lot 51 that it believes will prove to the BLM its legal ownership of the
land. In the meantime, the applicant submitted an application to the BLM to modify the
existing temporary right-of-way for the improvement of the Lucerne Haul Road and other
existing roads, and the construction and improvement of non-exclusive road segments to
facilitate access to certain federal-owned lands within and adjacent to the subject
property. The BLM plans to present to the Storey County Planning Commission and
Board of County Commissioners in 2014 its EA process for this land. Until such time that
a permanent right-of-way is granted to the applicant by the BLM or the applicant proves
legal ownership of Lot 51, the applicant will continue to use the subject portions of the
Lucerne ITaul Road under its temporary BLM permit.

o Use of State Route 342. After the applicant received notice from the BLM that it could no
longer transport ore from the mine to the processing site via the Lucerne Haul Road over
Lot 51, the applicant submitted a request to Storey County to amend its SUP so that ore
may be transported to its processing site via State Route 342. At public hearing, the Board
of Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission modified preceding
SUP No. 2000-222-A-1, allowing the mining company to use State Route 342 for such
purposes if approved by the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT).

Following approximately one year of using the state road to transport ore by means of
tractor-trailer truck (18-wheeler), the applicant obtained from the BLM the necessary

10 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

temporary right-of-way permits to resume its use of the Lucerne Haul Road over Lot 51.

The applicant is currently preparing documentation of land ownership that it believes will
resolve the clouded title issue. Until such time that the Color of Title process is completed
and the applicant’s ownership is proven, it will continue to use the land under right-of-way
permits issued to it by the BLM.

e Staging areas. Vehicle and equipment staging areas will be developed throughout the
subject property. Staging areas include outdoor equipment and vehicular storage, fueling
and maintenance areas, egress and circulation points, etc. The amended SUP considers
these uses as ancillary to principal uses, and, accordingly, related surface disturbances will
not count against the total allowance for active mining. Staging areas are considered
ancillary uses on the subject property, and post-operation reclamation and surety bonding
will be applied accordingly by the NDEP or BLM, as applicable.

o Buildings and structures. Most buildings associated with the project are located at the
processing site in American Flat, They include the Merrill-Crowe facility, sodium-cyanide
storage and transfer building, pump houses, several office buildings, security shelters, and
the crusher and agglomeration facilities. The reclamation plan included in page 34 of the
NDEP Reclamation Permit states that the applicant will remove and dispose of all
buildings and associated ancillary facilities that are located on public land. Those uses on
private land will be evaluated for post-mining use and the applicant may select to manage
them as real estate assets.

e Topsoil impoundment, As part of reclamation planning, the NDEP Reclamation Permit
requires the applicant to salvage stripped topsoil from lands designated for new
disturbances, except where limited by excessively steep topography, rocky conditions, or
shallow soil depth. The applicant plans to stockpile topsoil near the processing facility
antil such time that it will be recovered and applied to reclamation area elsewhere on the
subject property. It will be placed away from planned development and major drainages,
and within areas where it may be stabilized from erosion caused by water and wind. The
stockpiles will be placed and graded to a stable configuration and seeded with an interim
seed mix to provide surface stability and nutrient retention. Temporary seeding and
vegetation, and noxious weed management, will conform to the standards administered by
the NDEP or BLM, as applicable. The plan for noxious weed abatement for the purpose of
fire fuels control must also conform fo the requirements of the Siorey County Fire
Protection District.

11 0f 135



Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

2.5  Requirement by code

The existing SUP is located entirely on land zoned F Forestry and SPR Special Planning Review.
Prior to securing the amended SUP, the applicant must have obtained approval to change
regulatory zoning of fourteen parcels in Gold Hill from CR Commercial-Residential to SPR
Special Planning Review, or from CR or F Forestry (see zone map amendment request Case File
No. 2014-005; 2014). Accordingly, and subject to the approval of requested zone changes, this
SUP application was submitted as required by SCC Sections 17.32.020(M-N) (F Zone) and
17.44.030(A) (SPR Zone) which list “mining” and “milling and processing related to mining” as
allowable with an SUP approved by the Board of County Commissioners with recommendation
by the Planning Commission.

2.6  Land ownership and right
The project, including its expansion, will take place within patented mining claims and other
land owned or legally controlled by the applicant. This includes the surface and mineral estate.

2.7 Background of the applicant and its predecessors

Table 2.1 summarizes application and permitting activity associated with the existing SUP since
1978. The SUP has been amended several times, including most recently in 2000, 2004, 2012,
and 2013, as the mining project endured cyclical operation commensurate with commodity
values.

Table 2.1: History of Activity

Date Company Name Permit Action Project Description Action
Comstock Mining, Inc. Application No. Zone change from CR Commercial- Pending
06/19/14 2014-005 Residential to SPR Special Planning
Review
05/22/14 | Comstock Mining, Inc./ Application No. Expand geographic boundaries of Pending
Northern Comstock, LLC. 2000-222-A-4 mining and processing; amend
exploration; language cleanup
2013 Plum/Comstock Mining SUP 2000-222-A- | Expand geographic boundaries of Approved 07/02/13
3 processing, and general language
cleanup
2012 Plum/Comstock Mining, Inc. | SUP 2000-222-A- | Amendment of vehicle use within SUP | Approved 11/13/12
2 boundary on the State Highway
06/07/11 | Plum/Comstock Mining Inc. | Application No. Mineral Exploration Registration Active until SUP
2011-016 requirement fulfilled by submittal of approval or denial
SUP Application (SCC 17.92.060)
06/02/11 | Plum/Comstock Mining, Inc. | Application No. Mineral Exploration Pending PC Hearing
2011-016
05/17/11 | Plum/Comstock Mining, Inc. | Application No. Mineral Exploration Received
2011-016
04/01/04 | Plum Mining SUP 2000-222-A- | Minor modification of SUP 2000-222 Approved 04/01/04
1
03/22/04 | Plum Mining Application Minor modification of SUP 2000-222 Received
12/18/03 | Plum Mining SUP 2000-222-A | Modification of SUP 2000-222 Approved 01/20/04
12/06/03 | Plum Mining Application Modification of SUP 2000-222 Received
03/10/03 | Comstock Gold LLC Application No SUP not with 1000' of a N/A
resident/exploratory drill
09/20/01 | Plum Mining SUP 2002-249 Reverse Circulation Exploration Approved PC
Drilling Program 09/20/01

12 0of 135




Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4
Comstock Mining, Inc.

Storey County Planning

775.847.1144

09/20/01 | Plum Mining Application Reverse Circulation Exploration Received
Drilling Program
03/01/01 | Plum Mining SUP 2001-237 Exploration drilling Approved 03/03/01
02/12/01 | Plum Mining Application Exploration drilling Received
11/04/99 | Plum Mining SUP 2000-222 Mine, mill and process ore in open pit Approved 12/07/99
10/14/99 | Plum Mining Application Mine, mill and process ore in open pit Received
03/09/93 | Oliver Hills/BMR Gold/Rea | Application Expansion Received
Gold
11/07/91 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1992-045 Exploration drilling in Gold Hill Approved 11/07/91
10/16/91 | Oliver Hills Mining Application Exploration drilling in Gold Hill Received
06/18/91 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1991-025 Open pit mining removal of ore Approved 06/18/91
06/07/91 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1991-025 Reduction of bond CC-approved
05/02/91 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1991-025 Open pit mining removal of ore PC-continued
04/15/91 | Oliver Hills Mining Application Open pit mining removal of ore Received
02/11/91 | BMR Gold Application Exploration drilling in Gold Hill Received
08/02/90 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1991-001 Continuation Lucerne Pit Ore Removal | PC-approved
property ownership changes
07/03/90 | Oliver Hills Mining Application Continuation Lucerne Pit Ore Removal | Received
property ownership changes
02/15/90 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1990-009 Continuation Lucerne Pit Ore Removal | Application
03/08/90 | Oliver Hills Mining SUP 1990-009 Continuation Lucerne Pit Ore Removal | PC Approved
05/15/89 | Oliver Hills Mining Approval Letter Lucerne Pit low grade ore to Haywood CC-Approved
Facility
02/17/89 | Oliver Hills Mining Application Lucerne Pit low grade ore to Haywood | Received
Facility
06/10/81 | Houston International & SUP2-81 Haul Dump Material to American Flat Approved 07/01/81
Minerals Corp Mill
01/08/81 | Houston International & Item #11 Extract/Mine Lucerne Dump material, Accepted
Minerals Corp haul to mill w/conditions
11/26/80 | Houston International & Special Meeting Lucerne Dump Committee More details to be
Minerals Corp furnished
11/18/80 | Houston International & Special Meeting Lucemne Dump Committee — Conditions | More
Minerals Corp Agreed upon information/reports
required
11/12/80 | Houston International & Agenda Item #II Extract/Mine Lucerne Dump material, Tabled
Minerals Corp haul to mill
09/23/80 | Houston International & Application Extract/Mine Lucerne Dump material, Received
Minerals Corp haul to mill
08/23/78 | Houston Oil & Mineral Corp | Item #7 Extracting ore/milling-open pit & PC approved with
underground in Forestry Zone stipulations
08/03/78 | Houston Oil & Mineral Corp | Application Extracting ore/milling-open pit & Received

underground in Forestry Zone

13 0f 135




Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3. KEYISSUES

This section discusses regulatory oversight, post-operation reclamation, and reclamation surety
bonding requirements that will apply to the uses on the subject property as administered by the
NDEP or BLM, as applicable, and by the provisions of the amended SUP which are more
stringent than the federal and regulations.

3.1 Regulatory oversight

By applying local regulations through the SUP, Storey County will play a significant role in
planning, development, and closure of the project. However, the SUP is not intended to be the
principal regulatory instrument for all allowed uses. The following list shows federal and state
regulatory agencies, as well as local jurisdictions, that will administer oversight for operations,
safety, environmental controls, emergency management, closure, and other aspects of the use.

e Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP), including:
Bureau of Air Pollution Control

Bureau of Corrective Actions

Bureau of Mining Regulation and Reclamation

Bureau of Safe Drinking Water

Bureau of Water Pollution Control

Bureau of Waste Management

Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA)

Nevada State Fire Marshall’s Office

Storey County Fire Protection District

State Emergency Response Commission

Storey County Emergency Management

e U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

e Nevada Division of Minerals

e Nevada Division of Water Resources

e Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT)

e Bureau of Land Management (BLLM) (applicable to activity on federal lands)
e State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)

e Comstock Historic District Commission (CHDC)

e Storey County Building, Planning, and Public Works Departments

O 0 O O O O

3.2 Operating plan requirements

Regulations administered by the NDEP and BLM require the applicant to develop and maintain a
Plan of Operations for its mining and processing activities. The plan must contain basic
information and complex plans by which the facility will be managed during normal operations,
and during emergencies and other unusual events. SCC 17.92.080 requires the applicant to
develop, maintain, and submit to Storey County an operating plan that meets both federal and
state standards (i.e., the minimum Plan of Operations requirements), and certain local regulations
that exceed those standards. The applicant is required to submit the plan to the county before
project commencement and provide it updates when minor or major modifications to the plan are

14 of 135



Staff Report ~ 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

made. Specific items to be included in the plan are as follows:

e basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information;

o plot plan, including detailed sketch drawings of the premises, areas of activity including
mining, processing, mine definition, exploration, and ancillary uses;

e emergency contact procedures, including for site management and primary response;
applicable federal and state emergency disaster agencies, including the NDEP; Dispatch
9-1-1 (including Storey County emergency services direct connect 775.847.0950); and
other applicable responders;

e emergency disaster planning and procedures;

e wildland fire prevention and suppression, including noxious weed fuels management;

e emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging;

e documenting and reporting of emergency situations, including spills;

e post-disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal;

e post-disaster damage reporting for treatment of historic structures and properties;

e site reclamation plan with surety bond and estimated timeline for reclamation;

o documenting and reporting of NDEP and other environmental permits and notices;

e noxious weed management; and

e environmental management and Best Management Practices (BMPs).

3.3 Reclamation

Post-mining reclamation requirements on the subject property will be administered by the NDEP
and BLM, as applicable, and by the conditions of the amended SUP. Nevada Revised Statutes
(NRS) 519A.010 and 519.100, administered by the NDEP, define reclamation and actions that
will “...shape, stabilize, re-vegetate, or otherwise treat the [mined] land in order to return itto a
safe, stable condition consistent with the establishment of a productive post-mining use of the
land and the abandonment of a facility in a manner which ensures the public safety, as well as
the encouragement of techniques which minimize the adverse visual effects.”

As described in Section 2.3, the project is located almost entirely on private land which is owned
or controlled by the applicant. However, at any given time up to five acres of activity may be
occurring on adjacent federal lands. Up to the five acre threshold, reclamation of affected BLM
administered land will be managed by the NDEP in a manner consistent with the Federal Land
Policy Management Act (FLPMA) as implemented by 43 CFR 3809. Coordination of these
complimentary programs is implemented through the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
for Mining and Mineral Related Activities within the State of Nevada, among the Nevada
Department of Conservation Division of Environmental Protection and the U.S. Department of
Agriculture; Forest Service Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest and Inyo National Forest; and the
U.S. Department of Interior Bureau of Land Management, Nevada. Through this MOU, the
NDEP has assumed the role of lead agency in the implementation of post-operations reclamation
as currently applicable to the subject property.

The following paragraphs explain Nevada State post-operation reclamation requirements

administered by the NDEP as well as certain restrictions in the amended SUP that will exceed
those regulations. Reclamation requirements are also discussed further in Section 3.4.

15 of 136



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.3.1 Reclamation of the mine

As required by the NDEP Reclamation Permit, the applicant submitted and has maintained
with the state agency a comprehensive reclamation plan by which it has and will continue to
complete post-operation reclamation in accordance with state standards. The state standards
administered by the NDEP require complete reclamation of processing and ancillary uses
throughout the subject property. The federal and state standards for reclamation of mine pits
following closure, however, do not require comprehensive reclamation. Directed partially by
NAC 519.250(5), the NDEP Reclamation Permit requires only that the applicant installs
protective barriers (e.g., berms and fences) around portions of the remaining pits in order to
prevent public access and to mitigate safety hazards.

SCC 17.92 imposes regulations for mine operations, reclamation, and reclamation surety
bonding that exceed the state standards. The county code also promulgates findings of fact
(Section 4.2) that express the importance of protecting natural and historic landscapes,
including natural and man-made features, within the Virginia City National Historic
Landmark from undue degradation caused by mining and related uses.

The applicant is most familiar with the local regulations. Members of Comstock Mining, Inc.
were actively engaged in the development of the local mining regulations during a series of
public workshops that occurred in 2011 and 2012 before Board approval in December of
2012. At or about that time, the applicant also added to the NDEP Reclamation Permit a
written statement emphasizing its position on the importance of responsible mining and
comprehensive post-operations reclamation. The applicant stated that “Comstock [Comstock
Mining, Inc.] developed reclamation concepts for closure and reclamation of pits and waste
rock dumps that will, in addition to meeting NDEP regulations, also meet Storey County
objectives for the promotion of tourism.” The applicant also added that it could voluntarily
contribute royalties, such as one-percent mine proceeds, to Storey County to be applied
toward post-operation reclamation [of its mine}.” (p.3)

In order to provide for practicable mining, and maintain conformance with the findings and
provisions of SCC 17.92, the amended SUP will require project phasing, concurrent
reclamation (Section 2.3), and reclamation surety bonding requirements that exceed state
standards (Section 3.3). The operating plan required by the amended SUP, however, will
contain the minimum elements required by the NDEP and BLM for the uses on the subject
property. In will also include the regulatory elements contained in this section and the
following paragraphs for concurrent post-operation reclamation.

e Reclamation standards. The applicant will be required to identify areas in the required
NDEP or BLM reclamation plan where post-operation reclamation requirements are less
stringent than the minimum standards prescribed in the amended SUP. The applicant must
include a detailed analysis of subject conditions and describe methods by which it will
meet the more stringent requirements.

e Reclamation schedule. The plan must include a reclamation schedule showing mine
phasing and concurrent reclamation that meet the standards in the amended SUP.

16 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

Visual rendition. The plan must contain photographic or computer simulated visuals
showing pre-mining surface conditions and estimated conditions throughout mine phasing
and at post-closure. The model must be updated concurrently with mine phasing and at
each time a minor or major modification to the operating plan or reclamation plan results
in a substantial divergence from the submitted visual model. The Planning Department
may determine viewpoint locations and impose other requirements for the visual models.

Grading and contouring. The reclamation plan must show that all surface disturbances will
be graded and contoured to a condition which is safe, stable, and reasonably flush and
consistent with the surrounding undisturbed or fully reclaimed topography and surface
environment. The plan must also include measures by which open-pits, benches and bench
faces, and other lateral surfaces caused by the surface mine will be treated in order to
reasonably mitigate visual and other impacts. Mitigation must include as practicable,
partial backfilling; sloping; grading; and other surface treatments that mitigate visual
impacts; create natural appearing topography that does not resemble a “manufactured
appearance”; conform to natural and other drainage ways; and facilitate successful re-
vegetation and noxious weed abatement.

Bench face allowances. As stated above, the amended SUP will require that mine pits are
fully reclaimed, and that reclamation includes partial backfilling, grading, and re-
contouring so that post-mining surfaces are reasonably consistent with the immediate
surrounding natural or fully reclaimed topography and surface conditions. However,
county staff recognizes that complete backfilling of mine pits and re-grading of all
benches, bench faces, and other lateral surfaces may be impracticable or impossible. To
provide for practicable mining while reasonably mitigating associated impacts, the
amended SUP will allow for a portion of bench faces and other lateral surfaces to remain
permanently.

The amended SUP will allow up to 30 percent of all bench faces existing at the time of
approval of the SUP (as amended) and up to 30 percent of all bench faces created by new
mining east of the State Route 342 alignment, as it exists at the time of this SUP approval,
to remain permanently after mine reclamation. This 30 percent allowance will be subject
to review and approval by the Planning Department. The Planning Department’s
determination will be subject to appeal to the Board of Commissioners as provided by
SCC 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

Existing bench faces and exposed lateral surfaces are illustrated in Figure 3.1. The images
provided by the applicant show existing surface conditions caused by mining, and
conditions that are anticipated following reclamation. The images depict existing and
proposed conditions at the Billy the Kid, Lucerne, Hartford, and Justice pits. Bench faces
at the Keystone pit were reclaimed by the applicant in 2014, and, therefore, are not
included in this report. The applicant expects most new mining to occur east of the
existing State Route 342 alignment.

17 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

All remaining bench faces and exposed lateral surfaces will be treated to mitigate visual
contrast with the surrounding natural or fully reclaimed environment. Treating exposed
side walls with an oxidation accelerator or other durable and environmentally safe manner
are acceptable methods of meeting this requirement.

e Re-vegetation. A re-vegetation plan must be included in the operating plan. The plan must
show that all surfaces remaining post-operation will be treated and re-vegetated following
the standards administered by the NDEP or BLM (whether or not the agencies require re-
vegetation). Unless directed otherwise by the Planning Department, or the applicable
federal or state agency, seeding, re-seeding and planting will take place in the autumn
season during the months of October or November, but not during times of extreme
weather conditions such as snow or sub-freezing conditions. Re-vegetation is not required
on remaining post-operation surfaces pursuant to the preceding paragraph.

18 of 135



Staff Report ~ 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847 1144

T L et

Figure 3.1: The base images were provided by the applicant as part of its SUP application. County staff outlined
estimated bench faces and other lateral surfaces that are expected to remain following mine reclamation. The
total surfaces appear to be 30 percent or less of the existing exposed bench faces. The images are described from
top to bottom: (top) Justice pit looking south from S.R. 342; (middle) Billy the Kid pit in the background and the
Justice pit in the foreground looking south from State Route 342; and (bottom) looking southwest from State
Route 342, the image from left to right shows the Billy the Kid, Lucerne, Hartford, and a portion of the Justice pits.

19 0f 135



Staff Report - 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.3.2 Reclamation of processing and ancillary uses

The NDEP Reclamation Plan provides for comprehensive post-operation reclamation of all
processing areas, including heap-leach pads, detention ponds, roads and staging areas,
buildings and structures, and other disturbances. Federal requirements under NEPA will also
provide comprehensive environmental protection and post-operation reclamation requirements
for said uses. Accordingly, the amended SUP will only require conformance with the NDEP
and BLM minimum standards for post-operation reclamation for ancillary uses and the
processing facility.

It is hereby noted that the NDEP Reclamation Plan (p. 33) states that exploration roads within
the subject property will be reclaimed during the closure period unless the BLM or Storey
County request that some or all of these roads remain. The applicant will cooperate with the
agencies to determine which, if any, of the exploration roads should remain post-closure. The
amended SUP will recognize this state permit provision and cooperate with the applicant, and
the NDEP and BLM, accordingly.

3.4 Reclamation surety

NAC 519.350 administered by the NDEP requires a surety bond for post-operation reclamation.
The NDEP Reclamation Permit shows that the applicant has posted a surety bond in the
approximate- amount—of -$6,347,963- for—post-operation reclamation of mining, processing,
exploration, and ancillary uses (Bond No. 1079871, 2014). The bond amounts for each
categorical use are approximately as follows: $990,338, earthworks and re-contouring; $164,831,
re-vegetation and stabilization; $2,885,299, process facility water detoxification, treatment, and
disposal; $280,620, structure and equipment removal; $69,070, post-operation monitoring; and
$282,867, management (see bond details in Exhibit H).

The required surety bond for reclaiming surface disturbances caused by mining, mine definition,
and exploration will be as determined by the NDEP or BLM (NAC 519A.370). However, where
state or federal regulations require no reclamation and reclamation bond, or where valid evidence
suggests that the requirements do not meet the minimum standards for reclamation of the entire
mined area as set forth in the amended SUP, the applicant must submit to the Planning
Department valid evidence that it has posted cash or other bond for complete post-operation
reclamation as required by the SUP. Valid documentation of surety must be submitted to the
Planning Department prior to surface disturbances.

The amount of surety bond necessary to fulfill the requirements of amended SUP will be
determined by a qualified licensed engineer or environmental manager at the expense of the
applicant. That determination and the data supporting it will be subject to review by a qualified
third-party person chosen by Storey County. The county’s third-party person will have
jurisdiction over portions of the reclamation plan and surety that exceed the minimum standards
required by federal and state regulations and permits.

3.5 SUP Expiration

SCC 17.12.160(C) limits the duration of an SUP for large-scale mining to no longer than twenty
years. It also states that an SUP may be limited to a lesser period of time for surface mining, but
not less than five years, as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners with

20 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

recommendation by the Planning Commission. The existing SUP contains no provisions for
expiration, as long as the associated use remains active and in compliance with applicable
regulations.

Conforming to SCC 17.92, including the findings therein under Section 17.92.030, and in
consideration of the scope and uses proposed, the amended SUP will expire ten years from the
date of approval by the Board of Commissioners. As set forth in 17.92.160(E), the applicant may
submit an application to renew the SUP prior to its expiration, or apply for a new subsequent
SUP. The Board with recommendation by the Planning Commission may deny or approve the
application, or approve the application with amended or added conditions that it deems
appropriate to conform to federal, state, and county regulations.

3.6  State Route 342 alignment and re-alignment

State Route 342 is the primary arterial route connecting Gold Hill, Virginia City, and other south
and central Storey County communities with each other and to US Highway 50. State Route 342
runs north-south, and for approximately two miles abuts the east boundary of the Lucerne and
Justices pits.

The applicant discussed with officials of Storey County and the Nevada Department of
Transportation (NDOT) several preliminary concepts by which its objectives for eastward mine
expansion may be achieved in relation to the road’s existing alignment. They included: (a)
construction of a bridge over or under the road through which mining and non-mining (civilian)
traffic may occur simultaneously; (b) realigning the road west of its existing alignment in
concurrence with reclamation of the adjacent Lucerne and Justice pits; or (c) realigning the road
to the east of the newly proposed mine expansion area. Closing and removing portions of the
road and making State Route 341 (Truck Route) the primary access for the region is also
considered an alternative; however, this option is not proposed by the applicant and is strongly
opposed by Storey County.

The amended SUP allows the applicant flexibility in planning and executing viable alternatives
for eastward mine expansion in relation State Route 342. However, Storey County recognizes
that this road serves practical purposes for inter-local transportation; provides for vital life-safety
access, including for EMS, fire, and law enforcement services; and contributes substantially to
the local tourism economies of Gold Hill, Virginia City, and Silver City. Except under temporary
circumstances when an access plan is approved by the Fire Protection District and the Sheriff’s
Office, closing the road is considered by Storey County unreasonable and irresponsible.

The amended SUP allows for re-alignment of State Route 342 in a manner which is determined
by Storey County and NDOT, as applicable, practical, safe, and reasonably efficient. For the
purpose of conforming to the findings in SCC 17.92 and provisions in the Storey County Master
Plan for protecting the historical character and authenticity of the area for tourists and residents,
the amended SUP will also require the road, as existing or modified, to maintain its north and
south traffic flows through Gold Canyon and in its current approximate alignment through
Devil’s Gate.

210f135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.7 Water source and distribution

3.7.1 Source of operations water

Water used for domestic purposes, dust control, processing, fire suppression systems, and
other uses on the subject property is appropriated from two on-site private wells. Water is
also purchased from the Storey County Water System through an agreement between the
Storey County Water System and the applicant. Purchased water is diverted from the primary
service line of the Marlette system before it reaches the municipal treatment plant. Diverted
untreated water is metered then gravity fed into the applicant’s private storage and
distribution system. The applicant currently purchases approximately 26,000,000 gallons of
water per year from the Storey County Water System. The principal purpose of the Marlette
System is to serve domestic water to Virginia City, Gold Hill, and Silver City. Under normal
operating conditions, the system is fully capable of servicing the needs of each community
and the applicant’s uses concurrently. During unusual events, including during system
failures, repairs, and other conditions causing potential water shortage, the applicant’s facility
is immediately shut-off from water service by the Public Works Department.

3.7.2 Silver City water line

The Storey County Water System serves as the primary source of municipal water for Silver
City. From the Marlette System and following treatment, water is transmitted approximately
eight miles through Gold Canyon to Silver City through a 4” to 6” underground main line.
Approximately 2,500’ of the water main runs through land on which surface and
underground mining and related activities may occur. Portions of the water line are
antiquated and brittle, and are vulnerable to damage and failure.

The amended SUP will require the applicant to develop a comprehensive plan by which it
will protect the Silver City water main from accidental damage caused by surface and
underground activity, and from ground vibrations or other movement caused thereby. It shall
also include a detailed description of how accidental damage to the line, or events causing
disruption to service as a result of activity associated with the SUP, will be treated and
remedied immediately.

The applicant must actively engage with the Storey County Public Works Director in
developing this plan. The plan must be approved by the Public Works Director before
mining, mine definition, exploration, and other such activities may occur on land east of
State Route 342 at its current alignment. The Public Works Director with concurrence by the
County Manager may at any time require the applicant to replace, at the applicant’s expense,
portions of the water line that run through the subject property and which are believed to be
highly susceptible to damage caused by the described activities. The conditions of the
amended SUP requiring the plan were reviewed and determined to be sufficient by the Storey
County Public Works and Planning Departments, and by the Storey County and Central Lyon
County Fire Protection Districts.

The applicant will be responsible for costs associated with needed repairs or replacement of
the water line if substantial evidence suggests that the damage was caused by uses under the
SUP. All repairs and replacement shall be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

22 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.8  Best Management Practices

The NDEP or BLM, as applicable, will monitor and administer BMPs throughout the subject
property. BMPs are measures that are taken to protect air, water, and land quality at and around
the project. They include, but are not limited to, erosion control, including straw wattles and silt
fencing; stormwater run-off, run-on drainage and detention systems; surface treatment to
mitigate wind and other erosion; environmental management of roads, staging areas, and egress
points; and post-operation removal of BMP devices.

3.9 Cultural resources

The current operating plan contains provisions to protect cultural resources that are found on the
subject property. Should any prehistoric or historic remains/artifacts be discovered during
development or excavation, work must temporarily be halted at the specific site. The applicant
must immediately contact Planning Department, Comstock Historic District, and the NDEP, in
order for the site to be evaluated, and, if deemed necessary, and for findings to be recorded and
photographed if needed. The period of temporary delay will be limited to a minimum of two
working days from the date of notification, unless it is a significant find and it is deemed
necessary to provide more time to evaluate and protect historical remains or artifacts.

3.10 Site general management

Portions of the subject property and uses occurring therein are remotely located, and activities
may occur far from emergency and other services. To assure safety of project associates, a site
supervisor should be present at all times during hours of operation to maintain a safe and orderly
environment. The supervisor should have knowledge of and access to site facilities, access
points, and firc and emergency equipment. Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA)
Certified for the level of management will also apply to all persons on-site.

3.11 Groundwater monitoring

Monitoring wells have been installed by the applicant for its existing operation. The NDEP
requires installation of these monitoring wells to monitor the heap leach process and overall
processing facility for possible groundwater contamination. Well permits must be obtained from
the Building Department and the NDEP prior to drilling. The applicant must submit monitoring
reports and other findings to the Building Department on a quarterly basis during the first year of
operations, including for heap leach pad expansions. If no signs of leakage or other groundwater
contamination occur, then monitoring report submittal maybe reduced to bi-annually until full
closure of the processing facility.

3,12 Air monitoring

Air emissions, including dust and other airborne materials, must conform to the limitations
administered by the NDEP or BLM in the applicable air permits. Copies of annual reports of
environmental quality necessary to conform to the requirements of the permit(s) issued by the
NDEP or BLM have been and will continue to be submitted to the Building and Planning
Departments for review and filing. In the event that there is an air discharge in excess of the
standards allowed by the NDEP or BLM under its construction or operating permit(s), the
applicant will be required to provide notice of action to the Building and Planning Departments
within 24 hours of receipt. If the applicant is required by the NDEP or BLM to prepare a report
on the event, the applicant will be required to submit a copy of the report to said county
departments simultaneously with the applicable federal or state agency.

23 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.13  Carson River Mercury Superfund Site

The Carson River Basin, from New Empire to Stillwater and the Carson Sink, was designated a
National Priority Listed (NPL) site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA or Superfund) in August, 1990. Many areas in
Virginia City and Gold Hill, particularly where mining and milling activities historically took
place, have been identified as potentially containing heavy metal contaminants of concern
(CoC’s), mercury, arsenic, and lead, and are considered to be within the Superfund Site. The
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has stated that delineating and mitigating the entire
region would be prohibitively expensive and impracticable. The NDEP Bureau of Corrective
Actions — the local agency designated to manage the Superfund Site — informed the applicant in
2011 that certain areas within the project may contain CoC’s and are applicable to the Superfund
Site.

The Bureau of Corrective Actions has stated to county staff that the SUP applicant will be held
responsible for properly managing disturbances of existing and former mine and mill sites,
tailings, dumps, and other areas that are found to contain CoC’s. To avoid potential risk of
exposure issues, the applicant has been advised to characterize potentially hazardous areas such
as those listed above by sampling and analyzing the material for mercury, arsenic, and lead
contents as directed by the Bureau of Corrective Actions. After the CoC levels are characterized
and delineated, the applicant will be required to work cooperatively with said bureau to mitigate
the risk of exposure to human health and the environment.

4. LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

4.1 Vicinity description

Table 4.1 shows existing land uses, master plan designations, and regulatory zoning in and
around the subject property. As described in Section 2.1, the amended SUP will encompass
approximately 1,300 acres of land. The boundaries of the existing SUP (Exhibit G) and amended
SUPs include much of lower Gold Hill and American Flat. The subject property is surrounded by
a mixture of uses including, single-family residences, commercial uses, the V&T Railroad, and
large tracts of undeveloped land. Its southern boundary abuts the Storey-Lyon County line and
Silver City in Lyon County.

24 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4

Comstock Mining, Inc.

Storey County Planning
775.847.1144

Table 4.1: Compatibility with Surrounding Lands

Land

Land Use

Master Plan Designation

Zoning

Applicant's Land

Mining, processing, and
ancillary mining uses; single-
family residences; and vacant
land

Mining, milling, commercial,
residential and tourism-based land uses

CR Commercial-
Residential; F Forestry;
and SPR Special
Planning Review

uses including resource, commercial,
and residential

Land to Vacant Mining, milling, commercial, F Forestry
Southwest residential and tourism-based land uses
Land to (Storey County) vacant; (Lyon (Storey County) Mining, milling, (Storey County) F
South County) vacant; single-family commercial, residential, and tourism- Forestry; (Lyon County)
residences based land uses; (Lyon County) mixed Low-Density
uses including resource, commercial, Residential, Public
and residential Land, and Resource
Land to (Storey County) vacant; (Lyon (Storey County) Mining, milling, (Storey County) F
central southwest County) vacant commercial, residential, and tourism- Forestry; (Lyon County)
based land uses; (Lyon County) mixed Low-Density

Residential, Public
Land, and Resource

Land to Vacant; V&T Railroad; historic | Mining, milling, commercial, F Forestry
central northwest cemetery residential and tourism-based land uses
Land to Two single-family residences Mining, milling, commercial, F Forestry
Northwest (one under escrow for purchase residential and tourism-based land uses
by the applicant); V&T Railroad
Land to Five single-family residences Mining, milling, commercial, CR Commercial-
North (one under escrow for purchase residential and tourism-based land uses | Residential; F Forestry;
by the applicant); V&T and SPR Special
Railroad; historic cemetery Planning Review
Land to Vacant Mining, milling, commercial, CR Commercial-
Northeast residential, and tourism-based land uses | Residential; F Forestry;
and SPR Special
Planning Review
Land to Two single-family residences Mining, milling, commercial, CR Commercial-
East residential and tourism-based land uses | Residential; F Forestry;
and SPR Special
Planning Review
4.2  Land use compatibility

The subject property is located in the F Forestry and SPR Special Planning Review regulatory
zones. The F and SPR zones provide for mining and processing uses when an SUP is granted by
the Board of Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission. Uses in the
requested SUP must be found to be consistent with the purpose and intent of each zone and to be
compatible with existing surrounding uses.

The following paragraphs describe conditions that exist in and around the subject property,
including location and placement of existing residences, cyanide-based processing methods, and
the project’s relationship within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark. In order to
mitigate potential adverse impacts of the project, the amended SUP applies use restrictions and
minimum separation distances between uses allowed thereby and surrounding properties not
owned by the applicant.

25 0f 135




Staff Report - 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

4.2.1 Existing residential uses

There are two existing occupied residences abutting and three occupied residences located
within the subject property boundary. The residences and their relationship to the project site
are described below and illustrated in Figure 4.1.

e 777 American Flat Rd. (APN 004-331-27). This residence in American Flat is located on
land zoned F Forestry, is located entirely within the subject property boundary, and is
approximately 1,000’ to due west of the existing processing facility. The applicant stated
to Planning staff that it has started the escrow process to purchase the residence. County
records indicated that escrow has yet to close. The submitted SUP application contains an
affidavit from the current owner allowing this SUP to apply to the property. The
applicant expressed plans to use the residence after purchase for boarding company
employees and guests.

The conditions of the amended SUP are intended to mitigate potential impacts to abutting
residences, and this residence is subject to those protections. However, when the
applicant assumes ownership of the property, it may choose to use all or portions of this
land for uses contained in the SUP, except where expressly prohibited thereby, or by
applicable federal, state, and county regulations.

e 2820 Slippery Gulch Rd. (APN 004-331-19). This residence is located in American Flat
on land is zoned F Forestry, and is surrounded on four sides by the subject property. The
residence is not owned by the applicant. It is located approximately 500° from the
existing processing facility, but more than 1,000° northwest of the heap leach pads and
other primary processing uses involving sodium-cyanide.

Surrounded on four sides by the subject property, access is a primary concern. The
residence is currently accessed from Upper American Flat Road. While the applicant has
not submitted proposals that would potentially disrupt access to this property, the
amended SUP will contain provisions to assure that access meeting or exceeding existing
conditions is maintained. Despite the subject property’s proximity to the residence and its
surrounding land, the amended SUP requires use separations and other restrictions that
will minimize potential adverse impacts.

Planning staff visited in-person with the property owner to discuss the applicant’s
proposal. The property owner was generally satisfied with the proposal and the measures
imposed by the SUP to mitigate potential impacts. The property owner requested
Planning staff to include a condition in the SUP requiring the applicant to clean and
maintain existing nearby natural drainage systems to prevent stormwater damage to his
property. The amended SUP requires that the applicant maintains these drainage systems
as such and at its costs.

e 2850 Slippery Gulch Rd. (APN 002-141-13). The residence is located in Gold Hill on
land zoned SPR Special Planning Review, and is surrounded on three sides by the subject
property. It is located approximately 1,000° from the existing Justice pit and former
Keystone pit (reclaimed in 2014) and is in an area proposed by the applicant for large-

26 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

scale exploration and surface mining, and/or permanent placement of waste rock.

Planning staff visited in-person with the property owners and the applicant on several
occasions to develop a mutually acceptable plan from which the subject residence would
be sufficiently protected from potential adverse impacts caused by the proposed use. The
property owners expressed concern that their property is almost entirely surrounded by
the proposed SUP and that its uses allowed thereby could occur less than 100 from their
home. After collaborating with the property owners, a recommended condition was added
to the SUP that no surface disturbance, except limited mine exploration, may occur
within approximately 700 of the residence as illustrated in Exhibit D. The recommended
condition allows for a waiver of this restriction if allowed by the subject property owners.
The SUP will also contain other requirements that will minimize potential adverse
impacts of the project.

e 2901 and 2825 Slippery Gulch Rd. (APNs 002-141-14 and 002-141-18). Both residences
are located in Gold Hill directly adjacent to the residence described in the preceding
paragraph (APN 002-141-13). They are both located on land zoned SPR Special Planning
Review. They are located entirely within the subject property boundary, and
approximately 1,000 from the Justice pit and the former Keystone pit.

These properties and the immediate surrounding area are proposed by the applicant for
large-scale exploration and surface mining, and/or permanent placement of waste rock.
The applicant submitted with its application for amended SUP affidavits from both
property owners certifying approval for the SUP to include their land.

27 of 135



kedue wensd |
{panoq ¢ WL PIANO] QRPTL Juning - Mg O gbﬁ_ﬂOD
' Ty

PRI Y 20T OIRICT —
Anrpmmoq 1S YRI0 005 TP STEpTSar Funstr - @D .

OO I3 TUXDTY PR Tof [4f IDOY WG IODITT e e

SE130 8¢

(@1eWix01dde) Sasn Juadelpe J9y10 pue S3JUIPISIU 03 DURISI] T°Y NSty

“E1Ep S1j1 J¢ AoRINooe 10 ASUSIOTYNS S1 0} Se AJuno))

Ka101g Aq pawnsse st Afiqel] oN (VJaN) 10V A91[0d [SIUSWUOIAUF [BUOHEN Syl I9pun UOLoe
(VH) SIUSWSSISSY [EIUSUWUONIAUS JO SILIEPURO( 10 ‘S3LIpUNoq Wie[o Jururu ‘satrepunoq Kem
30~y 3t ‘sow| [sored SulA[Iopum mo([0y A[jerouad pue sjewrkoldde sre umoys saURPUNOq d(1S
Y] 018 ‘sAaAms-21 ‘spasp ‘sdeut Je[d 92MOS JALRILIOYIME 3Y) 10} JUSWHIE[daI SE PaNLSUed

2( 10U P[UOYS PUE UOHEAUI[AP ASAINS JU3s91daI JOU SIOP UISISY PAUIEJUOD BJep Y], ;310N




)

Fig

. 4 el § i & 4 o
ure 4.1 (continued): Distance to residences and other adjacent uses (approximate)

4.2.2 Processing and cyanide

NRS 445A.433 and SCC 17.92.090 prohibit new mining-related uses involving cyanide to be
located within 1,000” of existing occupied residences. The SUP application does not propose
use of cyanide or other processing methods within this distance. The amended SUP will
conform to the state and county regulations by imposing the required 1,000’ separation.

4.2.3 Protection of historic environment

In 2012 following a series of community workshops, including with sustained active
involvement by the applicant, the Board of Commissioners with recommendation by the
Planning Commission ratified substantial amendments to SCC 17.92 regulating mining and
related uses in the county. The revised ordinance increased regulations of surface mining in
the county, clarified and streamlined regulations that may be applicable to underground
mining, and provided a comprehensive regulatory and entitlement structure for exploration,
ancillary uses, small mining, and other such uses.

The revised ordinance also promulgates findings of fact (SCC 17.92.030) that recognize
certain benefits and potential adverse impacts of mining, and provide for the protection of
both mining and non-mining interests. This report and the recommended conditions for SUP
approval were based on conformance with those findings. Key findings and regulatory
elements contained in the ordinance are summarized in the following paragraphs.

29 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

o Findings (SCC 17.92.030). The ordinance expressly finds the following with regard to
mining activities within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark:

o Mineral and surface property rights exist and SCC 17.92 serves to protect both;

o Storey County has a diversified economy, which includes mining, tourism, and other
industries;

o When regulated appropriately, mining may be compatible with non-mining uses;

o SCC 17.92 serves to address and mitigate potential adverse impacts of mining,
particularly surface mining, including its impacts on natural and historic resources, and
adjacent uses now and in the future;

o The Storey County Master Plan includes provisions for mining, but emphasizes reducing
land use conflicts and preserving historic resources and remnants of local heritage;

o Surface mining causes substantially greater impact to the surface environment than
underground mining, and in some instances, precludes complete restoration of the
affected land to a condition existing prior to the surface mine; therefore, underground
mining should be highly encouraged and surface mining should be highly regulated;

o Land within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark contains critical natural and
manmade features which contribute to the historic integrity and authenticity of Gold Hill
and Virginia City, and the ordinance serves to protect those features from degradation
caused by surface mining. Accordingly, SCC 17.92 prohibits large-scale surface mining
within certain areas identified in the “Comstock Historic Preservation Area” map
(Exhibit F) adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and the mining uses allowed
by the amended SUP will not encroach into that area; and

o Mining which occurs within the Gold Hill and Virginia City area, and other areas within
the Comstock, must include appropriate management of potential NDEP recognized
Contaminates of Concern (COCs) applicable to the Carson River Mercury Superfund
Site.

e Certain areas restricted from surface mining. Pursuant to the findings summarized in this

section, the local ordinance delineates on a map titled “Comstock Historic Preservation

Area” where large-scale surface mining is prohibited and where is it allowed in American
Flat, Gold Hill, and Virginia City, and the immediate surrounding areas. The ordinance
allows no more than five acres of surface mining in the restricted area. The amended SUP
provides for no large-scale surface mining within the restricted area. Shown in Figures
2.1 and Exhibits A and B, portions of the amended SUP boundaries encroach into the
restricted area along portions of American Flat Road and adjacent to the existing
processing site. However, the amended SUP will restrict uses in those areas to service
utilities, access, and right-of-way development and improvements.

30 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

5. PUBLIC SAFETY

The subject property will contain potential hazardous conditions including, but not limited to,
sodium-cyanide and other chemicals, open water bodies, open pits and benches, blasting, and
operation of heavy equipment. Safety and security oversight is performed by federal, state, and
local agencies, including those described below and in Section 3.1 of this report.

The Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) is the primary agency that administers
federal regulations on operations and facility safety. MSHA regulations apply to all mining
related uses within the subject property, and the agency conducts frequent unannounced safety
compliance inspections to assure compliance.

The Storey County Fire Protection District and the Nevada State Fire Marshall’s Office are also
principally involve in safety on the premises, particularly with regard to fire suppression and
prevention, management of hazardous materials and uses; and planning for unexpected
emergency events.

The amended SUP will require the applicant to coordinate with the applicable federal, state, and
county agencies in developing its operating plan. The final plan must conform to the
requirements of each agency, and copies of the plan must be provided by the applicant to each
agency for review and filing and each time a minor or major modification to it is made.

6. APPLICABLE CODES & REGULATIONS

SCC 17.92 (mining ordinance) is the principal local regulation guiding the development of the
SUP. It contains provisions for findings of approval or denial (17.92.030); classification of scale
of operations (17.92.070 and 17.92.140); application, planning, and operations requirements
(17.92.080); minimum conditions of SUP approval (17.92.160); compliance review (17.92.170);
and protections for adjacent uses and the Virginia City National Historic Landmark (inclusive).

Applicable local regulatory zones include the F Forestry and SPR Special Planning Review
Zones. SCC 17.32.020(M-N) and 17.44.030(A-B), respectively, provide for mining and mining-
related processing in the F and SPR Zones when an SUP is approved by the Board of County

Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission. Other principal guiding
local regulations include SCC 8.02 and 8.04 for control of outdoor lighting and noise,

vUvial Liviulav . JO L0 8 8 Y Lol

respectively; and SCC 17.03, for compliance review and show-cause procedures, and minimum
requirements of any SUP.

7. MASTER PLAN

The amended SUP, inclusive of the areas of proposed expansion, appears to conform to the goals
and objectives of the Storey County Master Plan including: enhancing diversification of
economic opportunities within the county (Chapter 3, Goal 1); protecting the quality of present
and future water resources (Chapter 5, Goal 2); regulating use of watershed areas to minimize

31 0f135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

fire danger and prevent degradation (Chapter 5, Goal 4); protection of historical resources and
consultation with the Comstock Historic District Commission on development (Chapter 8, Goal
1 and Objective 1.1); maintaining a healthy environment for all residents of the county (Chapter
9, Goal 1), and ensure land use plans are compatible with the zoning map, master plan, and
previous planning decisions (Chapter 9, Objective 1.1); and reducing land use conflicts between
mining operations and other private and public land users, and preserving the historic heritage of
the Comstock (Virginia City/Gold Hill, Goal 1 and Goal 2).

8. FINDINGS

8.1 Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the amended SUP under the recommended conditions of
approval shown in Section 9. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these findings
and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

8.1.1 Requirement by code

All land within the amended SUP boundary is zoned SPR Special Planning Review and F
Forestry. Accordingly, the application for amended SUP was submitted pursuant to SCC
Sections 17.32.020(M-N), and 17.44.030(A) which list “mining” and “milling and processing
related to mining” as allowed in each zone with an SUP approved by the Board of County
Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission.

8.1.2 SCC 17.92 findings incorporated

SCC Section 17.92.030 lists findings of fact related to mining; mining uses and rights; rights
and protections of non-mining uses potentially impacted by mining; and protecting the
historical value and integrity of the Virginia City National Historic Landmark. Those findings
in their entirety are hereby incorporated into the approval of the amended SUP, and it is
hereby recognized that the amended SUP conforms to the purpose and intent of the findings.

8.1.3 Requirement by code

The conditions of the amended SUP are not in conflict with the purpose, intent, and other
specific requirements of the F Forestry Zone and SPR Special Planning Review Zone in
which the subject use will be located.

8.1.4 Use compatibility

The conditions of approval under the amended SUP impose sufficient regulations on the
proposed use to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment and
existing adjacent land uses.

8.1.5 Regulation compatibility

The conditions under the amended SUP are at least as stringent as and not in conflict with the
applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under SCC
Chapter 17.03 (Administrative Provisions) and SCC 17.92 (mining) for issuance of an SUP
are incorporated into the conditions of the amended SUP.

32 0f135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

8.1.6 Conformance with prior SUP

The amended conditions and the remaining unchanged conditions the amended SUP comply
with the land use requirements of the underlying regulatory zones and are as stringent and not
in conflict with federal, state, and county regulations pertaining to the uses allowed by the
amended SUP.

8.2  Motion for denial
Should a motion be made to deny the amended SUP application, the following findings with an
explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

8.2.1 Conformance
The amended SUP does not conform to the minimum requirements of federal, state, and
county regulations or the findings of fact included in SCC 17.92.

8.2.2 Regulatory zone

Uses allowed under the amended SUP, even with reasonable restrictions and mitigation, will
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other requirements of the F Forestry Zone and the SPR
Special Planning Review Zone.

8.2.3 Compatibility
Uses allowed under the amended SUP, even with reasonable restrictions and mitigations, will
cause substantial adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses.

8.2.4 No effect on existing SUP

The motion to deny the amended SUP (SUP Application No. 2000-222-A-4) applies only to
the proposed amendments, and not to the existing permitted SUP (SUP No. 2000-222-A-3).
The denial will have no effect or cause change to the entitlements, permitted uses, area of
land, or verbiage of the existing SUP.

33 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

9.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

I.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Purpose and scope

Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2000-222-A-4 amends and replaces SUP No. 2000-222-A-3.
It also replaces SUP No. 2011-016 (for exploration) which shall be deemed closed upon
approval of the SUP subject hereto. This SUP is for the purpose of surface and underground
mining (mining); processing, milling, and beneficiation (processing); mine definition;
exploration; and uses which are ancillary to those uses. The boundaries of the land subject to
this SUP (subject property) and the categorical uses allowed therein are illustrated in Exhibit
A and B enclosed herewith as follows:

e “Area A” may only be used for mining, mine definition, exploration, and related uses;
e “Area B” may only be used for processing and related uses;

e “Area C” may only be used for water and power utility systems, and other related
infrastructure;

e “Area D” may only be used for road improvement, including separation between the
Lucerne Haul Road and American Flat Road public access/right-of-way as illustrated in
enclosed Exhibit B; and

e Uses ancillary to the principal uses may occur anywhere within the subject property.

The uses to which this SUP applies shall conform to the conditions herein, and federal, state,
and county regulations, This SUP does not convey property rights of any sort or any
exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of
other private property rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

1.2 Expiration

This SUP is effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date of its approval and
expiring on said date in the year 2024, The SUP permit holder (Permit Holder) may submit
an application to renew the SUP. The application for renewal must be submitted to the
Planning Department no less than 30 days before the expiration of this SUP. The application
shall be treated as a new SUP application and its approval or denial will be determined by the
Board of County Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission. The
approved SUP may contain additional conditions or modified conditions from those in the
preceding SUP.

1.3 Annual compliance review
At a regularly scheduled public hearing between the months of March and July of each year

34 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

beginning in the year of 2015, the Permit Holder shall provide to the Planning Commission a
public presentation report featuring the following elements of the active project:

e The extent to which it has or has not complied with the conditions of the SUP and
applicable federal, state, and county regulations.

o The status of plans and actions related to the primary Silver City water line, including
plan updates and modifications, current use encroachments thereupon, repairs and
replacement of all or portions thereof, and interruptions to service provided thereby as a
result of the foregoing.

o The status of plans and actions related to the use, modification, and impacts to State
Route 342 between Devil’s Gate and Petaluma Street (current terminus of American Flat
Road at its existing alignment), as related to uses under this SUP.

o A summary report of dust, groundwater, noise, and seismic monitoring data collected
pursuant to this SUP and the NDEP requirements throughout the year leading to the
public report.

The presentation shall disclose valid evidence of known failure to comply with those
requirements. If a violation is found to have occurred, the presentation shall explain what
measures, and to what degrees of expediency and success, the Permit Holder employed to
remedy the violation. The Permit Holder shall furnish to the Planning Department
documents, reports, notices, and other correspondence within 30 days of receipt.

1.4 Non-compliance and show-cause

Storey County may refer this SUP to the Board of County Commissioners for show-cause
hearing for revocation based on reasons listed in this section. The procedures for show-cause
will be pursuant to Storey County Code (SCC) 17.03 (Administrative Provisions). The
continuation of uses of a revoked SUP is a violation of SCC Title 17 (Zoning) and will be
punishable as provided for therein or other applicable codes. The SUP may be referred to
show-cause for the following reasons:

e Failure to comply with the SUP conditions, or federal, state, and county regulations,
without appropriate remedy;

¢ Any misrepresentation made in the application for the SUP or in other official
documents, or amendments thereof, submitted to a federal, state, or local agency;

e TFailure to provide notice to the county on violations, disasters, notice of decisions, and
other such correspondence from federal, state, and local agencies as required in this SUP.

1.5 Transfer of rights

This SUP will inure to the record owner(s) of the subject property and to the Permit Holder
(Comstock Mining, Inc.) and will run with the land. Any and all transfers of this SUP to
other persons, agencies, corporations, or entities must be advised in-person or in-writing by

35 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

e
e

Certified Mail to the Planning Department at least 90 days prior to assignee taking over the
project. The notice must contain the name(s), phone number(s), mailing address, and other
contact information for the assignee. The new owners/managers must sign and accept all
conditions and requirements of this SUP and submit documentation of their acceptance to the
Building and Planning Departments at least 90 days prior to the transfer.

1.6 Indemnification and insurance

The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to federal, state, and
county regulations; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Permit Holder and property owner(s) agree to hold Storey
County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities
associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may
occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit Holder must maintain $5,000,000 of liability
insurance coverage and umbrella liability insurance coverage. The umbrella policy shall
provide coverage for environmental events and disasters associated with the uses under this
SUP. The Permit Holder shall submit valid documentation of the required coverage each
year, or when changes are made to either policy.

1.7 Surface estate protection

Uses allowed under this SUP shall only occur on properties owned, leased, or otherwise
legally controlled by the Permit Holder. At no time may surface disturbances, e.g., grading,
equipment staging, and surface subsidence from underground activity, take place on surface
property not owned, leased, or otherwise legally controlled by the Permit Holder. An
exception to this limitation may be made upon the expressed written permission of the
affected property owner(s) as allowed by this SUP and applicable federal, state, and county
regulations. The written permission shall be submitted to the Building and Planning
Departments at least 15 days prior to commencement of the subject operation.

1.8 Sales tax reporting

All material and equipment purchased for the project must as possible be received in Storey
County and the value reported as “County-of-Delivery” on the Nevada Department of
Taxation Form TPI-02.01 “Combined Sales and Use Tax Return”. The Permit Holder must
also report the value for all materials and equipment (personal and rented) “used” on this
project as “Use Tax” on TPI-02.01 or TPI-02.02.

The Permit Holder must submit a copy of its operating plan to the Storey County Fire
Protection District (Fire District), and the Building, Emergency Management, and Planning
Departments for review and approval. The plan must be submitted by the Permit Holder prior
to commencement of operations under this SUP; updates to the plan must be submitted
thereafter when a minor or major modification is made to the plan. In addition to the
minimum requirements of the applicable state and federal agency, the operating plan
submitted to the county shall include all elements contained in this section and otherwise in
the requirements of this SUP. The elements required in this SUP are not exhaustive; the Fire

36 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

District, Planning Department, or other county department, may impose additional
requirements that are necessary to meet the requirements of this SUP and applicable federal,
state, and county regulations. At a minimum, the plan shall include:

II1.

Basic company, owner, site, and emergency contact information;
Detailed plot plan of the subject property and the uses therein, including phasing;

All elements and supporting documentation included in a Plan of Operation required by
the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) or the Bureau of Land
Management (BLM), as applicable;

Site evacuation and emergency procedure and emergency contact procedures, including
for the NDEP, Dispatch 9-1-1, and Storey County emergency services direct connect
(775.847.0950); hazardous materials management plan; wildland fire prevention and
suppression; “Hot work”™ permitting; on-site water storage for wildland fire prevention
and suppression; blasting and explosives management; access, circulation, and staging,
including for emergency and non-emergency vehicles; documenting and reporting of
emergency situations; post-disaster management, cleanup, and material disposal; and
post-disaster damage reporting for treatment of historic structures and properties;

Comprehensive post-operation reclamation plan as required by the NDEP or BLM, and
the more stringent requirement in this SUP for concurrent and more thorough post-
operations reclamation. The plan shall also include calculations for determining the
amount of reclamation surety bonding applicable to the requirements of the NDEP, BLM,
and this SUP (see Conditions 3.3 - 3.6).

Comprehensive plan by which the Permit Holder will protect the Silver City water utility
from accidental damage caused by surface and underground activity, and from ground
vibrations or other movement caused thereby. The plan shall also include a detailed
description of how accidental damage to the line, or events causing disruption to service
as a result of activity associated with the SUP, will be treated and remedied immediately
(see Condition 7.4).

Process for documentation and reporting to the county environmental permits, notices,
approvals, abatement mandates, and other related actions of the NDEP, BLM, and other
applicable federal and state agencies; and

Management of air, water, stormwater, noxious weeds, wildland fire fuels management,
BMPs, and other environmental elements.

PHASING & RECLAMATION

3.1 Limited use — mining, mine definition, and exploration
In addition to the requirements for mine phasing and post-operations reclamation
administered by the NDEP or BLM, as applicable, the Permit Holder shall include in the

37 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

operating plan elements contained in this section. The Permit Holder shall comply with all
elements of the plan. The following thresholds shall be the standard by which the Permit
Holder may conduct operations.

e Active mining (120 acres). Cumulative surface disturbances associated with all mining,
including surface and underground mining, on the subject property is limited to 120
acres. Roads and ancillary uses are not counted against the total allowable area. Tunnels,
adits, shafts, vents, drifts, and other underground workings shall only comply with the
minimum requirements of SCC 17.92 and applicable federal and state regulations, and
will not count toward the total allowable area in this condition. Waste storage and
tailings, except for that which is being processed in accordance with the provisions of this
SUP, are counted against total allowed surface disturbance area.

e Mine definition (20 acres). Mine definition is a focused assessment of mineral deposits
and other geological conditions, including their location, extent, depth, and grade, for the
purposes of determining subsequent phasing of the active mine. Drilling and other
activities related to mine definition may occur within 300 of the active surface mine. The
cumulative allowed surface disturbance caused by mine definition will not exceed 20
acres. Drill holes, drill pads, trenches, test pits, fluid detention areas, and other surface
disturbances, but not access roads to drill sites, are counted against the total allowed
surface disturbance area. The reclamation schedule and surety bonding for definition
drilling shall be combined with and treated similarly to that for active mining. Access
roads will be treated as ancillary uses.

e Exploration (20 acres). Exploration is a focused assessment of mineral deposits and other
geological conditions, including their location, extent, depth, and grade, for the purposes
of broad-based assessment of targeted areas throughout the entire subject property.
Exploration may occur anywhere within the subject property. The cumulative allowed
surface disturbance for all exploration may not exceed 20 acres. Drill holes, drill pads,
fluid detention basins, but not access roads to drill sites, are counted against the total
allowed surface disturbance area. Trenching, test pit, and other similar methods of
exploration will be prohibited except within the active mine. Access roads will be treated
as ancillary uses.

e Active reclamation (50 acres). Explained above in this section, active surface mining is

limited to 120 acres. However, as part of allowed mine phasing, the active minc may
proceed on up to 50 additional acres when a commensurate amount land previously
mined on the subject property and in association with this SUP is reclaimed. Land within
this 50 acre threshold must be re-graded, contoured, and backfilled to a point reasonably
consistent with surrounding undisturbed or fully reclaimed topography and surface
conditions, but must not yet be treated with soil amendments, or be re-vegetated or re-
seeded. Surface treatment must provide for effective natural drainage systems and erosion

prevention, noxious weed abatement.

e Fully reclaimed. Fully reclaimed land includes land that has been re-graded, contoured,

38 0f 135



Staff Report —~ 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

and backfilled to a point reasonably consistent with surrounding undisturbed or fully
reclaimed topography and surface conditions; to which the surface has been treated with
soil amendments and growth media (topsoil); and to which seeding and successful re-
vegetation has occurred in conformance with the seeding and re-vegetation standards set
forth by the NDEP or BLM (even if such reclamation is not required by either agency).

3.2 Limited use — processing

Processing includes, but is not limited to, crushing, conveyance and agglomeration systems;
heap leach pads, including the use of sodium-cyanide; Merrill-Crowe facility and further
milling and beneficiation facilities; ponds containing sodium-cyanide and other liquid
substances; storm water detention, conveyance, and management systems; fire suppression
water containment and systems; and road, access, staging, buildings, and other uses. The
operating plan must contain the minimum elements required by the NDEP and BLM for the
uses on the subject property. In addition to those requirements, the Permit Holder shall
include in the operating plan the elements contained in this section that are more stringent
than the federal, state, and county regulations. The Permit Holder shall comply with the plan.

e Subject area. Processing may only occur in “Area B” illustrated in Exhibits A and B.
e Hours and days. Processing may occur over 24-hours per day and 365 days per week.

o Subject processing. The processing facility will be limited to receiving and processing
ore originating from: the subject property; other mine holdings of the Permit Holder
located in Lyon County; and from any mine located in Storey County that is owned by
the Permit Holder or another person or firm.

e Distances. No storage, processing, or use involving cyanide may occur within 1,000” of
an occupied dwelling unit existing at the time of this SUP approval. Dwellings that are
owned by the Permit Holder and occupied at the time of this SUP approval are exempt
from this provision once the dwelling becomes vacated. Once vacated, the use may not
become occupied by a permanent resident until said minimum 1,000° distance is
reestablished.

3.3 Reclamation — mining, mine definition, and exploration

This section applies to post-operation reclamation of the mine, and mine definition and
exploration sites. The operating plan must contain the minimum elements required by the
NDEP and BLM for the uses on the subject property. In addition to those minimum
requirements, the plan must include the elements contained in this section for concurrent
post-operation reclamation. The Permit Holder shall comply with the plan.

e Reclamation standards. The Permit Holder shall comply with the minimum post-
operation reclamation requirements administered by the NDEP and BLM. This section,
however, recognizes that the state and federal regulations may not require concurrent
reclamation and may preclude complete post-operation reclamation of certain portions of
the subject property. The Permit Holder shall identify areas in the required NDEP or
BLM reclamation plan where reclamation requirements are less stringent than the

390f 135



Staff Report - 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

standards required by this SUP. The Permit Holder shall include in its reclamation plan
detailed analyses and descriptions of subject conditions and elements that will be
employed by the Permit Holder meet the more stringent requirements in this SUP.

e Reclamation schedule. The plan must include a reclamation schedule showing mine
phasing and concurrent reclamation including, but not limited to, the elements in
Condition 3.1; time of closure/decommissioning; and the applicable required elements in
this SUP.

e Visual rendition. The plan must contain photographic or computer simulated visuals
showing pre-mining surface conditions and estimated conditions throughout mine
phasing and at post-closure. The visual renditions included in the SUP application
showing surface conditions existing at the time of approval of this SUP and proposed
post-operation reclamation conditions are enclosed herewith in Exhibit C. The image
quality and the post-operations conditions they illustrate shall represent the minimum
standard for post-operations reclamation and reclamation visual modeling.

The model must be updated concurrently with mine phasing and at each time a minor or
major modification to the operating plan or reclamation plan results in a substantial
divergence from the submitted visual model. The Planning Department may determine
viewpoint locations and impose other requirements for the visual models.

e Grading and contouring. The reclamation plan must show that all surface disturbances
will be graded and contoured to a condition which is safe, stable, and reasonably flush
and consistent with the surrounding undisturbed or fully reclaimed topography and
surface environment. The plan must also include measures by which open-pits, benches,
and other lateral surfaces of the mine will be treated in order to reasonably mitigate visual
and other impacts. Mitigation must include as practicable, partial backfilling, sloping,
grading, and other surface treatments that mitigate visual impacts, create natural
appearing topography that does not resemble a “manufactured appearance”, conform to
natural and other drainage ways, and facilitate successful re-vegetation and noxious weed
abatement.

e Bench face allowance at post operation. This SUP allows up to 30 percent of all bench
faces existing at the time of Board approval of this SUP (as amended) to remain
permanently after reclamation. This SUP also allows up to 30 percent of all bench faces
created east of the State Route 342 alignment, as it exists at the time of this SUP
approval, to remain permanently after mine reclamation. This 30 percent allowance will
be subject to the Permit Holder demonstrating to the Planning Department substantial
valid evidence that full reclamation of these bench faces is impracticable or impossible,
including within the constraints of the land and land ownership or control. The allowance
is otherwise subject to review and approval by the Planning Department. The Planning
Department’s determination may be appealed to the Board of County Commissioners as
provided by SCC 17.03 (Administrative Provisions). Bench faces and exposed lateral
surfaces existing at the time of this SUP approval are illustrated in enclosed Exhibit C.
The image show existing surface conditions at the time of this SUP approval and the

40 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

conditions that must be reasonably achieved as explained above.

All remaining bench faces and exposed lateral surfaces shall be treated to mitigate visual
contrast with the surrounding natural or fully reclaimed environment. Treating exposed
side walls with an oxidation accelerator or other durable and environmentally safe
manner are acceptable methods of meeting this requirement.

e Re-vegetation, The reclamation and re-vegetation plan required by the NDEP or BLM
must be incorporated into the operating plan. The Permit Holder shall identify areas in
the required NDEP or BLM reclamation plan where re-vegetation requirements are less
stringent than the minimum standards required by this SUP (i.e., areas within the subject
property to which re-vegetation is not required by the applicable agency). The plan must
describe a comprehensive process, including beyond NDEP and BLM requirements as
needed, by which successful post-operation re-vegetation will occur. The plan shall
conform to the standards for re-vegetation and noxious weed management for post-
mining reclamation established by the NDEP or BLM. The plan and process by which it
is administered shall also be subject to Fire District requirements and approval. Unless
directed otherwise by the Planning Department, seeding, re-seeding, and planting will
take place in the autumn season during the months of October or November, but not
during times of extreme weather conditions such as snow or sub-freezing conditions.

3.4 Reclamation — processing

This section applies to post-operation reclamation of processing facilities within the subject
property. The operating plan must contain the minimum elements required by the NDEP and
BLM, as applicable, for processing-related uses. The Permit Holder shall comply with all
elements of the plan. This SUP does not require reclamation of these uses beyond the
applicable federal and state regulations administered by the NDEP or BLM.

3.5 Reclamation — ancillary uses

This section applies to post-operation reclamation of ancillary use to the mine, mine
definition, exploration, and processing. Uses include, but are not limited to, roads and access;
equipment and vehicle staging, parking, fueling, and maintenance areas; buildings and
structures; topsoil impoundment areas; and drainage and detention systems. Ore stockpiles,
waste dumps, and tailings placed in “Area A” (Exhibits A and B) are considered part of
active mining and not ancillary uses. The operating plan must contain the minimum elements
required by the NDEP and BLM. The Permit Holder shall comply with all elements of the
plan. This SUP does not require reclamation of these uses beyond the applicable federal and
state regulations administered by said agencies.

In conformance with NDEP permits existing at the time of this SUP approval, exploration
roads within the subject \property will be reclaimed during the project closure period unless
the BLM or Storey County request that some or all of these roads remain. The Permit Holder
shall work with the agencies to determine which, if any, of the exploration roads should and
may remain post-closure (NDEP 0196 Reclamation Permit, 2014, p. 33).

41 0f 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

3.6 Reclamation surety

A surety bond is required to fund post-operation reclamation for the entire subject property.
The minimum amount of reclamation surety bond shall be as determined by the NDEP or
BLM to be reasonably sufficient to complete all required reclamation. The surety bond
required by the federal or state agency overseeing the project will be the only required surety
bond for ancillary and processing uses under this SUP. For reclamation of surface
disturbances caused by mining, mine definition, and exploration where the federal or state
agency requires no reclamation and reclamation surety, or where valid evidence indicates
that the requirements of those agencies do not meet the minimum standards for reclamation
required by this SUP, the Permit Holder shall submit to the Planning Department valid
documentation that it has posted cash or other guaranteed surety bonding for the complete
reclamation of subject uses in accordance the reclamation plan submitted pursuant to this
SUP. The valid proof of surety shall be submitted prior to surface disturbances occurring,.

The amount of surety necessary to fulfill the requirements of this SUP shall be determined by
a qualified licensed engineer or environmental manager at the expense of the Permit Holder.
The results, or a portion thereof, determined by the engineer or environmental manager are
subject to review by a qualified third-party person chosen by the county. The county’s third-
party person will only have jurisdiction over portions of the reclamation plan and
determination of the amount of needed surety that exceed the minimum standards required by
federal and state regulations.

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS

4.1 Noise limitation

At a minimum, noise levels shall conform to the requirements of SCC Chapter 8.04. The
Code limits noise at the property line to 84 decibel (octave range 500-1800). The property
line is hereby defined as the boundaries of the subject property. When it is determined by
Storey County that additional noise abatement is needed, further reasonable requirements
including, but not limited to, installation of sound-absorbing structures, earth-fill barriers,
and increased separation between machinery and residences, may be imposed on a case-by-
case basis.

4.2 Separation requirements

Camanat £ 1A
Separation from rcsidences. No new s

definition, exploration, and ancillary uses in “Area A” (Exhibit A) may occur, or
otherwise be caused to occur by the Permit Holder, within 500” of an occupied dwelling
unit existing at the time of this SUP approval, or within the distance illustrated in Exhibit
D herein to the dwelling unit existing at 2850 Slippery Gulch Road (APN 002-141-13).

The following are exempt from these requirements:

o Activities occurring within the boundaries of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3
existing prior to the approval of this SUP.

o Dwellings that are owned by the Permit Holder;

42 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

o Dwellings for which affidavits were submitted as part of the application for this SUP,
and accordingly are located entirely within the boundaries of the subject property;

o When a the affected property owner(s) in Storey County submit to the Planning
Department a signed statement that uses associated with the SUP may occur within the
distance limitation.

With regard to buffering to the dwelling unit existing at 2850 Slippery Gulch Road (APN
002-141-13), exploration activities may occur within the “Limited Drill Area” illustrated
in Exhibit D herein when such activity does not exceed the hours and days limitations
listed in the following subsection.

e Hours and days limitations. Surface activities located within 1,000’ ofa C, CR, E, P, or R
zone, or any permitted occupied dwelling use in other zones may only occur between
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and Mondays through Fridays. No activity may occur on
weekends, and national and state holidays. The following are exempt from these
requirements:

o Uses existing at the time of approval of this SUP may occur over 24-hours per day and
365 days per year. Uses include, but are not limited to, mining, mine definition and
exploration, processing, and ancillary uses, and may include, for example, the
Lucerne, Hartford, and Justice Pits, and the Lucerne Haul Road.

o Dwellings that are owned by the Permit Holder;

o Dwellings for which affidavits were submitted as part of the application for this SUP,
and, accordingly, are located entirely within the boundaries of the subject property;

o When the affected property owner(s) in Storey County submit to the Planning
Department a signed statement that uses associated with the SUP may occur within the
distance limitation. The submitted waiver may extend the hours of operation limit for
mine definition and exploration up to two days in a 30 day period, provided that the
operating times do not occur between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., and on Sundays. The
waiver shall be non-transferrable and will become null and void immediately upon the
affected property owner(s) written request to the Planning Department.

W i nd reportin
Monitoring wells must be installed as directed by the NDEP to monitor the heap leach
process and overall processing facility for possible groundwater contamination. A well
permit shall be obtained from the Building Department prior to drilling. Monitoring reports
and other findings must be submitted to the Building and Planning Department within 30
days of receipt on a quarterly basis when operations are active during the first year of
operations, including for heap leach pad expansions. If no signs of leakage or other
groundwater contamination occur, monitoring reports must be submitted thereto within 30
days of receipt bi-annually until closure.

43 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

4.4 Air monitoring and reporting.

Air emissions, including dust and other airborne materials, shall conform to NDEP air permit
standards. Copies of annual reports of environmental quality, necessary to comply with the
requirements of the permit(s) issued by the NDEP Bureau of Air Pollution Control, shall be
submitted to the Building and Planning Departments within 30 days of receipt. Air
monitoring conducted by the Permit Holder shall be inclusive and considerate of potentially
impacted residents within 1,000 of active mining areas within the subject property, including
from Storey County and Silver City, Lyon County. In the event that there is an air discharge
in excess of the standards approved by the NDEP under construction phase or operation
phase permit(s), the Permit Holder shall provide the Building and Planning Departments a
copy of any notice within 24 hours of Permit Holder’s receipt. If the Permit Holder is
required by the NDEP to prepare a report on the event, the Permit Holder shall submit a copy
of the report to the Building and Planning Departments at the same time it is submitted to the
NDEP. There shall be no obnoxious odors released into the air that are a nuisance to
surrounding properties.

4.5 Outdoor lighting (non-exempt)

SCC Chapter 8.02 (“Dark Skies”) limits outdoor lighting that may impact adjacent land uses.
Exemptions for “temporary lighting” in the Code (which normally apply to such activities as
road construction, and may appear to apply to mining and processing operations) will not
apply to uses under this SUP. All uses, buildings, structures will be required to comply with
the strictest regulations under the Code (shield lighting) to ensure minimal impacts to
neighbors and the surrounding environment.

4.6 Trees

Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces must be preserved to the extent
feasible. The Permit Holder shall not cause harm or cause to be removed trees of any type
with a trunk of six” in diameter within 75’ of the center-point of natural waterways shown in
Exhibit E. The operating plan shall describe measures that will be taken to protect said trees.

4.7 Invasive species control

Integrated management of invasive weed species (noxious weeds) shall be included in the
operating plan. The plan shall apply to the entire subject property and shall conform to the
applicable state or federal regulations, and the requirements imposed by this SUP and the
Fire District. The Permit Holder shall conform to the plan.

4.8 Septic systems.

The Permit Holder may acquire a permit from the Building Department to install septic
system(s) and septic leach-field(s) capable of serving administrative offices and other
occupied uses not accessible to a municipal sewerage system. The septic systems shall be
removed and reclaimed by the Permit Holder as required by NRS at closure or removal of the
buildings.

4.9 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (“CRMSS”)

By accepting this SUP, the Permit Holder acknowledges that portions of the subject property
may be within or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing disturbances of existing and

44 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

former mine and mill sites, mill tailings, mine waste, mine material, and other areas that are
found to contain Contaminant of Concern (CoC’s) as applicable to the CRMSS will be the
sole responsibility of the Permit Holder as communicated thereto by the NDEP Bureau of
Corrective Actions. Handling, redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted materials by the
Permit Holder shall be completed in accordance with the NDEP Bureau of Corrective
Actions.

V. FIRE & EMERGENCY

5.1 Site supervision

Site and staff supervision must comply with Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA)
requirements. Supervisors must have knowledge of and immediate access to fire suppression
devices, First-Aid kits, and locked gates. While on the premises, the on-site supervisor(s)
must possess a cellular telephone with adequate signal to send and receive signals to and
from Storey County emergency services direct-connect 775.847.0950. All staff using cellular
phones must be directed by the Permit Holder or his/her designed to dial Storey County
emergency services direct-connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1) in case of emergency.
“Emergency 9-1-1” is appropriate from land-line telephones.

5.2 Spill reporting

Any hydrocarbon or chemical spill of or exceeding 25 gallons or 3 cubic-yards shall be
reported immediately to Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 or Storey County emergency services
775.847.0950. Additionally, the incident must be immediately reported to the NDEP and the
local jurisdiction, including the Fire District and the Emergency Management, Building, and
Planning Departments. The Permit Holder must comply with NDEP clean-up requirements
and provide the Fire District and said county departments a copy of NDEP completion of
remediation immediately. All hazardous materials incident clean-up and response costs will
be borne by the Permit Holder as part of the issuance of this SUP. Incidents exceeding a
standard First-Alarm fire will be billed to the Permit Holder. If mutual aid is warranted to
suppress an incident, those costs will also be funded by the Permit Holder.

5.3 Emergency specialized training

The Permit Holder must provide and/or pay for any special training for the Fire District and
Emergency Management Department, when applicable, that is necessary for safe operation
and management of emergencies. This includes at a minimum training for water and confined
space rescues, rescues involving cyanide, and other events that may occur in association with

SHGVL IV ULS, VO LYY 5 vJauibL, G WALV DAL

allowed uses on the property.

VI. TRANSPORTATION

6.1 Means and modes of transport

Ore, overburden, and other excavated material may be transported throughout the subject
property by any type of on- and off-highway vehicles, haul trucks, tractors and heavy
equipment, railroad, conveyor systems, and other on-site conveyance systems. Sky Lane,
Keystone Circle, Slippery Gulch Road, and the power line access road immediately adjacent

45 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

to Slippery Gulch Road shall not be used for these purposes. State Route 342 shall not be
used for these purposes, except under such unusual circumstances, as demonstrated to the
Planning Department by the Permit Holder, that it is prohibited from transporting said
materials between Area A and Area B within the subject property (see Exhibit A). In such
case, the elements required in Subsections (a) through (c) below shall be presented to the
Planning Commission at a public hearing. The Board of Commissioners with
recommendation by the Planning Commission shall determine whether the requirements in
this section have been satisfied before the Permit Holder may commence use of said roadway
for said purposes. The Permit Holder shall demonstrate to the body:

a. The circumstances prohibiting its transport of ore between Area A and Area B within the
subject property; valid evidence of the current state of the conditions prohibiting its use
of said land; and that it is exercising a continued good faith effort in remedying the
circumstances prohibiting its use of said land.

b. A written plan submitted to the Planning Department explaining the estimated timeframe
that State Route 342 will be used for said purposes; the number of units (trucks) that will
be using the road; days and hours that the road will be used; type of vehicles (including
truck and trailer type) that will be used on the road; estimated timeframe for repair and
replacement of portions of the road damaged by said use; and methods by which said
portions of the road will be repaired or replaced.

c. Planning, communications, and other correspondence between it and the Nevada
Department of Transportation (NDOT) and Storey County Planning and Public Works
Departments with regard to the subsections herein.

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing in this section, and for the purpose of clarity, nothing
herein in this section or in this SUP eliminates alternatives contemplated in a draft or
final Environmental Assessment (EA) by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM)
regarding the Permit Holder’s application for right-of-way amendment.

The use of State Route 342 pursuant to this section shall be limited to Mondays through
Fridays, excluding national and state holidays, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.
The use of State Route 342 otherwise will be subject to the requirements of the NDOT. The
Permit Holder shall be responsible to repair damages to any state, county, or private road,
utility, or other infrastructure caused by activities associated with the uses under this SUP.
The repairs must be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County and the NDOT, as
applicable. The county reserves the right to restrict or prohibit the use of trucks and heavy

equipment on county-owned right-of-ways.

6.2 State Route 342 alignment and re-alignment

This SUP provides the Permit Holder flexibility in planning and executing viable alternatives
by which eastward mine expansion may occur in relation to adjacent State Route 342. The
amended SUP allows for re-alignment of State Route 342 in a manner which is determined
by Storey County and NDOT, as applicable, to be practical, safe, and reasonably efficient.
However, Storey County hereby expresses its position that State Route 342 serves practical

46 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

purposes for inter-local transportation; provides for vital life-safety access, including for
EMS, fire, and law enforcement services; and contributes substantially to the local tourism
economies of Gold Hill, Virginia City, and Silver City.

The Permit Holder may re-align State Route 342 in order to facilitate uses under this SUP.
Potential acceptable alternatives include, but are not limited to: (a) developing a bridge over
or under the highway through which mining and non-mining (civilian) traffic may occur
simultaneously; (b) realigning the highway west of its existing alignment in concurrence with
reclamation of the adjacent Lucerne and Justice pits; and (c) realigning the highway to the
immediate east of the newly proposed mine expansion area. Except under temporary
circumstances (up to 30 days in a 12 month period) when an access plan is approved by the
Fire District and Sheriff’s Office, closing the road is considered unreasonable and
irresponsible and shall not be allowed.

For purposes of conforming to findings in SCC 17.92 and provisions in the Storey County
Master Plan for protecting the historical character and authenticity of the area for tourists and
residents, State Route 342, as existing or modified, shall maintain its north and south traffic
flows through Gold Canyon and in its current approximate alignment through Devil’s Gate.

6.3 Signage

Legible signage shall be placed at appropriate entry points of the premises near State Route
342, the principal administrative office(s), and the processing site. Signage must state the
name of company/organization, street address (or descriptive location), contact phone
number(s), and other information required by the Fire District. Appropriate signage must be
installed on and around the premises stating rules for entry and circulation (e.g., no
trespassing, travel permitted only on designated pathways, etc.). Directional signs must be
placed at intersections of public ways and mine haul roads, and other places along public
ways to appropriately direct the public, residents, and other users in the area.

6.4 Roadway approaches and egress

Egress points abutting State Route 342 must comply with the requirements of NDOT.
Approaches to paved county right-of-ways must be sufficient to prevent mud and debris
tracking from the site onto the public roadway. Any mud or debris tracked onto the county
road must be removed by the Permit Holder immediately as allowable by the NDEP. Mud,
sand, and debris must not be allowed to adversely impact existing drainage systems.

e Access Routes. Haul roads and secondary roads shall be developed to the satisfaction of
the Fire District. As required thereby, established routes shall remain the primary travel
ways for all emergency/fire vehicles, equipment, and personnel. The Permit Holder may
develop and/or utilize other secondary travel routes for non-emergency use with approval
of the Fire District. The primary emergency access routes shall be kept clear of rocks and
other obstacles to emergency vehicles. In order to increase route visibility and reduce
confusion for emergency personnel, roadside directional markers shall be installed as
required by the Fire District.

47 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

VII. GENERAL USES
7.1 Safety and security

e Security. Appropriate security, including that required by federal and state agencies,
shall be maintained to prevent unauthorized access to potentially hazardous
conditions. Storage, maintenance of hazardous materials, protective devices (e.g.,
fencing, gates, etc.), and site monitoring (e.g., on-site security, alarm systems, etc.)
shall comply with Fire District, Sheriff’s Office, and applicable state and federal
agency requirements. Open bodies containing cyanide and other hazardous substances
shall be treated appropriately to prevent wildlife access and safety hazards.

e Signage. Warning signs indicating all potentially hazardous conditions shall be
installed at each port of entry and around drill pads, sumps and other potentially
hazardous conditions. Cautionary signs shall be positioned peripheral to area of
acidity to inform individuals entering the area to be safety conscious and aware of
potentially hazardous conditions. Appropriate signage indicating crossing truck traffic
(i.e., “Truck Crossing”) shall be installed on the southbound and northbound lanes of
State Route 342 by and at the expense of the Permit Holder and to the satisfaction of
Storey County Public Works and/or NDOT, whichever is applicable.

7.2 Watchman’s dwelling

The Permit Holder is authorized to place on the subject property a recreational vehicle (RV)
type trailer or manufactured building to serve as temporary living quarters for on-site
security. A temporary (one-year) permit from the Building Department must be obtained for
this watchman’s quarters and the Permit Holder shall submit an application to the Building
Department each year thereafter for the use to remain. The Permit Holder shall provide with
the application written permission from the Comstock Historic District. The use shall be
removed from the premises within 30 days of closure of the operation or when operations
under this SUP cease to operate for a period of 24 months or longer.

7.3 Silver City water line protection

As stated earlier in these conditions, the Permit Holder shall develop a comprehensive plan
by which it will protect the Silver City water main from accidental damage and service
disruption caused by surface and underground activity. The plan shall also include a detailed
description of how accidental damage to the line, or events causing disruption to service as a
result of activity associated with the SUP, will be treated and remedied immediately and
without disruption to service provided to Silver City. At a minimum:

o The plan shall include Geographic Information Systems (GIS) aerial imagery illustrating
the estimated alignment of the water line within the subject property; type(s) and
dimensions of the existing piping, fittings, valve types, etc., in order to plan for
unanticipated immediate response situations; existing roads and other surface
disturbances; and surrounding topography.

e The plan shall include GIS aerial imagery showing the location of existing and proposed

48 of 135



Staff Report — 2000-222-A-4 Storey County Planning
Comstock Mining, Inc. 775.847.1144

roads, drill pads, pits, and other surface disturbances within 500’ of the water line.

o The plan shall provide a detailed explanation of the methods by which the water line will
be protected from light and heavy vehicle and equipment uses within 500 thereof. The
plan shall address protecting the water line at all vehicle crossing points; monitoring
vibration; and protecting the water line from vibration caused by uses within 500’
thereof, and from blasting within 1,000’ thereof.

e The plan shall explain procedures by which the Permit Holder will immediately notify
the Planning and Public Works Departments, the County Manager’s Office, and the
Storey County and Central Lyon County Fire Protection Districts of damage to the water
line, or disruption to service.

e The plan shall explain methods, procedures, estimated timeframe, and other processes by
which damage to the water line caused by the Permit Holder will be repaired immediately
after such damage and to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

e The plan shall indicate the Silver City municipal water tank storage capacity; estimated
customer usage (in gallons) during the months of January and July; estimated timeframe
of capacity based on storage capacity and usage; and the alternative source of safe
drinking water and specific methods by which it will be supplied to the Silver City
municipal water system if the duration of service disruption exceeds system storage
capacity. The plan shall describe the source of and methods by which sufficient water
flows will be provided to Silver City during a structure fire event that occurs during the
service disruption.

e The plan shall explain the circumstances that will necessitate all or portions of the water
line located within the subject property to be replaced by the Permit Holder prior to
damage, and what agreements may be made between the Storey County Water System
(Public Works Director) and the Permit Holder for the methods, procedures, and cost of
its replacement.

e The plan shall be updated concurrently with active mining and the updated plan shall be
submitted to the Storey County Public Works Department and Central Lyon County Fire
Protection District for approval, and the Storey County Planning Department and Storey
County Fire Protection District for filing.

The Permit Holder shall demonstrate active engagement with the Storey County Public
Works Director and the Central Lyon County Fire Protection District Chief in developing the
plan. The plan must be approved by the Storey County Public Works Director and the
Central Lyon County Fire Protection District Chief, and submitted to the Storey County
Planning and Public Works Departments and Storey County Fire Protection District for filing
before mining, mine definition, exploration, and other such activities may occur on land east
of State Route 342 in its current alignment, or within one year of approval of the SUP,
whichever is sooner. Before commencing operations east of the road, the Public Works
Director with concurrence by the County Manager may require the Permit Holder at its

49 of 135



